

## DEPARTMENT OF PSYCHOLOGY AND COUNSELING

FACULTY OF ARTS AND SOCIAL SCIENCE

Project Title: Perceived Stress and Emotional Intelligence as Predictors of				
Life Satisfaction among Undergraduates in Malaysia				
Supervisor: Dr. Nurul Iman Binti	Abdul Jalil			
-	1			
Student's Name:		Student's ID		
1. Cham Han Tein		1.18AAB02284		
2. Lim Syi Wei		2. 18AAB02283		
3. Ooi Yu Jie		3. 18AAB05045		
Year:2022	Semester: Jan	/ May / Oct		
For Supervisor Use:				
FYP I score:	FYP II score:			



Wholly owned by UTAR Education Foundation (Co. No. 578227-M) DU012(A)

# PERCEIVED STRESS AND EMOTIONAL INTELLIGENCE AS PREDICTORS OF LIFE

## SATISFACTION AMONG UNDERGRADUATES IN MALAYSIA

CHAM HAN TEIN

LIM SYI WEI

OOI YU JIE

# A RESEARCH PROJECT SUBMITTED IN PARTIAL FULFILLMENT OF THE REQUIREMENTS FOR THE BACHELOR OF SOCIAL SCIENCE (HONS) PSYCHOLOGY FACULTY OF ARTS AND SOCIAL SCIENCE UNIVERSITI TUNKU ABDUL RAHMAN

APRIL 2022

Perceived Stress and Emotional Intelligence as Predictors of Life Satisfaction among

Undergraduates in Malaysia

Cham Han Tein, Lim Syi Wei, Ooi Yu Jie

This research project is submitted in partial fulfilment of the requirements for the Bachelor of Social Science (Hons) Psychology, Faculty of Arts and Social Science, Universiti Tunku Abdul Rahman. Submitted on April 2022.

#### PERCEIVED STRESS, EI AND LIFE SATISFACTION

#### ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

We are deeply grateful for those who have assisted and guided us throughout this journey. It would be impossible for us to complete this project without the assistance and cooperation of the individuals and organizations.

First of all, we would like to earnestly acknowledge the sincere efforts and valuable time given by our Final Year Project (FYP) supervisor, Dr. Nurul Iman Binti Abdul Jalil, who guided us in doing these projects. Her valuable guidance and feedback has helped us in completing this project.

At last but not in least, we would like to thank everyone especially our friends and peers who helped and motivated us to work on this project. Without that support, we could not have succeeded in completing this project.

CHAM HAN TEIN LIM SYI WEI OOI YU JIE

### APPROVAL FORM

This research paper attached hereto, entitled "Perceived Stress and Emotional Intelligence as Predictors of Life Satisfaction Among Undergraduates in Malaysia" prepared and submitted by "Cham Han Tein, Lim Syi Wei and Ooi Yu Jie" in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the Bachelor of Social Science (Hons) Psychology is hereby accepted.

Date: 5 April 2022

Supervisor (Dr. Nurul Iman Binti Abdul Jalil)

#### Abstract

Life satisfaction has been found to be strongly correlated with both physical and psychological health-related issues. Hence, this cross-sectional and quantitative study was conducted to examine the predictive effect of perceived stress and sub-dimensions of emotional intelligence (self-emotion appraisal, others' emotion appraisal, use of emotion, and regulation of emotion) on life satisfaction among undergraduates in Malaysia. A total of 110 were involved in the current study using both purposive and snowball sampling techniques. Online questionnaires were distributed across various social media platforms, which include Microsoft Teams, Facebook, Instagram, and WhatsApp. Participants were all undergraduates in the public and private universities in Malaysia with the age range between 19 to 24 (M =21.72). About 43.6 % of respondents were males (n = 48), while about 56.4% were females (n = 62). Three instruments were applied in this study, which included Perceived Stress Scale (PSS-10), Wong and Law Emotional Intelligence Scale (WLEIS) and Satisfaction with Life Scale (SWLS). The findings revealed that perceived stress negatively predicted life satisfaction, while all sub-dimensions of emotional intelligence (self-emotion appraisal, others' emotion appraisal, use of emotion, and regulation of emotion) positively predicted life satisfaction among Malaysian undergraduates. Thus, this study might provide a deeper insight on relevant topics and contribute significant references as well as directions to further researchers. Relevant authorities may be able to apply the knowledge in implementing new strategies, which may be useful for enhancing the life satisfaction of the undergraduates.

*Keywords: perceived stress, emotional intelligence, self-emotion appraisal, others' emotion appraisal, use of emotion, regulation of emotion, life satisfaction, undergraduates* 

### DECLARATION

We declare that the material contained in this paper is the end result of our own work and that due acknowledgement has been given in the bibliography and references to ALL sources be they printed, electronic or personal.

Name	: CHAM HAN TEIN
Student ID	: 18AAB02284
Signed	: 14
Date	: 4 <sup>th</sup> April 2022

Name	: LIM SYI WEI
Student ID	: 18AAB02283
Signed	: SyM
Date	: 4 <sup>th</sup> April 2022

Name	: OOI YU JIE
Student ID	: 18AAB05045
Signed	: Jane
Date	: 4 <sup>th</sup> April 2022

## Table of Contents

		Page
Abstract		i
Declaration		ii
List of Tables		viii
List of Figures		ix
List of Abbrevia	tions	х
Chapters		
1 Introd	uction	
	Background of Study	1
	Problem Statement	4
	General Objective	6
	Research Questions	7
	Research Objectives	7
	Hypotheses	7
	Significance of Study	7
	Conceptual Definitions	10
	Operational Definitions	11
	Conclusion	13
2 Literat	ture Review	
	Perceived Stress	14
	Emotional Intelligence (EI)	15
	Life Satisfaction	16

# PERCEIVED STRESS, EI AND LIFE SATISFACTION

Perceived Stress and Life Satisfaction	16
Emotional Intelligence (EI) and Life Satisfaction	18
Self-Emotion Appraisal (SEA) and Life Satisfaction	20
Others' Emotion Appraisal (OEA) and Life	22
Satisfaction	
Use of Emotion (UOE) and Life Satisfaction	23
Regulation of Emotion (ROE) and Life Satisfaction	23
Theoretical Framework	
Broaden-and-Build Theory of Positive Emotions	25
Conceptual Framework	

# 3 Methodology

Research Design	29
Research Sample	29
Sampling Method	29
Sample Size	30
Participants	31
Research Location	31
Research Procedure	31
Ethics Approval	31
Procedure	31
Pilot Study	32
Reliability of Instruments for Each Variable in Pilot	32
Study and Actual Study	
Instrumentation	33

## PERCEIVED STRESS, EI AND LIFE SATISFACTION

	Perceived Stress Scale (PSS-10)	34
	Wong and Law Emotional Intelligence Scale (WLEIS	) 34
	Satisfaction with Life Scale (SWLS)	35
Data	Cleaning	35
Data Analysis		35
	Assumption of Normality	36
	Assumptions for Multiple Linear Regression (MLR)	37
Concl	usion	38

## 4 Results

Descriptive Statistics	
Assumption of Normality	
Univariate Outliers	42
Skewness and Kurtosis	42
Histogram	43
Quantile-Quantile (Q-Q) Plot	43
Kolmogorov-Smirnov (K-S) Test	43
Summary of Assumption of Normality	44
Assumptions for Multiple Linear Regression (MLR)	
Type of Variables	44
Multivariate Outliers	44
Multicollinearity	45
Independence of Error Study and Actual Study	46
Linearity of Residual, Normality of Residual, and	46
Homoscedasticity	

Summary of Assumptions for Multiple Linear	47
Regression (MLR)	
Multiple Linear Regression (MLR) Analysis	47
Summary of Results	48

# 5 Discussion

Discussion	49
Theoretical Implication	55
Practical Implication	55
Limitations	56
Recommendations	57
Conclusion	58
	60

# Appendices

References

Appendix A	G*Power Calculation	104
Appendix B	Ethical Approval Letter	107
Appendix C	Questionnaire	109
Appendix D	SPSS Output of Other Demographic Data	116
Appendix E	Boxplot	118
Appendix F	Histogram	123
Appendix G	Q-Q Plot	126
Appendix H	Turnitin Originality Report	129
Appendix I	Evaluation Form	139
Appendix J	Action Plan Form	144

Appendix K	Consent Form	145
Appendix L	Supervisor Comment on Originality Report	148

# List of Tables

Table		Page
3.1	Reliability of Instruments in Pilot Study ( $n = 33$ ) and in Actual Study	33
	(n = 110)	
4.1	Demographic Information of Respondents	40
4.2	Descriptive Statistics of Each Variable	41
4.3	Skewness and Kurtosis	42
4.4	Kolmogorov-Smirnov Test	43
4.5	Multivariate Outlier Tests	45
4.6	Collinearity Statistics	45
4.7	Independence of Errors	46
4.8	Result of Regression Model	47
4.9	Result of Regression Coefficient	47
4.10	Summary of Results	48

# List of Figures

Figure		Page
1.1	Proposed Conceptual Framework	27
4.1	Scatterplot of Standardized Predicted Value against Standardized	46
	Residual.	

# List of Abbreviations

Abbreviations	
EI	Emotional Intelligence
OEA	Others' Emotion Appraisal
PSS-10	Perceived Stress Scale-10 Items
ROE	Regulation of Emotion
SEA	Self-Emotion Appraisal
SWLS	Satisfaction with Life Scale
UOE	Use of Emotion
WLEIS	Wong and Law Emotional Intelligence Scale
IQ	Intelligence Quotient
EQ-I:s	Emotional Quotient Inventory: Short
CR	Cognitive Reappraisal
ES	Expressive Suppression
IV	Independent Variables
DV	Dependent Variable
K-S Test	Kolmogorov-Smirnov Test
S-W Test	Shapiro-Wilk Test
MLR	Multiple Linear Regression
VIF	Variance Inflation Factor

#### **Chapter I**

#### Introduction

#### **Background of Study**

Life satisfaction has been the focus of researchers for a long time and has been linked to various dimensions. It reflects the overall evaluation of life experiences of an individual based on a set of criteria that include a sense of pleasure and "feel good" factors that are relatively stable over time (Diener et al., 2002; Lewis et al., 2011). Life satisfaction also acts as an indicator of an individual's quality of life and how much an individual likes the life they chose (Özer et al., 2016). It allows an individual to feel better and express positive feelings (Cazan & Năstasă, 2015). In a broader context, it is the subjective well-being contributed by both cognitive and affective appraisal components. It is believed that people judge their quality of life by comparing their current state with the proper standard that is assumed and set by themselves (Pavot & Diener, 2009). Therefore, individuals will rate their life satisfaction differently in various aspects according to their fundamental differences in personality and affectivity.

Apart from preventing the negative outcomes, life satisfaction has also been related to various positive outcomes. It is consistently shown that individuals who experience higher life satisfaction will develop more positive social relationships and get more social support (Barger et al., 2009; Diener & Seligman, 2002; Pavot & Diener, 2008). Moreover, some studies reported that high life satisfaction tends to facilitate students' academic engagement and academic achievement (Antaramian, 2015; Renshaw & Cohen, 2014). In other words, it may have an impact on student commitment, academic performance, academic stress, and lastly, the Grade Point Averages (GPAs) (Antaramian, 2017). The students will develop more positive attitudes towards their academic experiences (Duffy et al., 2012; Ojeda et al., 2011).

In contrast, low life satisfaction will lead to poor mental health among individuals. Previous research has shown that mental health issues have negative consequences, with suicidal behaviour being one of the most serious effects (Bolton et al., 2008; Chesney et al., 2014; Nock et al., 2008; Yaldizli et al., 2010).To this extent, suicide has been one of the leading causes of death in both adolescents and young people in the world (Bridge et al., 2006; Bridge et al., 2014; Haegerich et al., 2014; Wasserman et al., 2005).

Suicidal behaviour is common among undergraduate students and is known as the second highest cause of mortality (Blasco et al., 2018; Mortier et al., 2018a; Mortier et al., 2018b; Nam et al., 2018). It was reported that among 50,054 undergraduate students, 21% of them had suicide ideation while 4.2% attempted to commit suicide (Sivertsen et al., 2019). Hence, the public highlights the potential factors affecting life satisfaction, either in a negative or positive way so that they gain a deeper insight on what should be emphasized in order to enhance people's psychological health and life quality.

In this context, perceived stress is crucial in determining life satisfaction. According to Shahsavarani et al. (2015), stress refers to an uncomfortable mental condition, in which an individual experiences tension and worry due to the actual stressors in life. In other words, stress can be defined as anything that is viewed as a challenge or threat that disrupts one's sense of equilibrium in life (Afridi & Maqsood, 2017; Madebo et al., 2016). To this extent, perceived stress is identified as the feelings about the unpredictability and uncontrollability of life, which refers to the general stressfulness and ability to handle stress, regardless of the types or frequencies of stressful events (Phillips, 2015). In this study, the term 'stress' will be referred to the cognitive appraisal of threats and harms, which is similar to "perceived stress".

In this materialistic world, stress has been considered a common health related problem for every person at some point (Afridi & Maqsood, 2017). Although stress may be helpful in keeping an individual motivated and focused sometimes, it may negatively affect health, mood, and quality of life which then influences one's life satisfaction, especially for students (Behere et al., 2011). In recent decades, the stress level of students, especially those in the tertiary level of education, has risen sharply due to the increasing competitiveness in academics (Ain et al., 2021; Dessie et al., 2013; Hamaideh, 2011). There are many situations in university that expose students to stress, including students' academic expectations, goals, social networks, extracurricular activities and others. As a result, majority of undergraduate students were found to have serious vulnerability to stress (Habeeb, 2013).

According to Dohrenwend (1998), people are at risk for both physical and psychological problems if they are generally in acute or chronic stressful conditions. Since stress is known to lead to different outcomes, many researchers have conducted several studies related to perceived stress and life satisfaction (Abolghasemi & Varaniyab, 2010; Alleyne et al., 2010; Kahraman et al., 2020). Moreover, Tan and Ramzan (2017) found perceived stress as a useful predictor of life satisfaction in their study.

Furthermore, ever since 1990, emotional intelligence (EI) has been introduced as a subset of social intelligence that includes the proficiency in monitoring and discriminating emotions of one and others as well as to apply the information in guiding one's thoughts and behaviours (Salovey & Mayer, 1990). Later, EI is specified and divided into four categories, which are the ability to perceive emotions, to use emotions in facilitating thoughts, to understand emotions and to regulate emotions (Mayer & Salovey, 1997). Due to the significance of an individual's life quality, various research regarding life satisfaction and possible emotional, behavioural and social variables had been conducted (Proctor et al., 2009).

EI is proved to be one of the most noticed aspects that determines one's degree of life satisfaction (Kong et al., 2014). It is stated that individuals who can recognise and control emotions tend to develop a better view of life (van Heck & den Oudsten, 2008; Salovey,

2001; S ánchez-Álvarez et al., 2015). High EI enables an individual to be more optimistic and it can decrease negative experiences, such as depression and suicide thoughts, as well as enhance well-being as well as life adaptation skills (Afolabi, 2013; Bar-On, 2002; Ciarrochi et al., 2002; Giardini & Frese, 2006; Gohm & Clore, 2002; Sj öberg, 2008). Students are required to be emotionally intelligent to fit well into universities. It will be easier for them to adapt to different situations and tend to perceive the situation as a development opportunity instead of a threat (Mikolajczak & Limunet, 2008).

Hence, this present study aims to find out how perceived stress, EI and sub-dimension of EI, which includes self-emotion appraisal (SEA), others' emotion appraisal (OEA), use of emotion (UOE) and regulation of emotion (ROE) predict life satisfaction among undergraduate students in Malaysia.

### **Problem Statement**

Over the past years, researchers tend to focus more on job satisfaction while life satisfaction of students continues to be neglected until today (Afolabi & Balogun, 2017). Life satisfaction has been reported by many researchers to be strongly correlated with both physical and psychological health-related issues, such as sleep problems, obesity, smoking, chronic illness, anxiety, and others (Kim et al., 2021; Proctor et al., 2017; Valois et al., 2004; Strine et al., 2008). Moreover, another study reported that life satisfaction can help reduce the risk of mortality (Boehm et al., 2015). Therefore, it is clearly shown that life satisfaction and health, as well as well-being, go hand-in-hand.

Nowadays, mental health problems have become a common and serious issue that should concern the public. University students all over the world have been reported to have poor mental health, particularly high levels of stress, anxiety, and depression (Brown, 2018; Mey & Yin, 2015). In Malaysia, the number of students with mental health issues doubled from 10% in 2011 to 20% in 2016 (Hezmi, 2018). Besides, other studies reported that a third of public university undergraduates had anxiety, with an increasing prevalence from 2013 to 2016 (Latiff et al., 2014; Mohammed et al., 2016; Shamsuddin et al., 2013). Although past studies have shown that undergraduates are vulnerable to mental health issues, this issue remains mostly undiscovered in eastern societies (Kumar et al., 2016; Kotera et al., 2021; Oswalt et al., 2020). Consequently, a study conducted by Paschali and Tsistas (2010) among 200 university students found that 63.4% of them experienced low life satisfaction (Tsitsas et al., 2019).

On the other hand, although stress is part of an individual's life, people who are undergoing major life changes tend to be more stressed. Hence, undergraduate students who are undergoing the transition to adulthood will be exposed to more chronic stress and uncertainties in unfamiliar surroundings (Darling et al., 2007; Towbes & Cohen, 1996). In Malaysia, researchers reported that 50% of public university students were facing stress, mainly due to academic-related issues (Phang et al., 2015). As a result, students who are incompetent at managing stress will have adjustment difficulties, which will then lead to lower life satisfaction (Lee et al., 2016). However, there is less research that has only studied the predictive effect of perceived stress on life satisfaction (Hamzah et al., 2019; Lee et al., 2016; Urquijo et al., 2016; Yildirim & Alanazi, 2018). Additionally, there is a lack of research related to this domain that focuses on university students in Malaysia (Dymecka et al., 2021; G ürkan et al., 2021; Ocaña-Moral et al., 2021).

Nevertheless, according to Bar-On (1997, 2002), EI enables an individual to regulate and manage any emotional related issues in their environment. Since life satisfaction is determined based on individuals' evaluations of overall life experiences, those with high EI are believed to have high life satisfaction as they will tend to focus on the positive side of life (Carmeli, 2003; van Heck & den Oudsten, 2008). However, a study conducted by Khurshid and his colleagues (2018) revealed that there were only 27% of highly EI university students. Besides, most students who were involved in clinical placements were often surrounded by emotion-filled scenarios, which included distressed patients and families, unfamiliar environments and the others (Birks et al., 2009). They were reported to face difficulties due to the deficiency of EI skills. They were unable to understand and regulate their own stress as well as to use emotional information to make clinical decisions (Cooper et al., 2010; Larin et al., 2014; Stagnitti et al., 2010).

Although past studies acknowledged the importance of EI in predicting life satisfaction, the studies were mostly conducted in other countries and were mostly targeted only on medical undergraduates, rather than focusing undergraduates in overall (Jensen et al., 2021; Tsitsas et al., 2019; Wahab et al., 2021). This is because the researchers perceived that the health of medical students will be greatly affected as they hold the responsibilities to preserve and promote health of society (Ghahramani et al., 2019). In this context, EI plays a significant role to support them in providing adequate clinical care as well as handling a particular situation during the medical treatment process (Sundararajan & Gopichandran, 2018). To date, there is less research that specifically studying the four branches of EI introduced by Salovey and Mayer (1997) which focused on self-emotion appraisal (SEA), others' emotion appraisal (OEA), use of emotion (UOE) and regulation of emotion (ROE) (Blasco-Belled et al., 2020; Cazan & Năstasă, 2015; Kong et al., 2019). Therefore, the predictive ability of perceived stress and each specific component of EI towards life satisfaction is examined so that more detailed and specified actions can be taken by considering each dimension. This quantitative study should be conducted among undergraduates in Malaysia to fill the knowledge gap of life satisfaction on the perceived stress and the sub-dimension of EI.

#### **General Objective**

6

In general, this study is conducted to determine the predictive effect of perceived stress and emotional intelligence on life satisfaction.

#### **Research Questions**

- Does perceived stress negatively predict life satisfaction among undergraduates in Malaysia?
- 2. Do sub-dimension of emotional intelligence (self-emotion appraisal, others' emotion appraisal, use of emotion and regulation of emotion) positively predict life satisfaction among undergraduates in Malaysia?

#### **Research Objectives**

 To investigate the predictive effect of perceived stress and sub-dimension of emotional intelligence (self-emotion appraisal, others' emotion appraisal, use of emotion and regulation of emotion) on life satisfaction among undergraduates in Malaysia.

#### Hypotheses

- $H_1$ : Perceived stress negatively predicts life satisfaction among undergraduates in Malaysia.
- $H_2$ : Self-emotion appraisal (SEA) positively predicts life satisfaction among undergraduates in Malaysia.
- $H_3$ : Others' emotion appraisal (OEA) positively predicts life satisfaction among undergraduates in Malaysia.
- $H_4$ : Use of emotion (UOE) positively predicts life satisfaction among undergraduates in Malaysia.
- $H_5$ : Regulation of emotion (ROE) positively predicts life satisfaction among undergraduates in Malaysia.

#### Significance of Study

Through this study, the findings may create an awareness for the public, especially the education authorities, to place more emphasis on perceived stress and emotional intelligence that are related to the life satisfaction of undergraduate students. Most of the students' life satisfaction has been ignored because the achievement of their ultimate goals is assessed by their academic success (Jamali et al., 2013). Therefore, the present findings may alert the public to pay greater attention to university students' mental health problems. Academic structure can be modified, which emphasis more on the emotional intelligence, not intellectual intelligence. Besides, the universities should provide adequate counselling services so that the psychological conditions of the undergraduates can be taken into consideration. Apart from that, the university students can be more concern with their satisfaction of lives, thus, making adjustments by improving emotional intelligence and reducing stress.

Nevertheless, the level of perceived stress among undergraduates may be more emphasized than neglected. This study can raise awareness among the public, parents of undergraduate students and universities regarding the psychological, not merely academic concerns of students. They will gain a clearer view of the serious negative consequences of stress and the probability of undergraduate students who are experiencing chronic stress. Thus, effective actions can be taken, in which the university may try to introduce activities or programmes that can assist students in releasing their stress and provide sufficient mental health care for them. Universities have the moral obligation to enhance the academic environment by implementing some policies to limit students' exposure to stressful situations (Kumar et al., 2009). For instance, counselling sessions in each trimester, two weeks of study breaks, yoga week, and others. When the stress issues are well addressed, the overall cognitive development of undergraduate students can be enhanced and this will shape them into more skillful people (Madebo et al., 2016). Apart from that, the findings obtained can help to develop a new perspective on the Malaysian education field. According to Goleman (1995) as cited in a past study, an individual's success is mostly contributed by EI, while only 20% is contributed by intellectual intelligence (Mohzan et al., 2013). Cooper and Sawaf (1998) also mentioned that an individual who has a high intelligence quotient (IQ) but with the absence of corresponding EI will not experience consistent success in life due to their incompetency in understanding, controlling and managing both intrapersonal and interpersonal emotions. Hence, it is stated that EI plays a vital role in one's personal, social and professional lives. Since undergraduates are the future leaders of the country, EI should be emphasized so that they are well-prepared to deal with challenges and uncertainties. Therefore, through this study, the government may be able to gain an insight into the weakness of the education system, which is underestimating the valuable effects of EI and overweighing the effects of IQ in undergraduates. They may realize that a supportive academic environment brings more benefits than a competitive academic environment.

The current research findings can also have positive impacts on the targeted samples, which are undergraduate students. They will be encouraged to discover and improve their EI as well as to view stress positively as a motivator in order to increase their life satisfaction. According to Kant (2019), EI is very useful for students as it allows them to decrease academic pressure and improve their decision-making skills. In addition, those with high EI are familiar with their potential and they will use it in both personal and professional life. Hence, the knowledge and understanding gained related to this domain would enable them to positively perceive any issues, either academic-related or non-related, which may help in their personal development (Afridi & Maqsood, 2017).

Lastly, the findings of this research can help to fill the knowledge gap on perceived stress and life satisfaction as well as the sub-dimensions of EI and life satisfaction in

Malaysia. Since the limited literature on this related field does not provide sufficient information, this study can serve as a baseline for future research. In the future, researchers will have more statistics related to this field, which will enable them to investigate related predictors and life satisfaction in a deeper way.

#### **Conceptual Definitions**

#### **Perceived Stress**

Perceived stress is an individual's feelings or thoughts about how much pressure they have in their life, and their confidence to cope with it within a certain period of time (Phillips, 2013). According to Golden-Kreutz et al. (2004), perceived stress is the extent to which an individual found their life to be uncertain, burdensome, and out of control.

#### **Emotional Intelligence (EI)**

EI is a type of emotional information processing. It consists of the ability, capability, competence, or self-perceived skill to understand, evaluate, and manage one's own emotion, others' emotion, and the group's emotions. People with a high EI are able to take the process as guidance to make wise decisions on how to express, to think and to behave which will result in the best outcome (Ishaq et al., 2020; Salovey & Mayer, 1990). They are highly aware and can regulate the feelings and emotions of others (Serrat, 2017).

**Self-Emotion Appraisal (SEA).** SEA is the ability of an individual to understand and express their own inner feelings in a natural way (Davies et al., 1998).

**Others' Emotion Appraisal (OEA).** OEA is the ability of an individual to sense and comprehend the emotions of others around (Davies et al., 1998).

**Use of Emotion (UOE).** An individual has the ability to channel their emotions into productive activities and personal performance that enable the individual to continually motivate themselves for desirable outcomes (Davies et al., 1998).

**Regulation of Emotion (ROE).** As defined by Davies et al. (1998), ROE is an individual's ability to control emotions by monitoring, evaluating and taking action on their mood, allowing the individual to recover faster from psychological distress.

### Life Satisfaction

Life Satisfaction refers to the positive evaluation of an individual on their life's quality and conditions (Aldridge et al., 2016; Suldo et al., 2008; Veenhoven, 1991). The judgement is made by comparing their overall life situation to their standards or expectations (Coffman & Gilligan, 2002). To put it simply, it is about how well one likes their life.

#### Undergraduate Students

The phrase "undergraduate students" refers to the one who is enrolled in a university to obtain a bachelor's degree at the tertiary level of education (Dictionary.com, 2021).

#### **Operational Definitions**

#### **Perceived Stress**

The perceived stress of undergraduates will be measured by the Perceived Stress Scale (PSS-10) which is a 10-item scale (Cohen et al., 1983). It is to assess the degree of an individual's feeling of stress in response to their life circumstances in the last month. The scale is scored on a 5-point Likert scale from *never* (0) *to very often* (4). Higher scores on this scale indicate the individual find their lives are under a higher level of stress.

#### **Emotional Intelligence (EI)**

EI of undergraduates will be accessed using the Wong and Law Emotional Intelligence Scale (WLEIS) which is based on the theoretical model established by Mayer and Salovey (1997). The 16-item scale is categorised into four components. They are selfemotion appraisal (SEA), others' emotion appraisal (OEA), use of emotion (UOE), regulation of emotion (ROE). Each component comprises four items, which are rated on a 7-point Likert scale, with the range from *strongly disagree* (1) to *strongly agree* (7) (Wong & Law, 2002). **Self-Emotion Appraisal (SEA).** The SEA of undergraduates will be measured by the first four items out of the 16 items in WLEIS. The four items are rated on a 7-point Likert scale, with the range from *strongly disagree* (1) to *strongly agree* (7). People with strong competence in this area will be able to recognise and understand their emotions better than others (Davies et al., 1998).

**Others' Emotion Appraisal (OEA).** The items five to eight in WLEIS will be used to evaluate OEA. The four items are rated on a 7-point Likert scale, with the range from *strongly disagree* (1) to *strongly agree* (7). People who score high on this dimension are very sensitive to others' feelings and can predict their emotional responses as well (Davies et al., 1998).

**Use of Emotion (UOE).** UOE will be examined by another four out of 16 items in WLEIS. The four items are rated on a 7-point Likert scale, with the range from *strongly disagree* (1) to *strongly agree* (7). People who are extremely capable in this dimension, are able to direct their emotions positively and make use of it to be better (Davies et al., 1998).

**Regulation of Emotion (ROE).** Undergraduates' ability to regulate their emotions will be measured by the last four items in WLEIS. The four items are rated on a 7-point Likert scale, with the range from *strongly disagree* (1) to *strongly agree* (7). An individual who possesses a high ability in this area would be able to rapidly return to their normal psychological states after having their mood affected. They can be less prone to lose their temper (Davies et al., 1998).

### Life Satisfaction

Life satisfaction of undergraduates will be evaluated by the Satisfaction with Life Scale (SWLS). The scale is made up of 5 items by using a 7-point Likert scale (Diener et al., 1985). It is to evaluate the respondent's overall satisfaction with their life, but not examine satisfaction with life domains such as wealth or health. The higher score in this scale reflects a higher level of life satisfaction towards an individual's life.

#### Undergraduate Students

Undergraduate students aged 19 to 24 in Malaysia public and private universities, including polytechnics and institutes of teacher education, will be recruited as participants in this study.

#### Conclusion

In the present study, we will examine the predicting roles of perceived stress and the sub dimensions of EI (SEA, OEA, UOE, ROE) on life satisfaction. Perceived Stress Scale (PSS-10) by Cohen et al. (1983) will be applied to measure perceived stress while Wong and Law Emotional Intelligence Scale (WLEIS) by Wong and Law (2002) will be used to measure the sub-dimension of EI. In addition, life satisfaction will be examined by using Satisfaction with Life Scale (SWLS) developed by Diener et al. (1985). Targeted samples in this study are undergraduate students in Malaysia, who aged between 19 to 24 years.

#### **Chapter II**

#### **Literature Review**

### **Perceived Stress**

Stress can be explained in two ways, which are situational stress and perceived stress. According to the Transactional Model of Stress and Coping by Lazarus and Folkman (1984a), situational stress refers to a relationship that exists between an individual and the environment in which the environment is appraised as threatening and exceeding people's resources to cope with it. In this context, different individuals tend to experience different levels of stress regardless of the situation due to different perceptions and evaluations of the situation (Goppert & Pfost, 2021). In other words, perceived stress refers to a broader perceived experience of individuals by evaluating their lives as uncertain, unpredictable, and uncontrollable. It differs according to the adaptability of an individual in all recent situations of stress (Cohen et al., 1983).

Previous research has found that stress is common among university students (Larcombe et al., 2016; Saleh et al., 2017; Weier & Lee, 2016). The large number of stressors at the university, which include a high workload, frequent exams, fear of failure, uncertainties about the future, and others, tend to contribute to students' stress (Bedewy & Gabriel, 2015; Goff, 2011). The negative consequences of stress have been reported in various studies, which include poor academic performance, mental health issues, sleeping problems, and others (Pascoe et al., 2020; Sohail, 2013). Unfortunately, a study conducted by Jia and Loo (2018) reported that 37.7% of the undergraduates experienced stress, and one-third of them were experiencing heavy stress. Recently, during the COVID-19 outbreak, university students showed moderate-to-high stress levels, which ranged between 11.5% and 85.0%

levels of perceived stress (Du et al., 2020; Li et al., 2020; Sheroun et al., 2020; Son et al., 2020; Ye et al., 2020).

#### **Emotional Intelligence**

Emotional intelligence is a significant factor in an individual's ability to attain success in most aspects (Sulaiman & Noor, 2015). It remains a popular notion in literature and in practice, particularly in psychoeducational and mental health contexts (Ramos-D íz et al., 2019). Various scholars conceptualise EI differently, and there are three generally accepted models in the field. Firstly, EI is introduced by Mayer and Salovey as an ability that could be learned, whereas Bar-On thought it was a personality trait that people possessed. Goleman combined the ideas of both and defined EI as a mix of both abilities and personality traits (Kooker et al., 2007). In this study, the concept of EI as an ability by Mayer and Salovey is adopted.

Mayer and Salovey were the first to formally introduce and conceptualise the term into four dimensions: recognising and conveying self-emotions to others; effectively utilising EI in decision making; understanding others' emotions; and regulating emotions (Mayer et al., 2000; Mayer & Salover, 1997). Their concept of EI is the most widely acknowledged and is widely accepted by scholars and researchers in all fields with empirical evidence (Cabello et al., 2016; Evans et al., 2020; Fernandez-Berrocal & Extremera, 2006; Zeidner et al., 2002). Additionally, it has provided psychological research with the most influential framework as it is theoretically driven and much more detailed (Gohm et al., 2005; Ramos-D íaz & Rodr juez-Fern ández, 2019; Wong & Law, 2002).

People with high EI are able to manage their negative emotions and make good reasoning in response to those emotions in oneself and others, which results in a desirable ending (Mayer et al., 2016; Salovey & Mayer, 1990). They would have more positive life outcomes, such as better physical and mental health, better psychological well-being, academic achievement, and job-related success (Law et al., 2004; Lea et al., 2019; Śmieja et al., 2014; Wong et al., 2007). As opposed to that, a person without sufficient EI is more likely to be dissatisfied with their life due to getting depressed (Schutte et al., 2001).

### Life Satisfaction

Life satisfaction is known as an indicator of an individual's satisfaction in a few life aspects that contribute to part of their subjective well-being (Khalid, 2021). According to Prasoon and Chaturvedi (2016), life satisfaction can be conceptualized as a cognitive aspect of an individual's subjective well-being, and high life satisfaction represents a good quality of life. The role of life satisfaction in people, including students, has been shown in previous studies, in which life satisfaction is associated with various aspects, such as optimism, academic performance, health, self-image, sleep disorders, and others (Darling et al., 2007; Extremera et al., 2009; Samaranayake et al., 2014).

Diener (2000) revealed that most undergraduate students perceived happiness and life satisfaction as more important than money. Based on the model of life satisfaction, satisfaction results from individuals' perception that important needs have been fulfilled (Campbell et al., 1976; Erikson, 1994; Frisch et al., 1992). In this context, the failure to follow and complete academic-related tasks will lead to life dissatisfaction in university students (Schwartz et al., 2005). In contrast, life satisfaction is positively related to learning experiences, which contribute to positive functions of students in academic-related issues, social and health (Fakunmoju et al., 2016; Renshaw & Cohen, 2014; Rissanen, 2015).

### Perceived Stress and Life Satisfaction

In the field of health psychology, stress is a condition of challenge or threat that disrupts the person's life equilibrium (Madebo et al., 2016; Rezaei & Jeddi, 2020). Looking into the undergraduates' perspective, stress is usually related with the academic demands, such as balancing of university and private life, economic issues, and high workload (Stallman & Hurst, 2016). University is widely regarded as one of the most stressful times in students' lives because they have to manage their own affairs (Cress & Lampman, 2007).. They often encounter stress, and this circumstance becomes a factor that hinders their psychological adjustment. Life satisfaction is one of the positive adjustment factors that is affected by the stressful lifestyles of undergraduate students (Çivitci, 2015). If stress in academic institutions is not adequately dealt with, it can have a negative impact, thereby reducing life satisfaction (Lee et al., 2016).

The research by Rezaei and Jeddi (2020) has conclusively shown that perceived stress was one of the main predictors of students' life satisfaction. The more stress a person perceives, the less satisfied they will be with their lives. The result was explained with the transactional model of stress by Lazarus and Folkman (1984b). When demand exceeds an individual's available resources, this imbalance will lead the person to perceive it as stress. Due to this, one's sense of well-being will be threatened by their reactions to stressful situations. Prior to this study, Matheny et al. (2008) also implied that perceived stress was negatively correlated with life satisfaction among the United States and Mexican students with the support of the transactional stress model as well. The findings in both studies were similar to the study conducted by Lee et al. (2016) in the group of South Korean undergraduate students. It has been suggested that an individual is able to enhance life satisfaction provided that they focus on their strengths and available resources, interpret the challenge positively and be confident in their abilities to handle the stressful event (Karademas & Kalantzi-Azizi, 2004).

Moreover, Civitci (2015) reported that life satisfaction is reduced when perceived stress increases in students who have a low sense of belonging in university. Likewise, the relationship between stress and life satisfaction was also investigated in Turkish (Kaya et al., 2015). It was found that perceived stress appears to be negatively related to life satisfaction among 235 undergraduate students. Students who reported feeling more stressed have more negative appraisals to the challenging environmental stimuli towards them. Thus, they are not satisfied with their life which is not supportive.

Stress during university is likely to be sustained and prolonged, which makes students more susceptible to mental health issues, thus adversely influencing their life satisfaction (Cavazos et al., 2010; Chao, 2012; Jenkins et al., 2013). According to Bickford et al. (2019), suicidal thoughts are more common among those who are vulnerable to perceived stress. As a result, it may lead to lower satisfaction in life. Later, in research by Lardier et al. (2020), it was discovered that the higher the stress levels of Hispanic undergraduate students, the lower their life satisfaction. Hence, it is stated that increased stress levels are linked to decreased life satisfaction and vice versa.

The findings in other geographical and cultural contexts such as in South Korea (Lee et al., 2016), in the north-eastern United States (Lardier et al., 2020), in Turkey (Civitci, 2015; Kaya et al., 2015) and the other countries could not be generalized to Malaysia. Hence, this study is needed to examine the relationship between perceived stress and life satisfaction among undergraduates within the Malaysian context.

### **Emotional Intelligence (EI) and Life Satisfaction**

Emotional intelligence (EI) refers to how well the person makes good use of their capacity to adapt, to choose and even to alter the condition via emotional process (Gignac, 2010; Ramachandran et al., 2018). EI has been identified as a central component in studies of positive youth development as it has been connected to well-being (Crane et al., 2016). In the university period, students are in an autonomous environment with a stronger academic focus and less individualized emotional care (Laborde et al., 2018). Hence, it is crucial for students to be able to master the emotions that arise for the sake of their well-being.

In a study, Ramachandran et al. (2018) revealed that the life satisfaction level of undergraduates is mainly influenced by EI. If students had unfavourable feelings and understandings about themselves or others, they would be dissatisfied with their lives. They need inner support, which is a positive EI to perform, thus, to have a better sense of life satisfaction. Besides, other research done by Extremera and Rey (2016) also showed that people with high EI may lead to a higher level of life satisfaction. Their findings are supported by positive psychology concepts, which emphasise the importance of pleasant experiences in achieving better life satisfaction (Sin & Lyubomirsky, 2009). According to the World Happiness Report 2018 by Helliwell et al. (2018), the most unhappy young people were students who were pursuing their education at a tertiary level. Hence, it is vital for students to have this ability to process emotional information effectively. Otherwise, they would have low life satisfaction as they failed to turn negative emotional states into positive ones (Zeidner et al., 2012).

Furthermore, as stated above, Ramachandran et al. (2018) indicated that EI appears to be a major predictor of life satisfaction among undergraduates. They found that the higher the undergraduates' EI, the more satisfied they will be in life. EI among undergraduates were measured by using Schutte Emotional Intelligence Scale (SEIS) with four dimensions, including the perception of emotion, managing others' emotion, social skills and utilising emotions. Similar results have been observed in both the research carried out by Adewumi and Ajayi (2017) as well as Ishaq et al. (2020) although another measurement has been used to examine EI of university students. They used the Wong and Law Emotional Intelligence Scale (WLEIS) consisting of four components. All the components including the SEA, OEA, UOE and ROE are positively correlated with life satisfaction among students.

Conversely, the study by Carvalho et al. (2018) that also measured EI with WLEIS revealed that not all EI components predicted life satisfaction among Spanish healthcare

students over a year. Besides, Holinka (2015) claimed that no significant correlation was found between EI and life satisfaction. The study adopted the Emotional Quotient Inventory: Short (EQ-I: s) developed by Bar-On (2002), which consisted of five subscales. They are Intrapersonal EQ, Interpersonal EQ, Stress Management EQ, Adaptability EQ, and General Mood EQ. The researcher reviewed that the restriction in the EI range in this measurement resulted in an extremely low correlation between variables as none of the participants exceeded the standard mean of EQ-I: s which is 100 (*SD* = 15).

To address the gaps, the present study should be carried out to examine whether EI composed of four components defined by Mayer and Salovey (1997) is the predictor of life satisfaction among Malaysian undergraduates. The four components, namely the SEA, OEA, ROE, and UOE, can be observed by WLEIS. WLEIS is an instrument that has been validated to measure EI with four dimensions in university student samples in Asian as well as European countries (Fukuda et al., 2012; Halimi et al., 2020; Sabbah et al., 2020). For instance, in Hong Kong (Law et al., 2004), in Japan (Fukuda et al., 2011), in South Korea (Fukuda et al., 2012), in Arab (El Ghoudani et al., 2018), in Lebanon (Sabbah et al., 2020) and in India (Rathore & Chadha, 2021).

### Self-Emotion Appraisal (SEA) and Life Satisfaction

Self-emotion appraisal (SEA) is defined as self-perception of one's ability to understand and express emotions in oneself (Mayer & Salovey, 1997). SEA aids in the identification of personal emotions, including their impacts, strengths, and weaknesses, so that a feeling of self-worth may be developed (Zhou & George, 2003). Besides, another term "self-awareness" also means the ability to identify and differentiate one's own feelings, to understand what and why one is experiencing, and to understand what caused the feelings (Goleman, 1995; Strickland, 2000). Similarly, the ability to clearly recognise and comprehend one's own emotions, and the ability to distinguish between different emotions is called emotional clarity (Fernandez-Berrocal et al., 2004; Salovey et al., 1995; Salovey et al., 2002). It shows self-awareness and emotional clarity, expressing the meanings that overlap with those of the SEA. Hence, in the following review, both self-awareness and emotional clarity will be used solely to refer to SEA if needed.

According to Ramachandran et al. (2018), university students who have better selfawareness are able to improve their feelings and will tend to enhance their overall well-being. By perceiving one's own emotions, a student's level of life satisfaction can be increased. Based on Ishaq et al. (2020), a sample of 200 participants from different universities in Pakistan showed that SEA was positively correlated with life satisfaction. In addition, research by Ain et al. (2021) also established that emotional self-awareness positively predicts life satisfaction among Pakistan undergraduates. The findings implied that students who are more conscious of their emotions are more satisfied with their lives. The sample of 350 undergraduates in this study is only from one university in Pakistan, which could not be generalized to the population.

Similar to the previous study (Ain et al., 2021), the sample in the study by Carvalho et al. (2018), 303 healthcare students were also from one university in Spain. However, it is slightly different because they carried out a longitudinal study in which they followed up with the sample after one year. The results also indicated a contrary result that SEA did not predict life satisfaction over a year, which may be due to dramatic changes in students' lives within the one-year period that potentially affect the impact of the EI's components on their well-being. Another study done by Blasco-Belled et al. (2020) stated that emotional clarity was not a significant predictor of life satisfaction among 749 participants. This may be owing to the imbalance of male and female participants, as gender differences might be affected by the personality, social environment, and gender roles of the gender difference.
Since previous research that explored the predictive role of SEA and life satisfaction has shown inconsistent results, this study is needed in the Malaysian context. This is because people's perceptions of emotions vary across the culture of individualism and collectivism (Thingujam, 2011; Zeidner et al., 2002).

# Others' Emotion Appraisal (OEA) and Life Satisfaction

Based on Wong and Law (2002), the capability of an individual to recognize and interpret the emotions of others is known as others' emotion appraisal (OEA). A proper others' emotion appraisal, which includes both observation and interpretation, is the initial step before conscious regulation of emotion (Gross & Thompson, 2007; Joseph & Newman, 2010). In addition, a high level of this capacity will contribute to the vulnerability in perceiving others' thoughts and emotions, as well as the ability to read minds.

OEA was found to predict life satisfaction of students in a research conducted by Carvalho et al. (2018) that involved a sample of 303 medicine, physiotherapy and nursing students. The findings revealed that the students' ability to recognize and interpret the emotions of those close to them and the way they responded to those emotions were significant for making a positive judgement of life satisfaction. Furthermore, some selfdetermination theory assumptions claim that there are basic psychological needs that lead to a healthy and ideal life, which may explain the association between OEA and the positive life appraisal. For instance, a sense of relatedness, which is the process of adaptation and acceptance into a social group that requires the understanding of others, may explain the significant role of OEA in predicting happiness and life satisfaction (Deci & Ryan, 2000).

Moreover, in research by Noor et al. (2021), 200 Malaysian university students were recruited as a sample of the study and an ability-based model by Mayer et al. (1999) was applied. One of the branches of emotion known as perceiving emotion was discussed in this study. Perceiving emotion is defined as the ability to perceive one's own emotions as well as those around them. In this context, OEA is included in this branch of emotion. As stated in the result, there is a significant correlation between perceiving emotion and life satisfaction with the sample of Malaysian public university students (Noor et al., 2021). Hence, the association between OEA and life satisfaction was supported.

#### Use of Emotion (UOE) and Life Satisfaction

Use of emotion (UOE) is commonly applied in the assistance of an individual's performance. It describes an individual's ability to channel their emotions into productive activities and improve personal performance (Carvalho et al., 2018). UOE has been found to be explained using another term, which is "using emotion." It refers to an individual's ability to channel their positive emotion for desired outcomes while reducing negative emotions (Noor et al., 2021).

The predictive role of UOE on life satisfaction was revealed in a study that involved a sample of medicine, physiotherapy and nursing students (Carvalho et al. (2018). Similar to the point mentioned above, the influence of UOE on this positive appraisal of life can be explained by the self-determination theory assumptions, which argue that there are certain psychological needs that lead to a happy and healthy life. In this context, UOE enables an individual to be more productive and leads to self-improvement. Consequently, basic psychological needs such as competency and autonomy can be achieved, which then enhances one's life satisfaction (Deci & Ryan, 2000).

Additionally, UOE was revealed to have a direct and positive influence on life satisfaction due to the significant correlation found between using emotion and life satisfaction in a study by Carvalho et al. (2018). Besides, the predictive role of UOE on life satisfaction was further supported by Di et al. (2020) in a study that involved 525 Chinese university students. Nevertheless, among the EI components, which include SEA, OEA, UOE and ROE, UOE was found to have the strongest relationship with life satisfaction (Gavin-Chocano et al., 2020).

#### Regulation of Emotion (ROE) and Life Satisfaction

Based on Eisenberg and Spinrad (2004), emotional regulation refers to the process of initiating, sustaining, modifying and intensity of internal feeling states and motives, typically in the service of achieving one's goals. In the 21st century, development of cognitive and emotional abilities of undergraduate students are viewed as important skills to confront varieties of problems which may be challenging and stressful (Saddki et al., 2017). Research has looked into the aspects that contribute to individuals' protection and well-being in the university setting by combining cognitive and social-emotional skills (Gavin-Chocano et al., 2020). Finding shows that those appropriate skills of emotion regulation, as well as their learning and growth, may function as a preventive component against negative emotional charge, which may lead to higher life satisfaction (Geßler et al., 2020).

According to Verzeletti et al. (2016), they applied a theoretical framework named "process model of emotional regulation" by Gross (1998). Two strategies, including cognitive reappraisal (CR) and expressive suppression (ES) are focused in this model. CR is thought to be a useful method for altering the emotional impact of a situation by reinterpreting an emotion-elicit situation. In contrast, ES involves a form of response modulation by inhibiting the current emotion-expressive behaviour in the circumstances (Verzeletti et al., 2016). In this perspective, CR is believed to be positively correlated with psychological health, including a higher level of life satisfaction due to the positive emotional regulation while ES is being correlated with a lower level of life satisfaction due to the incompetency in regulating emotion positively (Haga et al., 2009).

The effect of these two strategies is also revealed in other past studies, in which adolescents who showed a higher preference for CR were reported at a higher level of

positive feelings and life satisfaction than those who showed a lower preference for CR (Balzarotti et al., 2010; Haga et al., 2009; John & Gross, 2004). Besides, in comparison to non-suppressors, suppressors reported lower positive affect, life satisfaction, social support, and higher negative affect and depression, which is consistent with the findings mentioned above (Balzarotti et al., 2010; Gross & John, 2003; Haga et al., 2009; Nolen-Hoeksema & Aldao, 2011). Apart from that, the other two types of emotional regulation strategies were introduced by Esmaeilinasab et al. (2016) in the study, which are positive emotion regulation and negative emotion regulation. A significant relationship between positive emotion regulation strategies and life satisfaction was found. In this context, the predictive role of UOE on life satisfaction is supported.

However, the findings reported by Carvalho et al. (2018) were in contrast with the studies mentioned above, which showed that ROE did not predict life satisfaction. In addition, another research conducted by Purnamaningsih (2017) with a sample of 339 psychology students also stated that emotion regulation strategies were not the predictors for life satisfaction. The inconsistency of results may be due to the imbalanced number of male and female participants which are 75 males and 264 females since both populations have different personalities and ways to regulate emotion.

#### **Theoretical Framework**

# Broaden-and-Build Theory of Positive Emotions

Broaden-and-build Theory of Positive Emotions was first introduced by Barbara Fredrickson in 1998. This theory proposed that positive emotions help individuals in widening awareness, broadening experiences and building resources in themselves over time (Fredrickson, 2001). It stated that one's momentary thought-action repertoire can be broaden by positive emotions, which include joy, interest, contentment and love. These positive emotions contribute to the urge to play, to explore, to savour and integrate, as well as a recurring cycle of these urges within close, safe relationships respectively. To this extent, the broadened habitual modes of thinking or acting will promote exploratory of creative ideas, actions and social bonds, thus, building one's personal resources, regardless physical, intellectual, social and psychological resources. Consequently, these resources may contribute to the odds of successful coping and survival in future. Fredrickson (2004) argued that unlike negative emotions that bring direct and immediate adaptive advantages in life-threatening situations, positive emotions that broaden one's minds bring indirect and long-term benefits by enduring personal resources.

The expansive cognitive changes will contribute to the decision-making and actions of people in different areas, including intellectual, personal, and social perspectives (Thompson et al., 2021). In other words, positive emotions will affect cognitive thoughts and tend to contribute to individuals' personal development, which includes a higher level of well-being and life satisfaction (Fredrickson, 2013). In contrast, negative emotions are reported to narrow thought-action repertoires, which means people's thoughts about possible actions will be limited by negative emotions (Burns et al., 2019; Fredrickson & Branigan, 2005). Therefore, this model is used to explain the predicting roles of perceived stress and emotional intelligence on life satisfaction.

Positive emotions are more frequently experienced by people with low perceived stress and high EI (Du et al., 2018; Krieger et al., 2015; S ánchez-Álvarez et al., 2016). Past findings showed that negative emotions often arose from psychological stress, in which people often experienced a complex range of negative emotions in challenging surroundings (Richardson, 2017; Wang et al., 2016). Daily stress was revealed to have a stronger association with negative affect as compared to positive affect, which means stress contributed to higher negative emotions and lower positive emotions (Dunkley et al., 2017). Thus, in contrast, those with no or low perceived stress tend to have higher levels of happiness (Haghdoost et al., 2020).

On the other hand, high EI refers to the ability to perceive, understand, use and regulate emotions. This ability promotes and even maintains positive emotions over time as it helps individuals choose coping strategies and replace negative emotions with positive ones (Özer et al., 2016; Zeidner et al., 2009; Zeidner et al., 2012). Hence, the greater positive emotions aroused in people with low perceived stress and high EI will contribute to individuals' possible cognitions and behaviours in particular situations and lead to higher life satisfaction (Fredrickson et al., 2008).

# **Conceptual Framework**



Figure 1.1. Predictors of life satisfaction among undergraduate students in Malaysia.

The figure above shows that perceived stress, emotional intelligence (EI) and the subdimension of EI are the predictors of life satisfaction among undergraduate students in Malaysia. The independent variables (IV) for this study are perceived stress, EI and subdimension of EI, which includes self-emotion appraisal (SEA), others' emotion appraisal (OEA), use of emotion (UOE) and regulation of emotion (ROE) while the dependent variable (DV) is life satisfaction.

#### **Chapter III**

#### Methodology

#### **Research Design**

The current study was a quantitative, descriptive, and cross-sectional study design that examined life satisfaction among undergraduates in Malaysia based on five predictors, which included perceived stress, and sub-dimension of EI. Descriptive studies aim to describe the characteristics and phenomena of a population without manipulating any of the variables (Grove et al., 2012; Siedlecki, 2020). A cross-sectional study design is a type of observational study with fewer ethical issues. Since the data is only collected once on a population and no follow-up is required, it is both time and cost-effective (Setia, 2016; Wang & Cheng, 2020; Zangirolami-Raimundo, 2018).

Furthermore, questionnaires or interviews are often used in many cross-sectional studies, while surveys or observations are also mostly used in descriptive studies (Atmowardoyo, 2018; Cook & Cook, 2016; Kesmodel, 2018; Kim et al., 2017; Wang & Zheng, 2020). To reach the target group in this study, a self-reported online survey was used for the data collection. This is because interviews and observations are inconvenient and time-consuming, yet training is required for interviewers and observers to avoid inaccurate data collection (Wang & Cheng, 2020; Siedlecki, 2020). Moreover, an online questionnaire can be quickly administered to a large group of samples with little effort and expense (Demetriou et al., 2015).

#### **Research Sample**

#### Sampling Method

A non-probability sampling method, which is purposive sampling technique, was applied to recruit participants. It is a judgement sampling, in which the participants are selected according to the qualities they possess (Etikan et al., 2016). It relies on the judgement of researchers to determine the sample selection to be involved in the study (Sharma, 2017). Thus, not everyone has an equal chance to participate in the study as the researchers will first analyse the characteristics demanded. Due to the large number of people widespread in Malaysia, this sampling method was applied since it is time saving and costeffective, which leads to greater convenience.

Apart from that, a snowball sampling technique was used in this study as well. It refers to a non-probability sampling method that recruits future samples based on the primary existing samples (Sharma, 2017). Due to the limited ability to recruit undergraduate students with specific criteria across states, the snowball sampling method has been applied so that the existing samples reached by the researchers can ask their peers who fulfilled the criteria to participate in the study.

Hence, the combination of the purposive sampling method and the snowball sampling method is effective to help the researchers reach targeted participants, especially during the pandemic. The questionnaires were initially distributed among peers that fulfilled all the criteria. Then, they were encouraged to send the questionnaires to the people in their social circles who possessed the required criteria as well.

# Sample Size

G\*Power version 3.1 is a general power analysis application that is used to calculate sample size and analyse the power in research studies (Faul et al., 2009; Verma & Verma, 2020). According to Cohen (1988), small, medium, and large effects are represented by effect sizes of .02, .15, and .35, correspondingly. The sample size was generated using an effect size of .30, a statistical power level of .95, and an alpha error probability level of .05 with five predictors. A minimum number of 72 targeted participants was generated (refer to Appendix A). However, it is suggested to add 10 to 15% of the minimum sample to avoid the likelihood of inaccuracies or invalid data (Fairbairn & Kessler, 2015). Hence, this study opted to add

15% (72 x 15% = 10.8) of the targeted sample size computed by G\*Power, resulting in a minimum sample size of 83 (72 + 11 = 83).

#### **Participants**

The targeted sample in this study was undergraduates in Malaysia and several inclusion criteria were set. First, the participants, regardless male or female, must be Malaysian undergraduate students aged between 19 to 24 years old. This age range is determined based on past studies' common range for bachelor's degree programmes (Irfan et al., 2019; Jovanović & Joshanloo, 2021; Ye et al., 2018). Next, they should be studying in public or private universities, in Malaysia. In other words, postgraduate students, matriculation, foundation, and diploma students as well as those who are studying abroad are excluded.

#### **Research Location**

Since undergraduate students in Malaysia were targeted, the recruitment of participants has been conducted across states. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, participants were recruited by using online surveys. The questionnaires were distributed by a survey link through social media, such as Facebook, WhatsApp, Microsoft Teams, and others.

# **Research Procedure**

#### **Ethics** Approval

Prior to the collection of data, ethical approval to conduct the research was acquired from the UTAR Scientific and Ethical Review Committee (SERC) with the reference number of the ethical approval letter, U/SERC/299/2021 (see Appendix B).

#### Procedure

An online survey form that was created using Qualtrics has been distributed to participants from different universities through online platforms, including Microsoft Teams, Facebook, Instagram, and WhatsApp. The research topic, research purpose, as well as the informed consent were emphasized on the front page of the online survey. The informed consent aimed to acknowledge the terms and conditions of the survey, in which participants were anonymous, and their responses were kept confidential. Respondents were given the right to reject or withdraw from the survey whenever they wanted.

When informed consent had been provided, the respondents proceeded to fill in their demographic information, educational level, and the name of their university. Respondents who did not fulfil the criteria needed were stopped from proceeding to the questionnaire. For those who met the inclusion criteria, they continued to complete the questionnaire after filling in the demographic information. The questionnaire consisted of three instruments, which are the Perceived Stress Scale (PSS-10) by Cohen et al. (1983), the Wong and Law Emotional Intelligence Scale (WLEIS) by Wong and Law (2002) and the Satisfaction with Life Scale (SWLS) by Diener et al. (1985). The data collected were analysed using SPSS software and incomplete data were eliminated during the process.

#### **Pilot Study**

A pilot study enhances the quality and efficiency of research by reflecting all the procedures and plays a role in validating the feasibility of the main study (Benger et al., 2016). In this context, a pilot study with a sample size of 33 was conducted before proceeding to the actual study. As stated by Browne (1995) and Conroy (2015), 30 participants are the minimum requirement for a survey research pilot study. The survey questionnaires created using Qualtrics were distributed online to Malaysian undergraduates. After that, the collected data was analysed to review the reliability of instruments for each variable.

# Reliability of Instruments for Each Variable in Pilot Study and Actual Study

A basic rule of thumb for reliability, according to Hair et al. (2016), is that a Cronbach's alpha value of less than .6 suggests low reliability, below .7 indicates moderate reliability, below .8 implies good reliability, below .9 signifies great reliability, and value

32

above .9 displays excellent reliability. As shown in Table 3.1, the reliability for each instrument in the pilot study shows excellent reliability, as all the Cronbach's alpha values were above .9. In the actual study, each instrument showed good and also excellent reliability, with the Cronbach's alpha ranging from .8 to .9.

# Table 3.1

*Reliability of Instruments in Pilot Study* (n = 33) *and in Actual Study* (n = 110)

		Pilot Study	Actual Study
Variable	Number of items	Cronbacl	n's alpha
Perceived Stress	10	.908	.801
Emotional Intelligence	16	.956	.874
Self-Emotion Appraisal (SEA)	4	.942	.803
Others' Emotion Appraisal	4	.970	.854
(OEA)			
Use of Emotion (UOE)	4	.935	.856
Regulation of Emotion (ROE)	4	.976	.904
Life Satisfaction	5	.944	.850

# Instrumentation

The survey questionnaire consists of four sections, and thereby, respondents will be required to spend approximately 15 minutes completing the questionnaire. The four sections include Part A (demographic data), Part B (Perceived Stress Scale, PSS-10), Part C (Wong and Law Emotional Intelligence Scale, WLEIS) and Part D (Satisfaction with Life Scale, SWLS). In Part A, the demographic data that has been asked for includes age, gender, ethnicity, religion, current education level, educational institution, course name, and current year and semester (See Appendix C).

#### Perceived Stress Scale (PSS-10)

Perceived Stress Scale (PSS-10) was created by Cohen et al. (1983). It is mostly adopted to measure an individual's perception of life stress in the previous month. There are a total of 10 items with a 5-point Likert scale ranging from *never* (0) to *very often* (4). A sample item is "In the last month, how often have you felt nervous and stressed?" The scale has four reverse items, which are items 4, 5, 7, and 8 which need to be calculated inversely, for example, 0=4, 1=3, 2=2, 3=1 and 4=0. One of the reverse items is "In the last month, how often have you been able to control irritations in your life?". The total score is calculated by summing the scores of all items. A score that ranges from 0 to 13 is considered a low stress level, 14 to 26 is considered a moderate stress level, and 27 to 40 is considered a high perceived stress level. The reliability coefficient of this scale is 0.842 while the convergent validity is from 0.289 to 0.608 (Maroufizadeh et al., 2018).

#### Wong and Law Emotional Intelligence Scale (WLEIS)

Wong and Law Emotional Intelligence Scale (WLEIS) was developed by Wong and Law (2002) to measure an individual's emotional intelligence from 4 dimensions. It was a set of 16 items with 4 sub-dimensions, which are SEA (item 1 to 4), OEA (item 5 to 8), UOE (item 9 to 12) and ROE (item 13 to 16). It used a 7-point Likert scale ranging from *strongly disagree* (1) to *strongly agree* (7). The overall score is calculated by averaging the score obtained from items 1 to 16. Examples of items for each dimension are as follows: "I really understand what I feel." (SEA), "I am a good observer of others' emotions." (OEA), "I am a self-motivating person." (UOE), and "I have good control of my own emotions." (ROE). The reliability coefficient for the overall instrument is 0.91 (Sulaiman & Noor, 2015). All dimensions showed high reliability which are SEA=0.83, OEA=0.92, ROE=0.85 and UOE=0.89. The validity of WLEIS is 0.38 (Pacheco et al., 2019).

#### Satisfaction with Life Scale (SWLS)

Satisfaction with Life Scale (SWLS) is generated by Diener et al. (1985) to measure the respondents' life satisfaction. It consists of 5 items with a 7-point Likert scale, from *strongly agree* (7) to *strongly disagree* (1). The total score is calculated by summing up all the scores obtained. One of the example items is "The conditions of my life are excellent.". The well-being of the respondents can be divided into six categories, the higher the score, the higher the level of life satisfaction. Respondents who score from 5 to 9 (extremely dissatisfied), 10 to 14 (dissatisfied), 15 to 19 (slightly dissatisfied), 20 to 24 (slightly satisfied), 25 to 29 (satisfied) and lastly 30 to 35 (extremely satisfied). The reliability coefficient for this scale is 0.89 while the discriminant validity is 0.874 (Dirzyte et al., 2021; Hinz et al., 2018).

# **Data Cleaning**

The researcher received a total of 170 responses, however, 25 of them were eliminated due to not fulfilling the inclusion criteria, which included Form Six students, diploma students, postgraduate students, and students studying abroad. In addition, 12 responses that were incomplete were deleted. An additional 23 cases that were discovered to be univariate outliers were later removed as well. Finally, the study's final sample consisted of 110 responses.

# **Data Analysis**

After collecting the data, the statistical software, SPSS version 23, was used to perform the data analysis. First of all, demographic information of respondents, such as age, gender, ethnicity, education level, and others, is statistically analysed by descriptive statistics. Descriptive statistics is a statistical analysis, which summarises the raw data from a sample or population (Kaur et al., 2018). Mean and standard deviation of respondents' demographic information was computed.

Next, an assumption of normality test for each variable was performed to determine if the data are normally distributed. The test of normality is a crucial step for continuous data since the decision on using parametric or nonparametric test for data analysis depends on the distribution normality status. When the data has a normal distribution, parametric test is used, or else, nonparametric test is applied (Mishra et al., 2019).

As the distribution was considered normal, a parametric test, which is multiple linear regression (MLR), was decided to be used in the current study. Before the MLR analysis, the assumptions test for MLR was carried out to ensure that no assumptions were violated, as violations could lead to unreliable results and Type 1 or Type 2 error (Osborne & Waters, 2002). Then, after confirming that both the assumption of normality test and assumptions of MLR showed no violation, MLR analysis was conducted to test whether perceived stress, and sub-dimensions of EI significantly predict life satisfaction.

# Assumption of Normality

The indicators of normality test include skewness, kurtosis, histogram, Quantile-Quantile (Q-Q) plot, and the Kolmogorov-Smirnov (K-S) test. Skewness and kurtosis are the measures of symmetry and peakiness of a distribution (Mishra et al., 2019). The skewness and kurtosis values must be within the range of  $\pm 2$  (Gravetter & Wallnau, 2014). When the skewness and kurtosis values are both zero, the distribution is symmetrically normal (Mishra et al., 2019).

Besides, a histogram is a graphical means to determine the shape of the probability distribution of data. If the histogram shows roughly a bell-shape, the data can be assumed to be normally distributed (Barton & Peat, 2014; Orcan, 2020). A Q-Q plot is also a graphical method, which is a scatterplot consisting of observed and expected quantiles plotted against

each other to see if the data is derived from the same population (Mishra et al., 2019). If the data is normally distributed, the observed data should fall along and closely to the expected score, which is the reference line.

Additionally, the Kolmogorov-Smirnov (K-S) test and the Shapiro-Wilk (S-W) test are well-known for determining normality. However, the K-S test was chosen to test normality in this study as it is better for sample sizes of 50 or more, whereas the Shapiro-Wilk test is preferable for sample sizes of less than 50 (Mishra et al., 2019; Razali & Wah, 2011). It is expected to have a p-value of >.05, so that the null hypothesis will not be rejected (Miot, 2017; Mishra et al., 2019). This indicates the data distribution of the sample is the same as the population distribution.

# Assumptions for Multiple Linear Regression (MLR)

According to Berry (1993), the key assumptions for MLR include type of variable, independent, multivariate outliers, multicollinearity, independence of errors, linearity of residual, normality of residual, and homoscedasticity. The first assumption, variable types, assumes that all the predictors must be either quantitative or categorical, and the outcome variables must be continuous. The second assumption, which is independent, requires that the response data must not rely on each other.

To detect the multivariate outliers, which is the third assumption, three residual statistics: Mahalanobis distance, Cook's distance, and Centered Leverage Value are used. Mahalanobis distance measures the distance between an observation and the distribution mean by the number of standard deviations (Ghorbani, 2019). The value of the Mahalanobis distance in a 100-sample size exceeding 15 could be an issue (Barnett & Lewis, 1978). Cook's distance is used to determine the effect of a single data point on the regression model when performing least squares fit, and the Centered Leverage value, which is also known as the hat value, is a measure of the distance between the observed value of an independent

variable and another observed value (Salvatores et al., 2013). Cook's distance value should be less than one, while the Leverage value should be less than the value calculated with this formula,  $\frac{2(p+1)}{n}$  (Cook & Weisberg, 1982; Barrett & Gray, 1997).

The fourth assumption, multicollinearity, requires a low correlation between independent variables. It is measured by tolerance and variance inflation factor (VIF), which should not be greater .1 and less than 10 respectively (Miles, 2014). Tolerance is the amount of variance of a predictor that is not explained by other predictors. VIF, however, is the opposite of tolerance (Senaviratna & Cooray, 2019). Furthermore, independence of errors, the fifth assumption, implies that residuals should not be highly correlated but scattered randomly (Hadi & Chatterjee, 2015). It can be tested with the Durbin-Watson test which the value falls between 1.5 and 2.5 is desirable (Miles, 2014; Williams et al., 2013). Lastly, another three assumptions, which are linearity of residual, normality of residual, and homoscedasticity, were examined by the residuals pattern on the scatterplot. The residuals should be in a linear relationship, distributed randomly and evenly, and have the same variance at each level of predictors (Berry, 1993; Osborne & Waters, 2002).

# Conclusion

This study was a quantitative research that applied a cross-sectional study design in examining whether perceived stress, EI, and sub-dimension of EI predict life satisfaction among undergraduates in Malaysia. The survey questionnaire was sent online to the respondents who are Malaysian undergraduates aged between 19 and 24 years old. The total sample size of the study was 110 respondents across Malaysia. A non-probability sampling method and a snowball sampling method were adopted to recruit participants. In addition, three instruments were applied in this present study. They were the Perceived Stress Scale (PSS-10), the Wong and Law Emotional Intelligence Scale (WLEIS), and the Satisfaction with Life Scale (SWLS). Before the actual study, ethical approval was obtained, a pilot study was carried out to confirm that the main study is feasible. After the data collection, SPSS was used to perform statistical analysis.

#### **Chapter IV**

# Results

#### **Descriptive Statistics**

Table 4.1 shows that the present study collected data from a total of 110 undergraduate respondents as a final sample ranging in age from 19 to 24 years old (M =21.72, SD = .847). About 43.6 % of respondents were males (n = 48), and majority of them, which was about 56.4% were females (n = 62). The differences in sample size between male and female was 14. Among the 110 respondents, 70.9% were Chinese (n = 78), 17.3% were Malay (n = 19), and 11.8% were Indian (n = 13). More than half of them were Chinese female. There were 67.3% of respondents were Buddhists (n = 74), minority of them, in which 17.3% were Muslim (n = 19), 10.9% were Hindu (n = 12) while 4.5% were Christian (n = 5). Other demographic information of respondents, such as current education level, education institutions, course name, and current year and semester are shown in Appendix D.

# Table 4.1

	п	%	М	SD
Age	110		21.720	.847
Gender				
Male	48	43.600		
Female	62	56.400		
Ethnicity				
Chinese	78	70.900		
Malay	19	17.300		
Indian	13	11.800		
Religion				

Demographic Information of Respondents

# PERCEIVED STRESS, EI AND LIFE SATISFACTION

Buddha	74	67.300	
Islam	19	17.300	
Hindu	12	10.900	
Christian	5	4.500	

*Note.* n = sample size; M = mean; SD = standard deviation

Besides, the mean and standard deviation of dependent variables (perceived stress, SEA, OEA, UOE, and ROE) and independent variable (life satisfaction) were calculated with the sample size of 110 (see Table 4.2).

# Table 4.2

# Descriptive Statistics of Each Variable

Variable	п	%	М	SD
Perceived Stress	110		17.380	5.286
Low (≤ 17.38)	52	47.300		
High (> 17.38)	58	52.700		
Emotional Intelligence				
Self-Emotion Appraisal (SEA)	110		22.120	3.073
Low (≤ 22.12)	52	47.300		
High (> 22.12)	58	52.700		
Others' Emotion Appraisal (OEA)	110		21.650	3.102
Low (≤21.65)	55	50.000		
High (> 21.65)	55	50.000		
Use of Emotion (UOE)	110		20.950	3.490
Low (≤ 20.95)	52	47.300		
High (> 20.95)	58	52.700		
Regulation of Emotion (ROE)	110		19.470	4.533

Low (≤ 19.47)	50	45.500		
High (> 19.47)	60	54.500		
Life Satisfaction	110		23.750	4.832
Low (≤ 23.75)	50	45.500		
High (> 23.75)	60	54.500		

*Note.* n = sample size; M = mean; SD = standard deviation

#### **Assumption of Normality**

#### Univariate Outliers

In this study, the boxplot was used to identify univariate outliers. There were 23 cases deleted from the total of 170 because they were univariate outliers (see Appendix E).

# Skewness and Kurtosis

The acceptable limits for skewness and kurtosis value, according to Gravetter and Wallnau (2014), are ±2. As shown in Table 4.3, the values of skewness and kurtosis of the six variables were within the acceptable range, indicating a normal distribution. The data of perceived stress, OEA and UOE were slightly positively skewed. However, data of SEA, ROE and life satisfaction were slightly negatively skewed. Hence, there are no violations skewness and kurtosis in any of the variables.

# Table 4.3

#### Skewness and Kurtosis

Variable	Skewness	Kurtosis	
Perceived Stress	.094	459	
Emotional Intelligence			
Self-Emotion Appraisal (SEA)	351	473	
Others' Emotion Appraisal (OEA)	.048	318	

#### PERCEIVED STRESS, EI AND LIFE SATISFACTION

Use of Emotion (UOE)	.021	251
Regulation of Emotion (ROE)	363	504
Life Satisfaction	332	515

# Histogram

Each histogram of the six variables were in the bell-shaped and symmetrically normal curve, showing a good normality (see Appendix F). All the variables show no violation on histogram.

# Quantile-Quantile (Q-Q) Plot

On the Q-Q plot of each variable, almost all the observed scores fall closely and exactly on the diagonal line, indicating good normality (see Appendix G). As a result, no violation is visible on the Q-Q plot for any of the six variables.

# Kolmogorov-Smirnov (K-S) Test

Based on Mishra et al. (2019), the distribution is normal when the significant value is greater than .05 in Kolmogorov-Smirnov test. Table 4.4 shows that perceived stress and UOE were found normally distributed with a significant value of p > .05. SEA, OEA, ROE, and life satisfaction, however, were found to be non-normally distributed, with a significant value of p < .05. As a result, SEA, OEA, ROE, and life satisfaction show violations in the K-S test.

# Table 4.4

#### Kolmogorov-Smirnov Test

	Kolmogorov-Smirnov		
Variable	Statistic df		Sig.
Perceived Stress	.080	110	.078
Emotional Intelligence			
Self-Emotion Appraisal (SEA)	.148	110	.000

#### PERCEIVED STRESS, EI AND LIFE SATISFACTION

Others' Emotion Appraisal (OEA)	.111	110	.002
Use of Emotion (UOE)	.082	110	.068
Regulation of Emotion (ROE)	.092	110	.024
Life Satisfaction	.093	110	.020

## Summary of Assumption of Normality

Perceived stress and UOE were found to have no violations in skewness, kurtosis, histogram, Q-Q plot, and K-S test. However, SEA, OEA, ROE, and life satisfaction were found to be violated in the K-S test out of the five indicators under the assumption of normality. Since another four indicators have not been identified to have violation, it can be claimed that the distribution meets the assumption of normality.

# Assumptions for Multiple Linear Regression (MLR)

# Type of Variables

In MLR analysis, the dependent variables must be continuous or categorical, and the independent variables must be continuous (Berry, 1993; Tripepi et al., 2011). This assumption was met in this study as all the variables were continuous variables.

# Multivariate Outliers

In Table 4.5, there were five potential outlier cases that exceeded the standard deviation of two. To determine if they were outliers, three residual statistics, including Mahalanobis distance, Cook's distance, and Centered Leverage value were used. According to Barnett and Lewis (1978), the value of Mahalanobis distance's value of a 100-sample size should not exceed 15. Cook and Weisberg (1982) proposed that a Cook's distance value greater than one could be considered as undesirable. Furthermore, the Leverage value, according to Barrett and Gray (1997), should not exceed the value calculated with this formula,  $\frac{2(p+1)}{n}$ . The leverage value in this study is 0.109, which was obtained from  $\frac{2(5+1)}{110}$ .

Therefore, there are no multivariate outliers and influential cases in the data as five potential outlier cases were within the benchmark of three residual statistics.

# Table 4.5

Case Number	Mahalanobis Distance	Cook's Distance	Centered Leverage Value
2	7.394	.074	.068
69	1.826	.021	.017
83	4.866	.054	.045
88	5.329	.048	.049
108	.560	.016	.005

# **Multicollinearity**

Berry (1993) noted that low inter-correlations between predictors should be assumed for MLR analysis. Tolerance and variance inflation factor (VIF) values should be greater than .1 and less than 10 respectively (Miles, 2014; Williams et al., 2013). By referring to Table 4.6, none of the variables violated the cut-off value in either of the measures, which are tolerance and VIF.

# Table 4.6

# Collinearity Statistics

Model	Variable	Tolerance	VIF
1	(Constant)		
	Perceived Stress	.729	1.372
	Emotional Intelligence		
	Self-Emotion Appraisal (SEA)	.739	1.353
	Others' Emotion Appraisal (OEA)	.791	1.264

Use of Emotion (UOE)	.746	1.341
Regulation of Emotion (ROE)	.719	1.391

*Note.* Dependent variable = Life Satisfaction

# Independence of Error

Durbin-Watson was used to examine the assumption of MLR which is independence of errors. Based on Miles (2014) and Williams et al. (2013), Durbin-Watson value between 1.5 and 2.5 shows no violation. The value of 1.878 shown in Table 4.7, indicating that it did not violate the assumption of independence of errors.

# Table 4.7

#### Independence of Errors

	Model	Durbin-Watson
1		1.878

*Note.* Dependent variable = Life Satisfaction

#### Linearity of Residual, Normality of Residual, and Homoscedasticity

Figure 4.1 shows that there was a linear relationship among residuals. The residuals were distributed randomly and evenly. Besides, the variances among residuals were also constant. Hence, the scatterplot shows that all the assumptions are met.



# Figure 4.1 Scatterplot of Standardized Predicted Value against Standardized Residual. Summary of Assumptions for Multiple Linear Regression (MLR)

All the assumptions of MLR analysis shows no violation and all of them are met.

# Multiple Linear Regression (MLR) Analysis

Multiple linear regression was used to examine whether perceived stress, SEA, OEA, UOE, and ROE were significantly predicted life satisfaction among undergraduates in Malaysia. Table 4.8 shows that the model was statistically significant, *F* (5, 104) = 11.307, *p* < .001. A total of 32.1% of the variances in life satisfaction were explained by perceived stress, SEA, OEA, UOE, and ROE. It is solely UOE ( $\beta$  = .311, *p* = .001) and ROE ( $\beta$  = .200, *p* = .034) were found to significantly predict of life satisfaction, while perceived stress ( $\beta$  = -.152, *p* = .103), SEA ( $\beta$  = .106, *p* = .252), and OEA ( $\beta$  = .060, *p* = .499) did not. Furthermore, the findings revealed that only perceived stress negatively predicted life satisfaction, whereas the other predictors, SEA, OEA, UOE, and ROE, positively predicted life satisfaction (see Table 4.9).

#### Table 4.8

Model		df	F	Sig.	Adjusted R Square
1	Regression	5	11.307	.000	.321
	Residual	104			
	Total	109			

Result of Regression Model

Note. Dependent variable = Life satisfaction. Predictors = Perceived stress, self-emotion appraisal, others' emotion appraisal, use of emotion and regulation of emotion.

# Table 4.9

Result of Regression Coefficient

Model	Variable	Std. β	t	Sig.

1	(Constant)		1.555	.123
	Perceived Stress	152	-1.646	.103
	Emotional Intelligence			
	Self-Emotion Appraisal (SEA)	.106	1.151	.252
	Others' Emotion Appraisal (OEA)	.060	.678	.499
	Use of Emotion (UOE)	.311	3.405	.001
	Regulation of Emotion (ROE)	.200	2.152	.034

# **Summary of Results**

In summary, as shown in Table 4.10, all the hypotheses were supported by the current study.

# **Table 4.10**

Summary of Results

	Hypotheses	Decision
H <sub>1</sub> :	Perceived stress negatively predicts life satisfaction among	Supported
	undergraduates in Malaysia.	
H <sub>2</sub> :	Self-emotion appraisal (SEA) positively predicts life	Supported
	satisfaction among undergraduates in Malaysia.	
H3:	Others' emotion appraisal (OEA) positively predicts life	Supported
	satisfaction among undergraduates in Malaysia.	
H4:	Use of emotion (UOE) positively predicts life satisfaction	Supported
	among undergraduates in Malaysia.	
H5:	Regulation of emotion (ROE) positively predicts life	Supported
	satisfaction among undergraduates in Malaysia.	

#### **Chapter V**

#### Discussion

# H<sub>1</sub>: Perceived stress negatively predicts life satisfaction among undergraduates in Malaysia.

First of all, the hypothesis is supported in the present study. The findings showed that people who have high perceived stress will result in low life satisfaction. It was consistent with the past findings which stated that perceived stress was a negative predictor of life satisfaction (Lee et al., 2016; Civitci, 2015; Ishaq et al., 2020). This may be contributed by a level of self-efficacy that was believed to be one of the reasons that influenced the level of perceived stress and life satisfaction (Lee et al., 2016).

Self-efficacy refers to a conviction in an individual's capacity to implement coping ability of stress management in changing and demanding environments (Bandura, 1977). In this context, people's perceptions of their present life conditions as very stressful or frightening may have a negative impact on their judgments of their own ability to deal in difficult situations (Cho & Kim, 2014; Rayle et al, 2005). In other words, as people perceive their circumstances as manageable and positively challenging, they will gain confidence in their efforts to manage the obstacles of environmental stressors. The positive perception of present situation, thus lead to improved life satisfaction (Lee et al., 2016).

Moreover, resilience may be another reason to explain why perceived stress can negatively predict life satisfaction. The word "resilience" is defined as the need to identify one's ability to resist stress and negative experiences and it has become more popular in clinical, corporate, and educational contexts (Hjemdal et al., 2006). Individuals' well-being and life satisfaction were dependent on their capacity to recover from unpleasant emotional experiences and adjust flexibly to stressful circumstances (Tugade & Fredrickson, 2004). Those who had high psychological resilience exhibited lower reactivity to stressful events, so they were easier to rebound from adversity (Ong et al., 2006). As a result, the level of life satisfaction increased (Tugade & Fredrickson, 2004).

# H2: Self-emotion appraisal (SEA) positively predicts life satisfaction among undergraduates in Malaysia.

Based on the findings of the study, the hypothesis was supported, which mentioned that higher self-emotion appraisal (SEA) will contribute to higher life satisfaction. The finding was consistent with the past studies, stating that SEA positively predicted life satisfaction (S ánchez-Álvarez et al., 2015; Extremera et al., 2011a, b; Extremera & Fern ández-Berrocal, 2005). According to the result of a study conducted by Blasco-Belled et al. (2020), emotional clarity was found to have a significant relationship with life satisfaction and happiness. It claimed that those who were able to recognise their emotions and fix their negative emotional states had a higher level of life satisfaction (Salovey et al., 2002).

Delhom et al. (2017) suggested that emotional clarity would help with fluid thinking and adaptive behaviour and thus became a key predictor of life satisfaction (S ánchez-Álvarez et al., 2015; Extremera et al., 2011a, b). Fluid thinking which also known as fluid intelligence, is a concept that describes the capacity to reason, engage with the environment in a flexible manner, perceive patterns, and solve issues without relying on particular prior knowledge or experience (Cochrane et al., 2019). It may also operate as a protective factor against many mental diseases, such as depression (Lloyd et al., 2012). Individuals who were able to accurately detect their feelings and believed they can improve their mood states may focus their cognitive effort on coping and reducing the impact of stressful situations (Salovey et al., 2002). Hence, those who can recognise and understand emotional states and manage their activities individually were more likely to promote positive affect, avoid negative affect, and feel satisfied with their life (Mayer & Salovey, 1997). Next, the importance of SEA in predicting life satisfaction can also be explained by the self-esteem level. In other words, individuals who have high SEA will lead to high levels of self-esteem and resulting in high life satisfaction. This is because when SEA contributes to a high level of self-esteem, it will make the person proud himself (Gonzalez-Pienda & Nunez, 2002; Owens, 1992). In all cultures studied, self-esteem has been proven to predict strongly subjective well-being (Campbell, 1981; Diener & Diener, 1995).

In the past study, it was stated that self-esteem refers to a self-reflective evaluation (Cheung et al., 2015), which acted as a strong predictor for happiness and reduction of negative thoughts and stress (Tracy et al., 2009). As stated in Patel et al. (2018), a significant relationship was shown between self-esteem and life satisfaction conducted among university students. This study showed that high self-esteem reflected high life satisfaction. Since individuals' overall assessment of their quality of life is based on their own set of criteria, they might have a belief that they are progressing toward significant life objectives. **H3: Others' emotion appraisal (OEA) positively predicts life satisfaction among undergraduates in Malaysia.** 

The third hypothesis was also supported based on the findings. The finding indicated that a high level of others' emotion appraisal (OEA) will contribute to a high level of life satisfaction. This was consistent with the past studies which stated that there was a positive relationship between OEA and life satisfaction (Doktorova et al., 2020; Sari çam et al., 2015; Morelli et al., 2015). Referring to Cavarlho et al. (2018), the findings showed that OEA was positively predicted with life satisfaction. In order to achieve a high level of life satisfaction, it is significant to be able to recognize and analyze the emotions of people around the students. Self-determination theory can be used to explain the contribution of OEA to this positive judgement of life satisfaction, which claims that there are fundamental psychological necessities that lead to living a healthy and optimal lifestyle (Deci & Ryan, 2000). One of

them is the sense of relatedness that may help to clarify why OEA is essential for life satisfaction (Cavarlho et al., 2018).

A study conducted by Lau and colleagues (2018) had found that there was a positive relationship between a sense of relatedness and life satisfaction. According to Weinstein et al. (2012), they mentioned that sense of relatedness can be defined as the belongingness that is received by the person derived from the attention and warmth given by others (Weinstein et al., 2012). As a result, the construct is considered as a key underlying process in constructing and maintaining relationships, as well as the development of a support system (Prince-Embury, 2013, 2014). People with a stronger sense of relatedness may be more socially competent and own a larger social network (Lau et al., 2018), resulting in greater well-being and happiness as well as life satisfaction (Reis et al., 2000).

Other than that, the positive relationship between other's emotion appraisal (OEA) and life satisfaction may be due to high levels of social self-efficacy. Social self-efficacy is known as one's assurance in the capability to involve in social interaction for establishing and sustaining interpersonal relationships the social life (Anderson & Betz, 2001). To this extent, people with high OEA are more socially aware and they tend to react to the emotional needs of others in a positive manner. The improved quality of the relationship enables the individual to gain more confidence in establishing new relationships, especially when happiness is gained by receiving the love and respect from others. In addition, individuals who have high social self-efficacy in initiating and maintaining social relationships also aids in the formation of social relationships (Bakioglu & Turkum, 2017; Ditchman et al., 2017; Jeon, 2016; Jian et al., 2018; Zamani & Shirazi, 2020). Positive social relationships was found to be one of the effective factors in life satisfaction as it enabled people with strong social ties to obtain more life satisfaction and to be happier (Jeon, 2016; Jian et al., 2018; Keser, 2005; Zamani & Shirazi, 2020).

# H4: Use of emotion (UOE) positively predicts life satisfaction among undergraduates in Malaysia.

Furthermore, this hypothesis was supported by the results of the present study. It indicated a high level of use of emotion (UOE) resulting in high level of life satisfaction, which was consistent with the past studies (Carvalho et al., 2018; Gav ń-Chocano et al., 2020). Need for competency in self-determination theory can be applied in explaining why UOE is important in predicting life satisfaction with the claim that basic psychological needs were significant for a healthy and ideal life (Deci & Ryan, 2000). The need for competence is defined as the desire of a person to be competent in their interactions with their surroundings. When a person has the competence to respond to the event by using emotion effectively, it will bring the sense of success for the person, thus achieving and bringing satisfaction (Deci & Ryan, 2008). This can be supported by a past study conducted among Turkish university students that proved that the need for competence was the most significant predictor of happiness which can lead to higher life satisfaction (Sapmaz et al., 2012).

Referring to the same article above, the need for autonomy can also be used to explain the predictive effect of UOE on life satisfaction based on the self-determination theory (Deci & Ryan, 2000). Autonomy refer to a person's want to express all self-approved behaviours that are in line with their integrated selves. When it comes to initiating, maintaining, and ending behaviours, autonomy is described as the person's feeling of preference, acceptance, and volition (Weinstein et al., 2012). A person has the freedom to choose the emotion he wants to apply at the particular moment and situation but not forced by others to make another emotion that is not in line with the person's inner self. Hence, the freedom for making choices has satisfied the need for autonomy and brought satisfaction to life (Deci & Ryan, 2008). When an individual receives autonomy support from their family and friends, one will experience an increase in satisfaction of basic psychological needs. This will indirectly increase the level of subjective well-being, which includes life satisfaction (Cihangir-Çankaya, 2009).

# H<sub>5</sub>: Regulation of emotion (ROE) positively predicts life satisfaction among undergraduates in Malaysia.

Lastly, the findings of the current study had supported this hypothesis. In other words, a high level of regulation of emotion (ROE) will lead to a high level of life satisfaction. It was similar to the past findings such as (Noor et al., 2021; Blasco-Belled et al., 2020). Referring to Noor et al. (2021), the study showed that managing emotion had a significant relationship with the student's life satisfaction. As a reference to a past study, managing emotions can serve as a coping tool, particularly for students who are always under academic stress. Therefore, emotional management is very essential because if they have trouble controlling their emotions for a long time, it can lead to mental health problems. Hence, it is obvious that by effectively managing emotions, people would be able to overcome a variety of problems and achieve life satisfaction (Jain, 2015). As a result, regulating emotion might be a useful approach for improving students' life satisfaction (Mestre et al., 2017).

As mentioned by Blasco-Belled et al. (2020), the findings revealed that mood repair showed a significant relationship with life satisfaction and happiness because it increased the chance of people in choosing appropriate regulatory strategies. This was supported by past studies which found a positive relationship between emotion regulation strategies and subjective well-being (Haga et al., 2009; Mitrofan & Ciuluvică, 2012; Schutte et al., 2009). Another study by LightseyJr et al. (2013) emphasized that self-efficacy for regulation of negative emotion (SERN) predicted life satisfaction. One of the emotional strategies, cognitive appraisal can alternate people's way of thinking about the emotional situations by minimizing negative feelings and inducing positive feelings and adaptive behaviours and thus enhancing life satisfaction (Gross & John, 2003; Mitrofan & Ciuluvică, 2012). However, individuals who applied another type of emotion regulation strategy, which is expressive suppression, will result in a lower level of life satisfaction (Haga et al., 2009; Yoo et al., 2006).

# **Theoretical Implication**

Broaden-and-Build Theory of Positive Emotions is applied in the present study to find out the predictive role of sub-dimensions of emotional intelligence and perceived stress on life satisfaction. To this extent, the results supported the theory, in which all predictors, including sub-dimensions of emotional intelligence and perceived stress among undergraduates in Malaysia significantly predict life satisfaction. This provides a new explanation for the ways of life satisfaction get affected by both emotional intelligence and perceived stress. Since there is a limited study of these predictors on life satisfaction among undergraduates in Malaysia, this study may serve as a basis and provide insight for the future researchers to modify and enhance the application of the Broaden-and-Build Theory of Positive Emotions. In other words, this study may contribute to society by providing new references related to related fields of study.

# **Practical Implication**

The findings of the current study revealed the significant roles of emotional intelligence and perceived stress in affecting life satisfaction of undergraduates in Malaysia. It may reinforce the knowledge of the public and provide a new perspective for different parties, including the government, university authorities, counsellors, parents and also the undergraduates themselves.

In this context, the government and Ministry of Higher Education may modify the academic system by emphasizing more on emotional intelligence, not only intellectual intelligence, as well as emphasizing the students' stress level, in order to promote higher life satisfaction among undergraduates in Malaysia. Universities can work with the government on promoting the importance of emotional intelligence and be more concerned about the perceived stress of undergraduates. They may provide more counseling services for those who demand and organize more activities that benefit the students. For example, workshops related to ways of enhancing emotional intelligence skills can be held. In addition, the teachers should also be well-equipped with ways to enhance emotional intelligence and incorporate the methods in their teaching plan.

Besides, the parents may be more aware of their children's emotional intelligence and perceived stress after understanding the possible risks of low life satisfaction. Therefore, they may not be too strict towards the academic results of the undergraduates but placing more concerns on their well-being. Lastly, the undergraduates may also realize their level of emotional intelligence and perceived stress, thus, discovering ways to improve and deal with their conditions. They may seek support from counsellors in universities and gain solutions to improve their life satisfaction.

Low life satisfaction has been found to lead to negative consequences, which include depression, suicidal behaviour and the others (Naseem & Munaf, 2017; Seo et al., 2018). Therefore, this study may lead the society to implement ways to improve life satisfaction through two dimensions, which are emotional intelligence and perceived stress. When life satisfaction is enhanced, the mental health of undergraduates will be improved at the same time. Consequently, they may be more able to give better contributions since undergraduates are future leaders of the country.

# Limitations

This study contains several limitations that should be addressed. First of all, purposive sampling method, which is one of the non-probability sampling methods, was used to collect responses in current study. As a result, the issue of the imbalance ratio of ethnicity was raised. Due to the same ethnicity of researchers in this study, the majority of the participants

were Chinese (70.9%), thus leading to a disproportionate population ratio. To this extend, there is an inadequate of data collected from races other than Chinese in Malaysia. As a result, bias may occur, and the result will not be able to generalize across undergraduates of different ethnicity in Malaysia.

Secondly, the self-administered online questionnaire may act as one of the limitations due to social desirability bias. Social desirability bias is known as one's tendency to underreport socially unfavourable thoughts or actions while overreporting more desirable ones (Latkin et al., 2017). When the respondents are requested to answer the questionnaire, they may tend to perform better by choosing options that appear to be more favourable to them. As a result, accuracy of the self-report data might be affected, thus, influencing the final results of this study.

Thirdly, another limitation is the small sample size issue. There were only a total of 110 participants involved in the study. Since this study targeted all undergraduates in Malaysia, the number of sample sizes may not be suitable to represent the entire population. The statistical power may be weaker, thus, affecting the actual effect of statistical analysis.

Lastly, due to the application of cross-sectional research design in this study, which involves only a short period of time for data collection, variables in the current study were measured once in time (Wang & Cheng, 2020). However, changes might occur in terms of emotional intelligence and perceived stress since they can be affected by personal experiences and environmental factors. Therefore, the predictive effects of the variables in this study may not be determined since they are only measured at a specific time.

#### Recommendations

In order to overcome the first limitation, probability sampling methods, such as stratified random sampling method is encouraged in order to get samples of equal demographic background that can best represent the population. By using stratified random
sampling, the population will first be categorized into subgroups, which is also referred as strata, based on their characteristics. The members from each stratum are then selected randomly in equal numbers (Bhardwaj, 2019). In this context, future researchers can divide the target samples into different strata according to their ethnicities. As a result, the issue of homogeneity can be solved, and true representation of population can be selected.

In other perspective, the issue of social desirability bias can be overcome using 7 methods, such as forced choice items and the others (Nederhof, 1985). For example, the researchers can modify the survey questions by excluding the neutral option. Furthermore, social desirability bias can be reduced by using social desirability scale (Pontes et al., 2014). To this extent, Brenner and deLamater (2016) proposed that disguising the purpose of surveys can help in reducing social desirability bias. The questions in the survey can be neutralized as well (Backstrom & Bjorklund, 2014). In addition, privacy and confidentiality of participants can be emphasized before proceeding to answering questionnaires (Larson, 2019). By acknowledging this issue, the participants will not worry that they may be criticized for their answers.

Besides, to overcome the limitation of small sample size, future researchers are encouraged to get more participants by providing reinforcement for them. For example, rewards, in terms of cash vouchers can be given as a motivation for their engagement and participation.

Lastly, longitudinal research design is suggested for future researchers to conduct related studies. Longitudinal study is a research design, in which the study is conducted over time. Hence, the researchers will be able to identify the changes that occur in the same respondent across time (Johnson, 2018). To this extent, changes of emotional intelligence (self-emotion appraisal, others emotion appraisal, use of emotion, regulation of emotion) and perceived stress of undergraduates that occur over time can be identified. For example, perceived stress may be reduced when the undergraduates completed their assignments or examinations. Hence, longitudinal research design can be applied to overcome the limitation related to the variables.

## Conclusion

In summary, the current study has reached the objective to examine the predictive effects of sub-dimensions of emotional intelligence (self-emotion appraisal, others' emotion appraisal, use of emotion, regulation of emotion) and perceived stress on life satisfaction among undergraduates in Malaysia. The findings revealed that all sub-dimensions of emotional intelligence, including self-emotion appraisal, others' emotion appraisal, use of emotion, regulation of emotion positively predicts life satisfaction while perceived stress negatively predicts life satisfaction.

To this extent, the predictive effect of perceived stress on life satisfaction can be explained by the level of self-efficacy and resilience of a person. Besides, emotional clarity that helps with fluid thinking and adaptive behaviour and level of self-esteem are significant predictors of life satisfaction. Moving to next, the predictive effect of OEA for life satisfaction is clear when it is clarified by the need of relatedness according to the selfdetermination theory and also the level of social-self-efficacy. Furthermore, the need for competence and autonomy can be used to describe the relationship between UOE and life satisfaction. Lastly, a high level of ROE will reflect that a person is well in managing emotion and using appropriate emotional regulatory strategies that result in a high level of life satisfaction. Hence, emotional intelligence and perceived stress should be emphasized by the public in order to improve life satisfaction of undergraduates, who act as the future leaders of our nation.

## References

- Abolghasemi, A., & Varaniyab, S. T. (2010). Resilience and perceived stress: predictors of life satisfaction in the students of success and failure. *Procedia-Social and Behavioral Sciences*, 5, 748-752. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.sbspro.2010.07.178
- Adewumi, B., & Ajayi, O. (2017). *Psychological factors influencing life satisfaction of undergraduates*. PsyArXiv. https://doi.org/10.31234/osf.io/xdpfz
- Afolabi, O. A. (2013). Roles of personality types, emotional intelligence and gender differences on prosocial behaviour. *Psychological Thought*, 6(1), 124-139. https://doi.org/10.5964/psyct.v6i1.53.
- Afolabi, O. A., & Balogun, A. G. (2017). Impacts of psychological security, emotional intelligence and self-efficacy on undergraduates' life satisfaction. *Psychological Thought*, 10(2), 247-261. https://doi.org/10.5964/psyct.v10i2.226
- Afolabi, O. A., & Balogun, A. G. (2017). Impacts of psychological security, emotional intelligence and self-efficacy on undergraduates' life satisfaction. Psychological Thought, 10(2). 247-261. https://doi.org/10.5964/psyct.v10i2.226
- Afridi, S., & Maqsood, S. (2017). Perceived stress, life satisfaction and self-esteem among women studying in co-education and uni-gender institutions. *Peshawar Journal of Psychology and Behavioral Sciences (PJPBS)*, 3(1), 45-61.
- Ain, N. U., Munir, M., & Suneel, I. (2021). Role of emotional intelligence and grit in life satisfaction. *Heliyon*, 7(4), Article e06829. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.heliyon.2021.e06829
- Aldridge, J. M., Fraser, B. J., Fozdar, F., Ala'i, K., Earnest, J., & Afari, E. (2016). Students' perceptions of school climate as determinants of wellbeing, resilience and identity.
   *Improving Schools*, *19*(1), 5-26. https://doi.org/10.1177/1365480215612616

- Alleyne, M., Alleyne, P., & Greenidge, D. (2010). Life satisfaction and perceived stress among university students in Barbados. *Journal of Psychology in Africa*, 20(2), 291-297. https://doi.org/10.1080/14330237.2010.10820378
- Anderson, S. L., & Betz, N. E. (2001). Sources of social self-efficacy expectations: Their measurement and relation to career development. *Journal of Vocational Behavior*, 58(1), 98-117. https://doi.org/10.1006/jvbe.2000.1753.
- Antaramian, S. (2015). Assessing psychological symptoms and well-being: Application of a dual-factor mental health model to understand college student performance. *Journal of Psychoeducational Assessment, 33*(5), 419-429.

https://doi.org/10.1177/0734282914557727

- Antaramian, S. (2017). The importance of very high life satisfaction for students' academic success. *Cogent Education*, 4(1), Article1307622. http://doi.org/10.1080/2331186X.2017.1307622
- Atmowardoyo, H. (2018). Research methods in TEFL studies: Descriptive research, case study, error analysis, and R & D. *Journal of Language Teaching and Research*, 9(1), 197-204. http://dx.doi.org/10.17507/jltr.0901.25
- Backstrom, M., & Bjorklund, F. (2014). Social desirability in personality inventories. *Journal of Individual Differences*, *35*(3), 144-157. https://doi.org/10.1027/1614-0001/a000138
- Bakioglu, F., & Turkum, A. S. (2017). Psychometric properties of adaptation of the social efficacy and outcome expectations scale to Turkish. *European Journal of Educational Research*, 6(2), 213-223. https://doi.org/10.12973/eu-jer.6.2.213.
- Balzarotti, S., John, O. P., & Gross, J. J. (2010). An Italian adaptation of the Emotion
  Regulation Questionnaire. *European Journal of Psychological Assessment*, 26(1), 6167. https://doi.org/10.1027/1015-5759/a000009

- Bandura, A. (1977). Self-efficacy: Toward a unifying theory of behavioral change. *Psychological Review*, 84(2), 191-215. https://doi.org/10.1037/0033-295X.84.2.191
- Barger, S. D., Donoho, C. J., & Wayment, H. A. (2009). The relative contributions of race/ethnicity, socioeconomic status, health, and social relationships to life satisfaction in the United States. *Quality of Life Research*, 18(2), 179-189. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11136-008-9426-2
- Barnett, V., & Lewis, T. (1978). *Outliers in statistical data* (2nd ed.). John Wiley & Sons Ltd.
- Bar-On, R. (1997). The Emotional Intelligence Inventory (EQ-I): Technical manual. *Multi-Health Systems*, 211.
- Bar-On, R. (2002). Bar-On Emotional Quotient Inventory: Short technical manual. *Multi-Health Systems*.
- Barrett, B. E., & Gray, J. B. (1997). Leverage, residual, and interaction diagnostics for subsets of cases in least squares regression. *Computational Statistics & Data Analysis*, 26(1), 39-52. https://doi.org/10.1016/S0167-9473(97)00022-4
- Barton, B., & Peat, J. (2014). *Medical statistics: A guide to SPSS, data analysis and critical appraisal.* John Wiley & Sons Ltd.
- Bedewy, D., & Gabriel, A. (2015). Examining perceptions of academic stress and its sources among university students: The perception of academic stress scale. *Health Psychology Open*, 2(2). https://doi.org/10.1177/2055102915596714
- Behere, S. P., Yadav, R., & Behere, P. B. (2011). A comparative study of stress among students of medicine, engineering, and nursing. *Indian Journal of Psychological Medicine*, 33(2), 145-148. https://doi.org/10.4103/0253-7176.92064

- Benger, J., Coates, D., Davies, S., Greenwood, R., Nolan, J., Rhys, M., Thomas, M., & Voss, S. (2016). Randomised comparison of the effectiveness of the laryngeal mask airway supreme, i-gel and current practice in the initial airway management of out of hospital cardiac arrest: a feasibility study. *British Journal of Anaesthesia*, *116*(2), 262-268. https://doi.org/10.1093/bja/aev477
- Berry, W. D. (1993). Understanding regression assumptions. Sage.
- Bhardwaj, P. (2019). Types of sampling in research. *Journal of the Practice of Cardiovascular Sciences*, 5(3), 157-163. https://doi.org/10.4103/jpcs.jpcs\_62\_19
- Bickford, D., Morin, R., Nelson, J. C., & Mackin, R. S. (2019). Determinants of suicidal ideation in older adults with major depression-associations with perceived stress. *The American Journal of Geriatric Psychiatry*, 27(3), S164-S165. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jagp.2019.01.074
- Birks, Y., McKendree, J., & Watt, I. (2009). Emotional intelligence and perceived stress in healthcare students: A multi-institutional, multi-professional survey. *BMC Medical Education*, 9(1), Article 61. http://doi.org/10.1186/1472-6920-9-61
- Blasco, M. J., Vilagut, G., Almenara, J., Roca, M., Piqueras, J. A., Gabilondo, A., Lagares, C., Soto-Sanz, V., Alayo, I., Forero, C. G., Echebur úa, E., Gili, M., Cebri à A. I., Bruffaerts, R., Auerbach, R. P., Nock, M. K., Kessler, R. C., Alonso, J., & UNIVERSAL study group (2018). Suicidal thoughts and behaviors: Prevalence and association with distal and proximal factors in Spanish university students. *Suicide & Life-Threatening Behavior*, *49*(3), 881-898. https://doi.org/10.1111/sltb.12491
- Blasco-Belled, A., Rogoza, R., Torrelles-Nadal, C., & Alsinet, C. (2020). Emotional intelligence structure and its relationship with life satisfaction and happiness: New findings from the bifactor model. *Journal of Happiness Studies*, 21(6), 2031-2049. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10902-012-9367-x

- Blasco-Belled, A., Rogoza, R., Torrelles-Nadal, C., & Alsinet, C. (2020). Emotional intelligence structure and its relationship with life satisfaction and happiness: New findings from the bifactor model. *Journal of Happiness Studies*, 21(6), 2031-2049. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10902-019-00167-x
- Boehm, J. K., Winning, A., Segerstrom, S., & Kubzansky, L. D. (2015). Variability modifies life satisfaction's association with mortality risk in older adults. *Psychological Science*, 26(7), 1063-1070. https://doi.org/10.1177/0956797615581491
- Bolton, J. M., Cox, B. J., Afifi, T. O., Enns, M. W., Bienvenu, O. J., & Sareen, J. (2008).
  Anxiety disorders and risk for suicide attempts: Findings from the Baltimore
  Epidemiologic Catchment area follow-up study. *Depression and Anxiety*, 25(6), 477-481. https://doi.org/10.1002/da.20314
- Brenner, P. S., & deLamater, J. (2016). Lies, damned lies, and survey self-reports? Identify as a cause of measurement bias. *Social Psychology Quarterly*, 79(4), 333-354. https://doi.org/10.1177/0190272516628298
- Bridge, J. A., Goldstein, T. R., & Brent, D. A. (2006). Adolescent suicide and suicidal behavior. *Journal of Child Psychology and Psychiatry*, 47(3-4), 372-394. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1469-7610.2006.01615.x
- Bridge, J. A., Horowitz, L. M., Fontanella, C. A., Grupp-Phelan, J., & Campo, J. V. (2014).
  Prioritizing research to reduce youth suicide and suicidal behavior. *American Journal* of Preventive Medicine, 47(3), S229-S234.

https://doi.org/10.1016/j.amepre.2014.06.001

- Brown, J. (2018). Student mental health: Some answers and more questions. *Journal of Mental Health*, 27(3), 193-196. https://doi.org/10.1080/09638237.2018.1470319.
- Browne, R. H. (1995). On the use of a pilot sample for sample size determination. *Statistics in Medicine*, *14*(17), 1933-1940. https://doi.org/10.1002/sim.4780141709

- Burns, A. J., Roberts, T. L., Posey, C., & Lowry, P. B. (2019). The adaptive roles of positive and negative emotions in organizational insiders' security-based precaution taking. *Information Systems Research*, 30(4), 1228-1247. https://doi.org/10.1287/isre.2019.0860
- Cabello, R., Sorrel, M. A., Fernandez-Pinto, I., Extremera, N., & Fernandez-Berrocal, P. (2016). Age and gender differences in ability emotional intelligence in adults: A cross-sectional study. *Developmental Psychology*, 52(9), 1486-1492. https://doi.org/10.1037/dev0000191.
- Campbell, A. (1981). The sense of well-being in America: Recent patterns and trends. *American Political Science Review*, 75(3), 763-764. https://doi.org/10.2307/1960993
- Campbell, A., Converse, P., & Rodgers, W. (1976). *The quality of American life: Perceptions, evaluations, and satisfactions*. Russell Sage Foundation.
- Carmeli, A. (2003). The relationship between emotional intelligence and work attitudes,
   behavior and outcomes: An examination among senior managers. *Journal of Managerial Psychology*, 18(8), 788-813. https://doi.org/10.1108/02683940310511881
- Carvalho, V. S., Guerrero, E. & Chambel, M. J. (2018). Emotional intelligence and health students' well-being: A two-wave study with students of medicine, physiotherapy and nursing. *Nurse Education Today*, 63, 35-42. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.nedt.2018.01.010
- Carvalho, V. S., Guerrero, E., & Chambel, M. J. (2018). Emotional intelligence and health students' well-being: A two-wave study with students of medicine, physiotherapy and nursing. *Nurse Education Today*, 63, 35-42. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.nedt.2018.01.010
- Cavazos, J., Jr., Johnson, M. B., & Sparrow, G. S. (2010). Overcoming personal and academic challenges: Perspectives from Latina/o college students. *Journal of*

Hispanic Higher Education, 9(4), 304-316.

https://doi.org/10.1177/1538192710380744

- Cazan, A. M., & Năstasă, L. E. (2015). Emotional intelligence, satisfaction with life and burnout among university students. *Procedia-Social and Behavioral Sciences*, 180, 1574-1578. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.sbspro.2015.02.309
- Chao, R. C.-L. (2012). Managing perceived stress among college students: The roles of social support and dysfunctional coping. *Journal of College Counseling*, 15(1), 5-21. https://doi.org/10.1002/j.2161-1882.2012.00002.x
- Chesney, E., Goodwin, G. M., & Fazel, S. (2014). Risks of all-cause and suicide mortality in mental disorders: A meta-review. *World Psychiatry*, 13(2), 153-160. https://doi.org/10.1002/wps.20128
- Cheung, C. K., Cheung, H. Y., & Hue, M. T. (2015). Emotional intelligence as a basis for self-esteem in young adults. *The Journal of Psychology*, 149(1), 63-84. http://dx.doi.org/10.1080/00223980.2013.838540
- Cho, S. J., & Kim, B. S. (2014). The relationship between stress and life satisfaction among the elderly: The mediating effects of depression, self-efficiency and mindfulness. *Journal of the Korean Gerontological Society*, 34(1), 49-71.
- Ciarrochi, J. V., Deane, F. P., & Anderson, S. (2002). Emotional intelligence moderates the relationship between stress and mental health. *Personality and Individual Differences*, 32(2), 197-209. https://doi.org/10.1016/S0191-8869(01)00012-5
- Cihangir-Çankaya, Z. (2009). Autonomy support, basic psychological need satisfaction and subjective well-being: Self-determination theory. *Turkish Psychological Counseling and Guidance Journal*, *4* (31), 23-31.

- Çivitci, A. (2015). Perceived stress and life satisfaction in college students: Belonging and extracurricular participation as moderators. *Procedia-Social and Behavioral Sciences*, 205, 271-281. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.sbspro.2015.09.077
- Çivitci, A. (2015). Perceived stress and life satisfaction in college students: Belonging and extracurricular participation as moderators. *Procedia-Social and Behavioral Sciences*, 205, 271-281. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.sbspro.2015.09.077
- Cochrane, A., Simmering, V., & Green, C. S. (2019). Fluid intelligence is related to capacity in memory as well as attention: Evidence from middle childhood and adulthood. PloS One, *14*(8), e0221353. https://doi.org/10.1371/journal.pone.0221353
- Coffman, D. L., & Gilligan, T. D. (2002). Social support, stress, and self-efficacy: Effects on students' satisfaction. *Journal of College Student Retention: Research, Theory and Practice*, 4(1), 53-66. https://doi.org/10.2190/BV7X-F87X-2MXL-2B3L
- Cohen, J. (1988). *Statistical power analysis for the behavioral sciences* (2nd ed.). Routledge. https://doi.org/10.4324/9780203771587
- Cohen, S., Kamarck, T., & Mermelstein, R. (1983). A global measure of perceived stress. Journal of Health and Social Behavior, 24(4), 385-396. https://doi.org/10.2307/2136404
- Conroy, R. (2015). Sample size: A rough guide.
- Cook, B. G., & Cook, L. (2016). Research designs and special education research: Different designs address different questions. *Learning Disabilities Research & Practice*, 31(4), 190-198. https://doi.org/10.1111/ldrp.12110.
- Cook, R. D., & Weisberg, S. (1982). *Residuals and influence in regression*. Chapman and Hall.
- Cooper, L., Orrell, J., & Bowden, M. (2010). *Work-integrated learning: A guide to effective practice*. Routledge.

Cooper, R., & Sawaf, A. (1998). Executive Eq. Penguin.

- Crane, G., Taylor, R. N., Cormier, M., Lean, J., Keefer, K. V., & Parker, J. D. A. (2016). Developing emotional intelligence in at-risk youth. *Personality and Individual Differences*, *100*(101), 473. http://doi.org/10.1016/j.paid.2016.05.114
- Cress, V. C. & Lampman, C. (2007). Hardiness, stress, and health-promoting behaviors among college students. *Psi Chi Journal of Undergraduate Research*, 12(1), 18-23. https://doi.org/10.24839/1089-4136.JN12.1.18
- Darling, C. A., McWey, L. M., Howard, S. N., & Olmstead, S. B. (2007). College student stress: The influence of interpersonal relationships on sense of coherence. *Stress and Health*, 23(4), 215-229. https://doi.org/10.1002/smi.1139
- Davies, M., Stankov, L., & Roberts, R. D. (1998). Emotional intelligence: in search of an elusive construct. *Journal of Personality and Social Psychology*, 75(4), 989-1015. https://doi.org/10.1037//0022-3514.75.4.989
- Deci, E. L., & Ryan, R. M. (2000). The "what" and "why" of goal pursuits: Human needs and the self-determination of behavior. *Psychological Inquiry*, 11(4), 227-268. https://doi.org/10.1207/S15327965PLI1104\_01
- Deci, E. L., & Ryan, R. M. (2000). The" what" and" why" of goal pursuits: Human needs and the self-determination of behavior. *Psychological Inquiry*, *11*(4), 227-268. https://doi.org/10.1207/S15327965PLI1104\_01
- Deci, E. L., & Ryan, R. M. (2008). Self-determination theory: A macrotheory of human motivation, development, and health. *Canadian Psychology*, 49(3), 182-185. https://doi.org/10.1037/a0012801
- Delhom, I., Gutierrez, M., Lucas-Molina, B., & Mel éndez, J. C. (2017). Emotional intelligence in older adults: Psychometric properties of the TMMS-24 and relationship

with psychological well-being and life satisfaction. *International Psychogeriatrics*, 29(8), 1327-1334. https://doi.org/10.1017/S1041610217000722

- Demetriou, C., Özer, B, U., & Essau, C, A. (2015). Self-report questionnaires. In L. C. Robin, O, L, Scott (Ed.), *The encyclopedia of clinical psychology*. Wiley-Blackwell. https://doi.org/10.1002/9781118625392.wbecp507
- Dessie, Y., Ebrahim, J., & Awoke, T. (2013). Mental distress among university students in Ethiopia: A cross sectional survey. *The Pan African Medical Journal*, 15, Article 95. https://doi.org/10.11604/pamj.2013.15.95.2173
- Di, M., Jia, N., Wang, Q., Yan, W., Yang, K., & Kong, F. (2020). A bifactor model of the Wong and Law emotional intelligence scale and its association with subjective wellbeing. *The Journal of Positive Psychology*, *16*(4), 561-572. https://doi.org/10.1080/17439760.2020.1791947
- Dictionary.com. (2021, May 17). "Undergraduate" vs. "Graduate": Educate yourself on the difference. https://www.dictionary.com/e/undergraduate-vs-graduate/
- Diener, E. (2000). Subjective well-being: The science of happiness and a proposal for a national index. *American Psychologist*, 55(1), 34-43. https://doi.org/10.1037/0003-066X.55.1.34
- Diener, E., & Diener, M. (1995). Cross-cultural correlates of life satisfaction and selfesteem. *Journal of Personality and Social Psychology*, 68(4), 653-663. https://doi.org/10.1037//0022-3514.68.4.653
- Diener, E., & Seligman, M. E. (2002). Very happy people. *Psychological Science*, 13(1), 81-84. https://doi.org/10.1111/1467-9280.00415
- Diener, E., Emmons, R. A., Larsen, R. J., & Griffin, S. (1985). The satisfaction with life scale. *Journal of Personality Assessment*, 49(1), 71-75. https://doi.org/10.1207/s15327752jpa4901\_13

- Diener, E., Lucas, R. E., & Oishi, S. (2002). Subjective well-being: The science of happiness and life satisfaction. *Handbook of positive psychology*, *2*, 463-473.
- Dirzyte, A., Perminas, A. & Biliuniene, E. (2021). Psychometric properties of Satisfaction
  With Life Scale (SWLS) and Psychological Capital Questionnaire (PCQ-24) in the
  Lithuanian population. *International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health*, 18(5), Article 2608. https://doi.org/10.3390/ijerph18052608
- Ditchman, N., Sung, C., Easton, A. B., Johnson, K. S., & Batchos, E. (2017). Symptom severity and life satisfaction in brain injury: The mediating role of disability acceptance and social self-efficacy. *NeuroRehabilitation*, 40(4), 531-543. https://doi.org/10.3233/NRE-171440.
- Dohrenwend, B. P. (Ed.). (1998). Adversity, stress, and psychopathology. Oxford University Press.
- Doktorov á, D., Hubinsk á, J., & Mas ár, M. (2020). Finding the connection between the level of empathy, life satisfaction and their inter-sex differences. *Revista Romaneasca pentru Educatie Multidimensionala*, 12(4), 1-15. https://doi.org/10.18662/rrem/12.4/330
- Du, C., Zan, M., Cho, M. J., Fenton, J. I., Hsiao, P. Y., Hsiao, R., Keaver, L., Lai, C. C., Lee, H., Ludy, M. J., Shen, W., Swee, W., Thrivikraman, J., Tseng, K. W., Tseng, W. C., & Tucker, R. M. (2020). Increased resilience weakens the relationship between perceived stress and anxiety on sleep quality: A moderated mediation analysis of higher education students from 7 countries. *Clocks & Sleep*, 2(3), 334-353. https://doi.org/10.3390/clockssleep2030025
- Du, J., Huang, J., An, Y., & Xu, W. (2018). The relationship between stress and negative emotion: The mediating role of rumination. *Clinical Research and Trials*, 4(1), 1-5. https://doi.org/10.15761/CRT.1000208

Duffy, R. D., Allan, B. A., & Bott, E. M. (2012). Calling and life satisfaction among undergraduate students: Investigating mediators and moderators. *Journal of Happiness Studies*, 13(3), 469-479. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10902-011-9274-6

- Dunkley, D. M., Lewkowski, M., Lee, I. A., Preacher, K. J., Zuroff, D. C., Berg, J. L., Foley, J. E., Myhr, G., & Westreich, R. (2017). Daily stress, coping, and negative and positive affect in depression: Complex trigger and maintenance patterns. *Behavior Therapy*, 48(3), 349-365. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.beth.2016.06.001
- Dymecka, J., Gerymski, R., & Machnik-Czerwik, A. (2021). Fear of COVID-19 as a buffer in the relationship between perceived stress and life satisfaction in the Polish population at the beginning of the global pandemic. *Health Psychology Report*, 9(2), 149-159. https://doi.org/10.3389/fpsyt.2021.712103
- Eisenberg, N., & Spinrad, T. L. (2004). Emotion-related regulation: Sharpening the definition. *Child Development*, 75(2), 334-339. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1467-8624.2004.00674.x
- El Ghoudani, K., Pulido-Martos, M., & Lopez-Zafra, E. (2018). Measuring emotional intelligence in Moroccan Arabic: The Wong and Law Emotional Intelligence Scale/Medidas de la inteligencia emocional en árabe marroqu í La Escala de Inteligencia Emocional de Wong y Law. *Revista de Psicologia Social*, 33(1), 174-194. https://doi.org/10.1080/02134748.2017.1385243

Erikson, E. (1994). *Identity and the life cycle*. WW Norton & Company.

Esmaeilinasab, M., Khoshk, A. A., & Makhmali, A. (2016). Emotion regulation and life satisfaction in university students: Gender differences. *European Proceedings of Social and Behavioural Sciences EpSBS*, 82, 798-809. https://doi.org/10.15405/epsbs.2016.11.82

- Esmaeilinasab, M., Khoshk, A. A., & Makhmali, A. (2016). Emotion regulation and life satisfaction in university students: Gender differences. *European Proceedings of Social and Behavioural Sciences EpSBS*, 82, 798-809. http://dx.doi.org/10.15405/epsbs.2016.11.82
- Etikan, I., Musa, S. A., & Alkassim, R. S. (2016). Comparison of convenience sampling and purposive sampling. *American Journal of Theoretical and Applied Statistics*, 5(1), 1-4. https://doi.org/10.11648/j.ajtas.20160501.11
- Evans, T. R., Hughes, D. J., & Steptoe-Warren, G. (2020). A conceptual replication of emotional intelligence as a second-stratum factor of intelligence. *Emotion*, 20(3), 507-512. https://doi.org/10.1037/emo0000569
- Extremera, N., & Fern ández-Berrocal, P. (2005). Perceived emotional intelligence and life satisfaction: Predictive and incremental validity using the Trait Meta-Mood Scale. *Personality and Individual Differences*, 39(5), 937-948.
  http://dx.doi.org/10.1016/j.paid.2005.03.012
- Extremera, N., & Rey, L. (2016). Ability emotional intelligence and life satisfaction: Positive and negative affect as mediators. *Personality and Individual Differences*, 102, 98-101. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.paid.2016.06.051
- Extremera, N., Dur án, A., & Rey, L. (2009). The moderating effect of trait meta-mood and perceived stress on life satisfaction. *Personality and Individual Differences*, 47(2), 116-121. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.paid.2009.02.007
- Extremera, N., Ruiz-Aranda, D., Pineda-Galán, C., & Salguero, J. M. (2011a). Emotional intelligence and its relation with hedonic and eudaimonic well-being: A prospective study. *Personality and Individual Differences*, 51(1), 11-16. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.paid.2011.02.029.

- Extremera, N., Salguero, J. M., & Fern ández-Berrocal, P. (2011b). Trait meta-mood and subjective happiness: A 7-week prospective study. *Journal of Happiness Studies*, 12, 509–517. https://doi.org/10.1007/s1090 2-010-9233-7.
- Fairbairn, W., & Kessler, A. (2015, September 16). Practical advice for selecting sample sizes. The Donor Committee for Enterprise Development. https://www.enterprisedevelopment.org/wp-

content/uploads/Practical\_advice\_for\_selecting\_sample\_sizes\_May2015.pdf

- Fakunmoju, S., Donahue, G. R., Mccoy, S., & Mengel, A. S. (2016). Life satisfaction and perceived meaningfulness of learning experience among first-year traditional graduate social work students. *Journal of Education and Practice*, 7(6), 49-62.
- Faul, F., Erdfelder, E., Buchner, A., & Lang, A.-G. (2009). Statistical power analyses using G\*Power 3.1: Tests for correlation and regression analyses. *Behavior Research Methods*, 41(4), 1149-1160. https://doi.org/10.3758/BRM.41.4.1149
- Fern ández-Berrocal, P., & Extremera, N. (2006). Emotional intelligence: A theoretical and empirical review of its first 15 years of history. *Psicothema*, *18*(Suppl), 7-12.
- Fernandez-Berrocal, P., Extremera, N., & Ramos, N. (2004). Validity and reliability of the Spanish modified version of the Trait Meta-Mood Scale. *Psychological Reports*, 94(3, Pt1), 751-755. https://doi.org/10.2466/pr0.94.3.751-755
- Fredrickson, B. L. (2001). The role of positive emotions in positive psychology: The broaden-and-build theory of positive emotions. *American Psychologist*, 56(3), 218-226. https://doi.org/10.1037/0003-066X.56.3.218
- Fredrickson, B. L. (2004). The broaden-and-build theory of positive emotions. *Philosophical Transactions of the Royal Society of London. Series B, Biological Sciences, 359*(1449), 1367-78. https://doi.org/10.1098/rstb.2004.1512

- Fredrickson, B. L. (2013). Positive emotions broaden and build. Advances on Experimental Social Psychology, 47, 1-53. https://doi.org/10.1016/B978-0-12-407236-7.00001-2
- Fredrickson, B. L., & Branigan, C. (2005). Positive emotions broaden the scope of attention and thought-action repertoires. *Cognition & Emotion*, 19(3), 313-332. https://doi.org/10.1080/02699930441000238
- Fredrickson, B. L., Cohn, M. A., Coffey, K. A., Pek, J., & Finkel, S. M. (2008). Open hearts build lives: Positive emotions, induced through loving-kindness meditation, build consequential personal resources. *Journal of Personality and Social Psychology*, 95(5), 1045-1062. https://doi.org/10.1037/a0013262
- Frisch, M. B., Cornell, J., Villanueva, M., & Retzlaff, P. J (1992). Clinical validation of the quality of life inventory: A Measure of life satisfaction for use in treatment planning and outcome assessment. *Psychological Assessment*, 4(1), 92-101. https://doi.org/10.1037/1040-3590.4.1.92
- Fukuda, E., Saklofske, D. H., Tamaoka, K., & Lim, H. (2012). Factor structure of the Korean version of Wong and Law's Emotional Intelligence Scale. *Assessment*, 19(1), 3-7. https://doi.org/10.1177/1073191111428863
- Fukuda, E., Saklofske, D. H., Tamaoka, K., Fung, T. S., Miyaoka, Y., & Kiyama, S. (2011).
  Factor structure of Japanese versions of two emotional intelligence scales. *International Journal of Testing*, *11*(1), 71-92.
  https://doi.org/10.1080/15305058.2010.516379

Gavin-Chocano, O., Molero, D., Ubago-Jimenez, J. L. & Garcia-Martinez, I. (2020).
Emotions as predictors of life satisfaction among university students. *International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health*, 17(24), Article 9462.
https://doi.org/10.3390/ijerph17249462

Gav ń-Chocano, Ó., Molero, D., Ubago-Jim énez, J. L., & Garc ń-Mart ńez, I. (2020).
Emotions as predictors of life satisfaction among university students. *International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health*, 17(24), 1-14.
https://dx.doi.org/10.3390/ijerph17249462

Geßler, S., Nezlek, J. B., & Schütz, A. (2020). Training emotional intelligence: Does training in basic emotional abilities help people to improve higher emotional abilities? *The Journal of Positive Psychology*, *16*(4), 455-464. https://doi.org/10.1080/17439760.2020.1738537

- Ghahramani, S., Jahromi, A. T., Khoshsoroor, D., Seifooripour, R., & Sepehrpoor, M. (2019). The relationship between emotional intelligence and happiness in medical students. *Korean Journal of Medical Education*, *31*(1), 29-38. https://doi.org/10.3946/kjme.2019.116\
- Ghorbani, H. (2019). Mahalanobis distance and its application for detecting multivariate outliers. *Facta Univ Ser Math Inform*, 34(3), 583-595. https://doi.org/10.22190/FUMI1903583G
- Giardini, A., & Frese, M. (2006). Reducing the negative effects of emotion work in service occupations: Emotional competence as a psychological resource. *Journal of Occupational Health Psychology*, *11*(1), 63-75. https://doi.org/10.1037/1076-8998.11.1.63
- Gignac, G. E. (2010). On a nomenclature for emotional intelligence research. *Industrial and Organizational Psychology*, 3(2), 131-135. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1754-9434.2010.01212.x
- Goff, A. M. (2011). Stressors, academic performance, and learned resourcefulness in baccalaureate nursing students. *International Journal of Nursing Education Scholarship*, 8(1), 1-20. https://doi.org/10.2202/1548-923X.2114

- Gohm, C. L., & Clore, G. L. (2002). Four latent traits of emotional experience and their involvement in attributional style, coping and well-being. *Cognition and Emotion*, 16(4), 495-518. https://doi.org/10.1080/02699930143000374
- Gohm, C.L., Corser, G.C., Dalsky, D.J. (2005). Emotional intelligence under stress: Useful, unnecessary, or irrelevant? *Personality and Individual Differences*, 39(6), 1017-1028. http://dx. doi.org/10.1016/j.paid.2005.03.018
- Golden-Kreutz, D. M., Browne, M. W., Frierson, G. M., & Andersen, B. L. (2004). Assessing stress in cancer patients: A second-order factor analysis model for the perceived stress scale. *Assessment*, 11(3), 216-223. https://doi.org/10.1177/1073191104267398

Goleman, D. (1995). Emotional intelligence. Bantam Books.

- Gonzalez-Pienda, J. A., & Nunex, J. C. (2002). A structural equation model of parental involvement, motivational and attitudinal characteristics, and academic achievement. *Journal of Experimental Education*, 70(3), 257-287. https://doi.org/10.1080/00220970209599509
- Goppert, S. A., & Pfost, M. (2021). Undergraduate students' perceived stress levels in summer term 2020-A comparison to preceding academic terms. *Frontiers in Psychology*, 12, Article 672783. https://doi.org/10.3389/fpsyg.2021.672783
- Gravetter, F., & Wallnau, L. (2014). *Essentials of statistics for the behavioral sciences* (8th ed.). Wadsworth.
- Gross, J. J. (1998). Antecedent- and response-focused emotion regulation: Divergent consequences for experience, expression, and physiology. *Journal of Personality and Social Psychology*, 74(1), 224-237. https://doi.org/10.1037/0022-3514.74.1.224
- Gross, J. J., & John, O. P. (2003). Individual differences in two emotion regulation processes: Implications for affect, relationships, and well-being. *Journal of Personality and Social Psychology*, 85(2), 348-362. https://doi.org/10.1037/0022-3514.85.2.348

- Gross, J. J., & John, O. P. (2003). Individual differences in two emotion regulation processes: implications for affect, relationships, and well-being. *Journal of personality and social psychology*, 85(2), 348-362. https://doi.org/10.1037/0022-3514.85.2.348
- Gross, J. J., & Thompson, R. A. (2007). Emotion regulation: Conceptual foundations. In J. J. Gross (Ed.), *Handbook of emotion regulation* (pp. 3-24). The Guilford Press.
- Grove, S. K., Burns, N., & Gray, J. (2012). *The practice of nursing research: Appraisal, synthesis, and generation of evidence*. Elsevier Health Sciences.
- Gürkan, K. P., Aydoğdu, N. G., Dokuzcan, D. A., & Yalçinkaya, A. (2021). The effects of nurses' perceived stress and life satisfaction on their emotional eating behaviors. *Perspectives in Psychiatric Care*. https://doi.org/10.1111/ppc.12897
- Habeeb, M. B. (2013). Vulnerability to stress and coping strategies among undergraduate students in Baghdad city. *Kufa Journal for Nursing Sciences*, *3*(2), 1-10.
- Hadi, A. S., & Chatterjee, S. (2015). Regression analysis by example. (5th ed.). John Wiley & Sons Ltd.
- Haegerich, T. M., Dahlberg, L. L., Simon, T. R., Baldwin, G. T., Sleet, D. A., Greenspan, A.
  I., & Degutis, L. C. (2014). Prevention of injury and violence in the USA. *The Lancet*, 384(9937), 64-74. https://doi.org/10.1016/S0140-6736(14)60074-X
- Haga, S. M., Kraft, P., & Corby, E. K. (2009). Emotion regulation: Antecedents and wellbeing outcomes of cognitive reappraisal and expressive suppression in cross-cultural samples. *Journal of Happiness Studies*, *10*(3), 271-291. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10902-007-9080-3
- Haga, S. M., Kraft, P., & Corby, E.-K. (2009). Emotion regulation: Antecedents and wellbeing outcomes of cognitive reappraisal and expressive suppression in cross-cultural samples. *Journal of Happiness Studies: An Interdisciplinary Forum on Subjective Well-Being, 10*(3), 271-291. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10902-007-9080-3

- Haghdoost, A. A., Momeni, M., Bahraminejad, F., & Danaei, M. (2020). Levels and predictors of happiness in the south of the Islamic Republic of Iran. *Eastern Mediterranean Health Journal*, 26(7), 779-786. https://doi.org/10.26719/emhj.20.002
- Hair, J.F., Page, M., & Brunsveld, N. (2019). Essentials of business research methods (4th ed.). Routledge. https://doi.org/10.4324/9780429203374
- Halimi, F., AlShammari, I., & Navarro, C. (2020). Emotional intelligence and academic achievement in higher education. *Journal of Applied Research in Higher Education*, *13*(2), 485-503. https://doi.org/10.1108/JARHE-11-2019-0286
- Hamaideh, S. H. (2011). Stressors and reactions to stressors among university students. *The International Journal of Social Psychiatry*, 57(1), 69-80. https://doi.org/10.1177/0020764009348442
- Hamzah, N. S. A., Farid, N. D. N., Yahya, A., Chin, C., Su, T. T., Rampal, S. R. L., & Dahlui, M. (2019). The prevalence and associated factors of depression, anxiety and stress of first year undergraduate students in a public higher learning institution in Malaysia. *Journal of Child and Family Studies*, 28(4), 3545-3557. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10826-019-01537-y
- Helliwell, J., Layard, R., & Sachs, J. (2018). World Happiness Report 2018. Sustainable Development Solutions Network. https://worldhappiness.report/ed/2018/
- Hezmi, M. A. B. (2018). Mental health a major concern in coming years among Malaysian students? Universiti Teknologi Malaysia. Retrieved from http://people.utm.my/azril/mental-health-a-major-concern-in-coming-years-amongmalaysian-students/. Accessed 15 Nov 2019.
- Hinz, A., Conrad, I., Schroeter, M. L., Brahler, E., Zenger, M., Kocalevent, R. & Herzberg,P. Y. (2018). Psychometric properties of the Satisfaction with Life Scale (SWLS),

derived from a large German community sample. *Quality of Life Research*, 27(6), 1661-1670. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11136-018-1844-1

- Hjemdal, O., Friborg, O., Stiles, T. C., Rosenvinge, J. H., & Martinussen, M. (2006).
  Resilience predicting psychiatric symptoms: A prospective study of protective factors and their role in adjustment to stressful life events. *Clinical Psychology & Psychotherapy*, *13*(3), 194-201. https://doi.org/10.1002/cpp.488
- Holinka, C. (2015). Stress, emotional intelligence, and life satisfaction in college students. *College Student Journal*, 49(2), 300-311.
- Irfan, M., Saleem, U., Sethi, M. R., & Abdullah, A. S. (2019). Do we need to care: emotional intelligence and empathy of medical and dental students. *J Ayub Med Coll Abbottabad*, 31(1), 76-81.
- Ishaq, K., Shabbir, F., & Khan, R. A. (2020). Impact of emotional intelligence and perceived stress on life satisfaction among university students. *Annals of Psychiatry and Clinical Neuroscience*, 3(2), 1-8.
- Ishaq, K., Shabbir, F., & Khan, R. A. (2020). Impact of emotional intelligence and perceived stress on life satisfaction among university students. *Annals of Psychiatry and Clinical Neuroscience*, 3(2), 1-8.
- Jain, D.R. (2015). Emotional intelligence & its relationship with life satisfaction. *CENTUM Journal of Management*, 8(1), 61-63. http://dx.doi.org/10.13140/RG.2.1.3693.6802
- Jamali, M., Noroozi, A., & Tahmasebi, R. (2013). Factors affecting academic self-efficacy and its association with academic achievment among students of Bushehr University Medical Sciences 2012-13. *Iranian Journal of Medical Education*, 13(8), 629-641.
- Jenkins, S. R., Belanger, A., Connally, M. L., Boals, A., & Durón, K. M. (2013). Firstgeneration undergraduate students' social support, depression, and life

satisfaction. *Journal of College Counseling*, *16*(2), 129-142. https://doi.org/10.1002/j.2161-1882.2013.00032.x

- Jensen, P., Haug, E., Sivertsen, B., & Skogen, J. C. (2021). Satisfaction with life, mental health problems and potential alcohol-related problems among Norwegian university students. *Frontiers in Psychiatry*, 12. https://doi.org/10.3389/fpsyt.2021.578180
- Jeon, H. O. (2016). The influence of nursing professionalism, academic failure tolerance and social self-efficacy on college life satisfaction among nursing students. *The Journal of Korean Academic Society of Nursing Education*, 22(2), 171-181. https://doi.org/10.5977/jkasne.2016.22.2.171.
- Jia, Y. F., & Loo, Y. T. (2018). Prevalence and determinants of perceived stress among undergraduate students in a Malaysian University. *Journal of Health and Translational Medicine*, 21(1), 1-5.
- Jian, C., Yiran, Z., Chen, C., & Kan, S. (2018). Social exclusion and life satisfaction: The effect of social self-efficacy and social support. *Management Review*, 30(9), 256-267.
- John, O. P., & Gross, J. J. (2004). Healthy and unhealthy emotion regulation: Personality processes, individual differences, and life span development. *Journal of Personality*, 72(6), 1301-1333. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1467-6494.2004.00298.x
- Johnson, L. L. (2018). Design of observational studies. *Principles and Practice of Clinical Research*, 231-248. https://doi.org/10.1016/b978-0-12-849905-4.00017-4
- Joseph, D. L., & Newman, D. A. (2010). Emotional intelligence: An integrative metaanalysis and cascading model. *Journal of Applied Psychology*, 95(1), 54-78. https://doi.org/10.1037/a0017286
- Jovanović, V., & Joshanloo, M. (2021). The contribution of positive and negative affect to life satisfaction across age. *Applied Research in Quality of Life*, 1-14. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11482-020-09903-5

- Kahraman, S., Yasin, E. T., & Furkan, O. N. U. R. (2020). Impact of perceived stress and religious attitude on life satisfaction in generation y. *Spiritual Psychology and Counseling*, 5(2), 185-202. https://dx.doi.org/10.37898/spc.2020.5.2.101
- Kant, R. (2019). Emotional intelligence: A study on university students. Journal of Education and Learning (EduLearn), 13(4), 441-446. https://doi.org/10.11591/edulearn.v13i4.13592
- Karademas, E. C., & Kalantzi-Azizi, A. (2004). The stress process, self-efficacy expectations, and psychological health. *Personality and Individual Differences*, 37(5), 1033-1043. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.paid.2003.11.012
- Kaur, P., Stoltzfus, J., & Yellapu, V. (2018). Descriptive statistics. International Journal of Academic Medicine, 4(1), 60-63. https://doi.org/10.4103/IJAM.IJAM\_7\_18
- Kaya, C., Tansey, T. N., Melekoğlu, M., & Çakiroğlu, O. (2015). Stress and life satisfaction of Turkish college students. *College Student Journal*, 49(2), 257-261.
- Keser, A. (2005). Job satisfaction and life satisfaction relationship: An application in the automotive industry. *Labour and Society*, *4*(7), 77-96.
- Kesmodel U. S. (2018). Cross-sectional studies-What are they good for?. *Acta obstetricia et gynecologica Scandinavica*, 97(4), 388-393. https://doi.org/10.1111/aogs.13331
- Khalid, N. M. (2021). Resilience, perceived social support, and life satisfaction among Malaysian college students. *Journal of Nusantara Studies (JONUS)*, 6(2), 21-40. https://doi.org/10.24200/jonus.vol6iss2pp21-40
- Khurshid, M. A., Majoka, M. I., & Khan, M. S. (2018). Development of emotional intelligence of university students: An investigation of the effect of curricular activities. *Pakistan Journal of Distance and Online Learning*, 4(1), 215-234.
- Kim, E. S., Delaney, S. W., Tay, L., Chen, Y., Diener, E. D., & Vanderweele, T. J. (2021).Life satisfaction and subsequent physical, behavioral, and psychosocial health in older

adults. *The Milbank Quarterly*, 99(1), 209-239. https://doi.org/10.1111/1468-0009.12497

- Kim, H., Sefcik, J. S., & Bradway, C. (2017). Characteristics of qualitative descriptive studies: A systematic review. *Research in Nursing & Health*, 40(1), 23-42. https://doi.org/10.1002/nur.21768
- Kong, F., Gong, X., Sajjad, S., Yang, K., & Zhao, J. (2019). How is emotional intelligence linked to life satisfaction? The mediating role of social support, positive affect and negative affect. *Journal of Happiness Studies*, 20(8), 2733-2745. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10902-018-00069-4
- Kong, F., Wang, X., & Zhao, J. (2014). Dispositional mindfulness and life satisfaction: The role of core self-evaluations. *Personality and Individual Differences*, 56, 165-169. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.paid.2013.09.002
- Kooker, B. M., Shoultz, J., & Codier, E. E. (2007). Identifying emotional intelligence in professional nursing practice. *Journal of Professional Nursing*, 23(1), 30-36. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.profnurs.2006.12.004
- Kotera, Y., Ting, S. H., & Neary, S. (2021). Mental health of Malaysian university students: UK comparison, and relationship between negative mental health attitudes, selfcompassion, and resilience. *Higher Education*, 81(2), 403-419. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10734-020-00547-w
- Krieger, T., Hermann, H., Zimmerman, J., & grosse Holtforth, M. (2015). Associations of self-compassion and global self-esteem with positive and negative affect and stress reactivity in daily life: Findings from a smart phone study. *Personality and Individual Differences*, 87, 288-292. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.paid.2015.08.009

- Kumar, H., Shaheen, A., Rasool, I., & Shafi, M. (2016). Psychological distress and life satisfaction among university students. *Journal of Psychology & Clinical Psychiatry*, 5(3). https://doi.org/10.15406/jpcpy.2016.05.00283
- Kumar, S., Dagli, R. J., Mathur, A., Jain, M., Prabu, D., & Kulkarni, S. (2009). Perceived sources of stress amongst Indian dental students. *European Journal of Dental Education*, 13(1), 39-45. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1600-0579.2008.00535.x
- Laborde S., Mosley E., Ackermann S., Mrsic A., Dosseville F. (2018). Emotional intelligence in sports and physical activity: An intervention focus. In K. V. Keefer, J. D. A.
  Parker, D. H. Saklofske (Eds.), *Emotional intelligence in education*. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-319-90633-1
- Larcombe, W., Finch, S., Sore, R., Murray, C.M., Kentish, S.E., Mulder, R.A., Lee-Stecum,
  P., Baik, C., Tokatlidis, O., & Williams, D.A. (2016). Prevalence and sociodemographic correlates of psychological distress among students at an Australian university. *Studies in Higher Education*, *41*(6), 1074-1091. https://doi.org/10.1080/03075079.2014.966072
- Lardier, D. T., Lee, C.-Y. S., Rodas, J. M., Garcia-Reid, P., & Reid, R. J. (2020). The effect of perceived college-related stress on depression, life satisfaction, and school satisfaction: The coping strategies of Hispanic college students from a Hispanic serving institution. *Education and Urban Society*, *52*(8), 1204-1222. https://doi.org/10.1177/0013124519896845
- Larin, H., Benson, G., Wessel, J., Martin, L., & Ploeg, J. (2014). Changes in emotional-social intelligence, caring, leadership and moral judgment during health science education programs. *Journal of the Scholarship of Teaching and Learning*, 14(1), 26-41. https://doi.org/10.14434/josotl.v14i1.3897

- Larson, R. B. (2019). Controlling social desirability bias. *International Journal of Market Research*, *61*(5), 534-547. https://doi.org/10.1177/1470785318805305
- Latiff, L. A., Aszahari, M. A. A., Khalek, N. F. A., Fang, K. J., & Ibrahim, N. (2014).
  Prevalence of mental health problems and the associated factors among undergraduate students in a public university, Malaysia. *International Journal of Public Health and Clinical Sciences*, 1(1), 59-69.
- Latkin, C. A., Edwards, C., Davey-Rothwell, M. A., & Tobin, K. E. (2017). The relationship between social desirability bias and self-reports of health, substance use, and social network factors among urban substance users in Baltimore, Maryland. *Addictive Behaviors*, 73, 133-136. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.addbeh.2017.05.005
- Lau, C. L., Feher, A., Wilson, C. A., Babcock, S. E., & Saklofske, D. H. (2018). Resiliency, meaning in life, and life satisfaction: An examination of moderating effects. Acci ón Psicol ógica, 15(2), 5-14. https://doi.org/10.5944/ap.15.2.22256
- Law, K. S., Wong, C. S., & Song, L. J. (2004). The construct and criterion validity of emotional intelligence and its potential utility for management studies. *Journal of Applied Psychology*, 89(3), 483-496. https://doi.org/10.1037/0021-9010.89.3.483
- Lazarus, R. S., & Folkman, S. (1984a). Coping and Adaptation. In W. D. Gentry (Ed.), *The handbook of behavioral medicine* (pp. 282-325). Guilford.
- Lazarus, R. S., & Folkman, S. (1984b). *Stress, appraisal, and coping*. Springer. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-1-4419-1005-9\_215
- Lea, R. G., Davis, S. K., Mahoney, B., & Qualter, P. (2019). Does emotional intelligence buffer the effects of acute stress? A systematic review. *Frontiers in Psychology*, 10, Article 810. https://doi.org/10.3389/fpsyg.2019.00810

- Lee, J., Kim, E., & Wachholtz, A. (2016). The effect of perceived stress on life satisfaction: The mediating effect of self-efficacy. *Ch'ongsonyonhak yongu*, 23(10), 29-47. https://doi.org/10.21509/KJYS.2016.10.23.10.29
- Lee, J., Kim, E., & Wachholtz, A. (2016). The effect of perceived stress on life satisfaction: The mediating effect of self-efficacy. *Ch'ongsonyonhak Yongu*, 23(10), 29-47. https://doi.org/10.21509/KJYS.2016.10.23.10.29
- Lewis, A. D., Huebner, E. S., Malone, P. S., & Valois, R. F. (2011). Life satisfaction and student engagement in adolescents. *Journal of Youth and Adolescence*, 40(3), 249-262. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10964-010-9517-6
- Li, Y., Yao, L., Luo, Y., Yuan, F., & Yan, L. (2020). Perceived stress and its impact on health behavior of Chinese residents during the epidemic of COVID-19: An internet survey. Research Square. https://doi.org/10.21203/rs.3.rs-27180/v1
- Lightsey, O. R., Jr., McGhee, R., Ervin, A., Gharghani, G. G., Rarey, E. B., Daigle, R. P.,
  Wright, K. F., Constantin, D., & Powell, K. (2013). Self-efficacy for affect regulation as a predictor of future life satisfaction and moderator of the negative affect—Life satisfaction relationship. *Journal of Happiness Studies: An Interdisciplinary Forum on Subjective Well-Being*, 14(1), 1-18. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10902-011-9312-4
- Lloyd, S. J., Malek-Ahmadi, M., Barclay, K., Fernandez, M. R., & Chartrand, M. S. (2012). Emotional intelligence (EI) as a predictor of depression status in older adults. *Archives of Gerontology and Geriatrics*, 55(3), 570-573. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.archger.2012.06.004
- Madebo, W. E., Yosef, T. T. & Tesfaye, M. S. (2016). Assessment of perceived stress level and associated factors among health science students at Debre Birehane University, North Shoa Zone of Amhara Region, Ethiopia. *Health Care: Current Reviews*, 4(2), Article 1000166. http://doi.org/10.4172/2375-4273.1000166

- Maroufizadeh, S., Foroudifard, F., Navid, B., Ezabadi, Z., Sobati, B., & Omani-Samani, R. (2018). The Perceived Stress Scale (PSS-10) in women experiencing infertility: A reliability and validity study. *Middle East Fertility Society Journal*, 23(4), 456-459. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.mefs.2018.02.003
- Matheny, K. B., Roque-Tovar, B. E., & Curlette, W. L. (2008). Perceived stress, coping resources, and life satisfaction among U. S. and Mexican college students: A crosscultural study. *Anales de Psicolog ú*, 24(1), 49-57.
- Mayer, J. D. and Salovey, P. (1997). What is emotional intelligence? In P. Salovey and D. Sluyter (Eds.), *Emotional development and emotional intelligence: Implications for educators* (pp. 3–31). BasicBooks.
- Mayer, J. D., & Salovey, P. (1997). What is emotional intelligence? In P. Salovey, & D. Sluyter (Eds.), *Emotional development and emotional intelligence: Educational implications* (pp. 3-34). Basic Books.
- Mayer, J. D., Carsuo, D. R. & Salovey, P., (2000). Models of Emotional Intelligence. In R. Sternberg (Ed.), *Handbook of intelligence*, Cambridge University Press. https://doi.org/10.1017/CBO9780511807947
- Mayer, J. D., Caruso, D. R., & Salovey, P. (1999). Emotional intelligence meets traditional standards for an intelligence. *Intelligence*, 27(4), 267-298. https://doi.org/10.1016/S0160-2896(99)00016-1
- Mayer, J. D., Caruso, D. R., & Salovey, P. (2016). The ability model of emotional intelligence: Principles and updates. *Emotion Review*, 8(4), 290-300.
  https://doi.org/10.1177/1754073916639667.
- Mestre, J. M., Núñez-Lozano, J. M., Gómez-Molinero, R., Zayas, A., & Guil, R. (2017). Emotion regulation ability and resilience in a sample of adolescents from a suburban area. *Frontiers in Psychology*, 8, 1-13. https://doi.org/10.3389/fpsyg.2017.01980

- Mey, C., & Yin, C. J. (2015). Mental health and wellbeing of the undergraduate students in a research university: A Malaysian experience. *Social Indicators Research*, 122(2), 539-551. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11205-014-0704-9.
- Mikolajczak, M., & Limunet, O. (2008). Trait emotional intelligence and the cognitive appraisal of stressful events: An exploratory study. *Personality and Individual Differences*, 44(7), 1445-1453. http://doi.org/10.1016/j.paid.2007.12.012
- Miles, J. (2014). Tolerance and variance inflation factor. In N. Balakrishnan, T. Colton, B. Everitt, W. Piegorsch, F. Ruggeri and J.L. Teugels (Eds.), *Encyclopedia of statistics in behavioral science*. John Wiley & Sons, Ltd. https://doi.org/10.1002/9781118445112.stat06593
- Miot, H. A. (2017). Assessing normality of data in clinical and experimental trials. *Jornal Vascular Brasileiro*, *16*(2), 88-91. https://doi.org/10.1590/1677-5449.041117
- Mishra, P., Pandey, C. M., Singh, U., Gupta, A., Sahu, C., & Keshri, A. (2019). Descriptive statistics and normality tests for statistical data. *Annals of Cardiac Anaesthesia*, 22(1), 67-72. https://doi.org/10.4103/aca.ACA\_157\_18
- Mitrofan, N., & Ciuluvică, C. (2012). Anger and hostility as indicators of emotion regulation and of the life satisfaction at the beginning and the ending period of the adolescence. *Procardia-Social and Behavioral Sciences*, 33, 65-69.
- Mohammed, H., Hayati, K. S., & Salmiah, M. S. (2016). Coping with depression, anxiety, and stress: A cross-sectional study among Malaysian students in a public university. *IOSR Journal of Dental and Medical Sciences*, *15*(11), 83-95. http://doi.org/10.9790/0853-1511068395
- Mohzan, M. A. M., Hassan, N., & Halil, N. A. (2013). The influence of emotional intelligence on academic achievement. Procedia-Social and Behavioral Sciences, 90, 303-312. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.sbspro.2013.07.095

Morelli, S. A., Lieberman, M.D., Zaki, J. (2015). The emerging study of positive empathy. Social and Personality Psychology Compass, 9(2), 57-68. https://doi.org/10.1111/spc3.12157

Mortier, P., Auerbach, R. P., Alonso, J., Bantjes, J., Benjet, C., Cuijpers, P., Ebert, D. D.,
Green, J. G., Hasking, P., Nock, M. K., O'Neill, S., Pinder-Amaker, S., Sampson, N.
A., Vilagut, G., Zaslavsky, A. M., Bruffaerts, R., Kessler, R. C., & WHO WMH-ICS
Collaborators. (2018a). Suicidal thoughts and behaviors among first-year college
students: Results from the WMH-ICS project. *Journal of the American Academy of Child and Adolescent Psychiatry*, *57*(4), 263-273.e1.

https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jaac.2018.01.018

- Mortier, P., Cuijpers, P., Kiekens, G., Auerbach, R. P., Demyttenaere, K., Green, J. G., Kessler, R. C., Nock, M. K., & Bruffaerts, R. (2018b). The prevalence of suicidal thoughts and behaviours among college students: A meta-analysis. *Psychological Medicine*, 48(4), 554-565. https://doi.org/10.1017/S0033291717002215
- Nam, B., Hilmire, M. R., Jahn, D., Leshman, M., DeVylder, J. E. (2018). Predictors of suicidal ideation among college students: A prospective cohort study. *Social Work in Mental Health*, 16(2), 223-237. https://doi.org/10.1080/15332985.2017.1380742
- Naseem, S., & Munaf, S. (2017). Suicidal ideation, depression, anxiety, stress, and life satisfaction of medical, engineering, and social sciences students. *Journal of Ayub Medical College Abbottabad*, 29(3), 422-427.

Nederhof, A. J. (1985). Methods of coping with social desirability bias: A review. *European Journal of Social Psychology*, 15(3), 263-280. https://doi.org/10.1002/ejsp.2420150303

- Nock, M. K., Borges, G., Bromet, E. J., Cha, C. B., Kessler, R. C., & Lee, S. (2008). Suicide and suicidal behavior. *Epidemiologic Reviews*, 30(1), 133-154. https://doi.org/10.1093/epirev/mxn002
- Nolen-Hoeksema, S., & Aldao, A. (2011). Gender and age differences in emotion regulation strategies and their relationship to depressive symptoms. *Personality and Individual Differences*, 51(6), 704-708. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.paid.2011.06.012
- Noor, N. H. M., Zollfikree, A. S. & Noruddin N. F. (2021). An exploratory study on emotional intelligence and life satisfaction among university students. *Jurnal Personalia Pelajar*, 24(1), 75-84.
- Noor, N. H. M., Zollfikree, A. S., & Noruddin, N. F. (2021). An exploratory study on emotional intelligence and life satisfaction among university students. *Malaysian Journal of Student Advancement*, 24(1), 75-84.
- Ocaña-Moral, M. T., Gav ń-Chocano, Ó., P érez-Nav ó, E., & del Carmen Mart ńez-Serrano,
  M. (2021). Relationship among perceived stress, life satisfaction and academic
  performance of education sciences students of the University of Ja én after the COVID
  19 pandemic. Preprints. https://doi.org/10.20944/preprints202110.0311.v1
- Ojeda, L., Flores, L. Y., & Navarro, R. L. (2011). Social cognitive predictors of Mexican American college students' academic and life satisfaction. *Journal of Counseling Psychology*, 58(1), 61-71. https://doi.org/10.1037/A0021687
- Ong, A. D., Bergeman, C. S., Bisconti, T. L., & Wallace, K. A. (2006). Psychological resilience, positive emotions, and successful adaptation to stress in later life. *Journal* of Personality and Social Psychology, 91(4), 730-749. https://doi.org/10.1037/0022-3514.91.4.730

- Orcan, F. (2020). Parametric or non-parametric: Skewness to test normality for mean comparison. *International Journal of Assessment Tools in Education*, 7(2), 255-265. https://doi.org/10.21449/ijate.656077
- Osborne, J. W., & Waters, E. (2002). Four assumptions of multiple regression that researchers should always test. *Practical Assessment, Research, and Evaluation, 8*(1), 1-5. https://doi.org/10.7275/r222-hv23
- Oswalt, S. B., Lederer, A. M., Chestnut-Steich, K., Day, C., Halbritter, A., & Ortiz, D.
  (2020). Trends in college students' mental health diagnoses and utilization of services, 2009-2015. *Journal of American College Health*, 68(1), 41-51. https://doi.org/10.1080/07448481.2018.1515748
- Owens, T. J. (1992). The effect of post-high school social context on self-esteem. *The Sociological Quarterly*, *33*(4), 553-577. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1533-8525.1992.tb00143.x
- Özer, E., Hamarta, E., & Deniz, M. E. (2016). Emotional intelligence, core-self evaluation, and life satisfaction. *Psychology*, 7(2), 145-153. http://doi.org/10.4236/psych.2016.72017
- Pacheco, N. E., Rey, L., & Sánchez-Álvarez, N. (2019). Validation of the Spanish version of the Wong Law emotional intelligence scale (WLEIS-S). *Psicothema*. 31(1), 94-100. https://doi.org/10.7334/psicothema2018.147
- Paschali, A., & Tsitsas, G. (2010). Stress and life satisfaction among university students-A pilot study. *Annals of General Psychiatry*, *9*, Article
  S96. https://doi.org/10.1186/1744-859X-9-S1-S96
- Pascoe, M. C., Hetrick, S. E., & Parker, A. G. (2020). The impact of stress on students in secondary school and higher education. *International Journal of Adolescence and Youth*, 25(1), 104-112. https://doi.org/10.1080/02673843.2019.1596823.

- Patel, A. K., Tiwari, S. K., Singh, S., & Lindinger-Sternart, S. (2018). Self-esteem and life satisfaction among university students of Eastern Uttar Pradesh of India: A demographical perspective. *Indian Journal of Positive Psychology*, 9(3), 382-386.
- Pavot, W., & Diener, E. (2008). The satisfaction with life scale and the emerging construct of life satisfaction. *The Journal of Positive Psychology*, *3*(2), 137-152. https://doi.org/10.1080/17439760701756946
- Pavot, W., & Diener, E. (2009). Review of the Satisfaction with Life Scale. In Diener, E. (Ed.), *Assessing well-being*. Springer. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-90-481-2354-4\_5
- Phang, C. K., Sherina, M. S., Zubaidah, J. O., Noor Jan, K. O. N., & Firdaus, M. (2015).
  Prevalence of psychological stress among undergraduate students attending a health programme in a Malaysian University. *Pertanika Journal of Science and Technology*, 23(1), 29-35.
- Phillips, A. C. (2013). Perceived stress. In Gellman, M. D., & Turner, J. R. (Eds.), *Encyclopedia of behavioral medicine* (pp. 1453-1454).
  Springer. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-1-4419-1005-9
- Phillips, A. C. (2015). Perceived stress. In Gellman, M. D., & Turner, J. R. (Eds.), *Encyclopedia of behavioral medicine*. Springer. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-1-4419-1005-9
- Pontes, H. M., Kir dy, O., Demetrovics, Z., & Griffiths, M. D. (2014). The conceptualisation and measurement of DSM-5 internet gaming disorder: The development of the IGD-20 Test. *PLoS One*, 9(10). https://doi.org/10.1371/journal.pone.0110137
- Prasoon, R., & Chaturvedi, K. R. (2016). Life satisfaction: A literature review. *International Journal of Management Humanities and Social Sciences July-Dec*, 1(2), 25-32.
- Prince-Embury, S. (2013). Resiliency scales for children and adolescents: Theory, research, and clinical application. In S. Prince-Embury & D. Saklofske (Eds.), *Resilience in*

children, adolescent, and adults: Translating research for practice (pp. 19–44). Springer.

- Prince-Embury, S. (2014). A three factor model of personal resilience and related assessment.
  In S. PrinceEmbury & D. Saklofske (Eds.), *Resilience interventions for youth in diverse populations* (pp. 25–57). Springer.
- Proctor, C. L., Linley, P. A., & Maltby, J. (2009). Youth life satisfaction: A review of the literature. *Journal of Happiness Studies*, 10, 583-630. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10902-008-9110-9
- Proctor, C., Linley, P.A., Maltby, J. (2017). Life Satisfaction. In Levesque, R. (Ed), *Encyclopedia of adolescence* (pp. 2165-2176). Springer. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-319-32132-5\_125-2\
- Purnamaningsih, E. H. (2017). Personality and emotion regulation strategies. *International Journal of Psychological Research*, 10(1), 53-60. https://doi.org/10.21500/20112084.2040
- Ramachandran, K., Hamsan, H. H., & Khir, A. M. (2018). Emotional intelligence and life satisfaction among students in Klang Valley Malaysia. *Journal of Modern Trends in Social Sciences*, 1(4), 28-37.
- Ramos-D íz, E., Rodr guez-Fern ández, A., Axpe, I., & Ferrara, M. (2019). Perceived emotional intelligence and life satisfaction among adolescent students: The mediating role of resilience. *Journal of Happiness Studies*, 20(8), 2489-2506. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10902-018-0058-0
- Rathore, D., & Chadha, N. K. (2021). Psychometric evaluation of Wong and Law Emotional Intelligence Scale (WLEIS) in Indian college students. *The International Journal of Indian Psychology*, 9(1), 867-876.

- Rayle, A. D., Arredondo, P., & Kurpius, S. E. R. (2005). Educational self-efficacy of college women: Implications for theory, research, and practice. *Journal of Counseling & Development*, 83(3), 361-366. https://doi.org/10.1002/j.1556-6678.2005.tb00356.x
- Razali, N. M., & Wah, Y. B. (2011). Power comparisons of shapiro-wilk, kolmogorovsmirnov, lilliefors and anderson-darling tests. *Journal of statistical modeling and analytics*, 2(1), 21-33.
- Reis, H. T., Sheldon, K. M., Gable, S. L., Roscoe, J., & Ryan, R. M. (2000). Daily wellbeing: The role of autonomy, competence, and relatedness. *Personality and Social Psychology Bulletin*, 26(4), 419-435. https://doi.org/10.1177/0146167200266002
- Renshaw, T. L., & Cohen, A. S. (2014). Life satisfaction as a distinguishing indicator of college student functioning: Further validation of the two-continua model of mental health. *Social Indicators Research*, *117*(1), 319-334. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11205-013-0342-7
- Rezaei, A., & Jeddi, E. M. (2020). Relationship between wisdom, perceived control of internal states, perceived stress, social intelligence, information processing styles and life satisfaction among college students. *Current Psychology*, *39*(3), 927-933. https://doi.org/10.1007/s12144-018-9804-z
- Richardson, C. M. E. (2017). Emotion regulation in the context of daily stress: Impact on daily affect. *Personality and Individual Differences*, 112, 150-156. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.paid.2017.02.058
- Rissanen, T. (2015). Studies on life satisfaction in samples of the general population and depressive patients [Doctoral Dissertations, University of Eastern Finland].
  Dissertations in Health Sciences.
  https://erepo.uef.fi/bitstream/handle/123456789/16002/urn\_isbn\_978-952-61-2004-1.pdf?sequence=1&isAllowed=y
Sabbah, I. M., Sabbah, H., Khamis, R., Berbari, R., Sabbah, S., Badran, S., & Droubi, N. (2020). Factors associated with the emotional intelligence among youth university students. *European Journal of Clinical Medicine*, 1(1). https://doi.org/10.24018/clinicmed.2020.1.1.3

Saddki, N., Sukerman, N., & Mohamad, D. (2017). Association between emotional intelligence and perceived Stress in undergraduate dental students. *The Malaysian Journal of Medical Sciences: MJMS*, 24(1), 59-68. https://doi.org/10.21315/mjms2017.24.1.7

- Saleh, D., Camart, N., & Romo, L. (2017). Predictors of stress in college students. Frontiers in Psychology, 8, Article 19. https://doi.org/10.3389/fpsyg.2017.00019
- Salovey, P. (2001). Applied emotional intelligence: Regulating emotions to become healthy, wealthy, and wise. In J. Ciarrochi, J. P. Forgas, & J. D. Mayer (Eds.), *Emotional intelligence in everyday life: A scientific inquiry* (pp. 168-184). Psychology Press.
- Salovey, P., & Mayer, J. D. (1990). Emotional intelligence. *Imagination, Cognition and Personality*, 9(3), 185-211. https://doi.org/10.2190/DUGG-P24E-52WK-6CDG
- Salovey, P., Mayer, J. D., Goldman, S. L., Turvey, C., & Palfai, T. P. (1995). Emotional attention, clarity, and repair: Exploring emotional intelligence using the Trait Meta-Mood Scale. In J. W. Pennebaker (Ed.), *Emotion, disclosure, & health* (pp. 125-154). American Psychological Association. https://doi.org/10.1037/10182-006
- Salovey, P., Stroud, L. R., Woolery, A., & Epel, E. S. (2002). Perceived emotional intelligence, stress reactivity, and symptom reports: Further explorations using the Trait Meta-Mood Scale. *Psychology & Health*, *17*(5), 611-627. https://doi.org/10.1080/08870440290025812
- Salovey, P., Stroud, L. R., Woolery, A., & Epel, E. S. (2002). Perceived emotional intelligence, stress reac-tivity, and symptom reports: Further explorations using the

trait meta-mood scale. *Psychology and Health*, *17*(5), 611–627. https://doi.org/10.1080/08870 44029 00258 12.

- Salvatores, M., Palmiotti, G., Aliberti, G., Archier, P., Jean, C.D., Dupont, E., Herman,
  M.W., Ishikawa, M., Ivanova, T., Ivanov, E., Kim, S., Kodeli, I., Manturov, G.,
  Mcknight, R.D., Pelloni, S., Perfetti, C.M., Plompen, A.J., Rearden, B.T., Rochman,
  D., Sugino, K., Trkov, A., Wang, W., Wu, H., & Yang, W.S. (2014). Methods and
  issues for the combined use of integral experiments and covariance data: Results of a
  NEA international collaborative study. *Nuclear Data Sheets*, *118*, 38-71.
  https://doi.org/10.1016/j.nds.2014.04.005
- Samaranayake, C. B., Arroll, B., & Fernando, A. T., 3rd (2014). Sleep disorders, depression, anxiety and satisfaction with life among young adults: A survey of university students in Auckland, New Zealand. *The New Zealand Medical Journal*, 127(1399), 13-22.
- S ánchez-Álvarez, N., Extremera, N., & Fern ández-Berrocal, P. (2015). Maintaining life satisfaction in adolescence: Affective mediators of the influence of perceived emotional intelligence on overall life satisfaction judgments in a two-year longitudinal study. *Frontiers in Psychology*, 6, Article 1892.

https://doi.org/10.3389/fpsyg.2015.01892

S ánchez-Álvarez, N., Extremera, N., & Fern ández-Berrocal, P. (2016). The relation between emotional intelligence and subjective well-being: A meta-analytic investigation. *The Journal of Positive Psychology*, *11*(3), 276-285.

https://doi.org/10.1080/17439760.2015.1058968

S ánchez-Álvarez, N., Extremera, N., & Fern ández-Berrocal, P. (2016). The relation between emotional intelligence and subjective well-being: A meta-analytic investigation. *The Journal of Positive Psychology*, *11*(3), 276-

285. https://doi.org/10.1080/17439760.2015.1058968

- Sapmaz, F., Doğan, T., Sapmaz, S., Temizel, S., & Tel, F. D. (2012). Examining predictive role of psychological need satisfaction on happiness in terms of self-determination theory. *Procedia-Social and Behavioral Sciences*, 55, 861-868. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.sbspro.2012.09.573
- Sariçam, H., Çelik, İ., Yurtseven, L. (2015). The relationship between emotional intelligence, hope and life satisfaction in preschool preserves teacher. *The International Journal of Research in Teacher Education*, 6(1), 1-9.
- Schutte, N. S., Malouff, J. M., Bobik, C., Coston, T. D., Greeson, C., Jedlicka, C., Rhodes,
  E., & Wendorf, G. (2001). Emotional intelligence and interpersonal relations. *The Journal of Social Psychology*, *141*(4), 523-536.
  https://doi.org/10.1080/00224540109600569
- Schutte, N. S., Manes, R. R., & Malouff, J. M. (2009). Antecedent-focused emotion regulation, response modulation and well-being. *Current Psychology: A Journal for Diverse Perspectives on Diverse Psychological Issues*, 28(1), 21-

31. https://doi.org/10.1007/s12144-009-9044-3

- Schwartz, S., Cot é, J., & Arnett, J. (2005). Identity and agency in emerging adulthood. *Youth & Society*, 37(2), 201-229. https://doi.org/10.1177/0044118X05275965
- Senaviratna, N. A. M. R., & Cooray, T. M. J. A. (2019). Diagnosing multicollinearity of logistic regression model. Asian Journal of Probability and Statistics, 5(2), 1-9. https://doi.org/10.9734/ajpas/2019/v5i230132
- Seo, E. H., Kim, S. G., Kim, S. H., Kim, J. H., Park, J. H., & Yoon, H. J. (2018). Life satisfaction and happiness associated with depressive symptoms among university students: a cross-sectional study in Korea. *Annals of General Psychiatry*, 17(1), 1-9. https://doi.org/10.1186/s12991-018-0223-1

- Serrat, O. (2017). Understanding and developing emotional intelligence. In *Knowledge solutions* (pp. 329-339). Springer. http://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-10-0983-9\_37
- Setia M. S. (2016). Methodology Series Module 3: Cross-sectional studies. Indian Journal of Dermatology, 61(3), 261-264. https://doi.org/10.4103/0019-5154.182410
- Shahsavarani, A. M., Azad Marz Abadi, E., & Hakimi Kalkhoran, M. (2015). Stress: Facts and theories through literature review. *International Journal of Medical Reviews*, 2(2), 230-241.
- Shamsuddin, K., Fadzil, F., Ismail, W. S., Shah, S. A., Omar, K., Muhammad, N. A., Jaffar, A., Ismail, A., & Mahadevan, R. (2013). Correlates of depression, anxiety and stress among Malaysian university students. *Asian Journal of Psychiatry*, 6(4), 318-323. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ajp.2013.01.014
- Sharma, G. (2017). Pros and cons of different sampling techniques. *International Journal of Applied Research*, *3*(7), 749-752.
- Sharma, G. (2017). Pros and cons of different sampling techniques. *International Journal of Applied Research*, *3*(7), 749-752.
- Sheroun, D., Wankhar, D. D., Devrani, A., Lissamma, P. V., & Chatterjee, K. (2020). A study to assess the perceived stress and coping strategies among B. Sc. nursing students of selected colleges in Pune during COVID-19 pandemic lockdown. *International Journal of Science and Healthcare Research*, 5(2), 280-288.
- Siedlecki S. L. (2020). Understanding descriptive research designs and methods. *Clinical Nurse Specialist CNS*, *34*(1), 8-12. https://doi.org/10.1097/NUR.000000000000493
- Sin, N. L., & Lyubomirsky, S. (2009). Enhancing well-being and alleviating depressive symptoms with positive psychology interventions: A practice-friendly meta-analysis. *Journal of Clinical Psychology*, 65(5), 467-487. https://doi.org/10.1002/jclp.20593

- Sivertsen, B., Hysing, M., Knapstad, M., Harvey, A. G., Reneflot, A., Lønning, K. J., & O'Connor, R. C. (2019). Suicide attempts and non-suicidal self-harm among university students: Prevalence study. *BJPsych Open*, 5(2), Article e26. https://doi.org/10.1192/bjo.2019.4
- Sjöberg, L. (2008). Emotional intelligence and life adjustment. In J. C. Cassady & M. A. Eissa (Eds.), *Emotional intelligence: Perspectives on educational and positive psychology* (pp. 169-184). Peter Lang.
- Śmieja, M., Orzechowski, J., & Stolarsk, M. S. (2014). TIE: An ability test of emotional intelligence. *PLoS One*, 9(7), Article e103484. https://doi.org/10.1371/journal.pone.0103484
- Sohail, N. (2013). Stress and academic performance among medical students. *Journal of the College of Physicians and Surgeons Pakistan*, 23(1), 67-71.
- Son, C., Hegde, S., Smith, A., Wang, X., & Sasangohar, F. (2020). Effects of COVID-19 on college students' mental health in the United States: Interview survey study. *Journal* of Medical Internet Research, 22(9), Article e21279. https://doi.org/10.2196/21279
- Stagnitti, K., Schoo, D., & Welch, D. (2010). Clinical and fieldwork placements in the health professions. Oxford University Press.
- Stallman, Helen M; Hurst, Cameron P (2016). The university stress scale: Measuring domains and extent of stress in university students. Australian Psychologist, 51(2), 128-134. https://doi.org/10.1111/ap.12127
- Strickland, D. (2000). Emotional intelligence: The most potent factor in the success equation. JONA: The Journal of Nursing Administration, 30(3), 112-117. https://doi.org/10.1097/00005110-200003000-00002
- Strine, T. W., Chapman, D. P., Balluz, L. S., Moriarty, D. G., & Mokdad, A. H. (2008). The associations between life satisfaction and health-related quality of life, chronic illness,

and health behaviors among US community-dwelling adults. *Journal of Community Health*, *33*(1), 40-50. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10900-007-9066-4

- Sulaiman, W. S. W., & Noor, M. Z. M. (2015). Examining the psychometric properties of the Wong and Law Emotional Intelligences Scale (WLEIS). *Journal of Social Sciences* and Humanities, 12(3), 81-90.
- Suldo, S. M., Shaffer, E. J., & Riley, K. N. (2008). A social-cognitive-behavioral model of academic predictors of adolescents' life satisfaction. *School Psychology Quarterly*, 23(1), 56-69. https://doi.org/10.1037/1045-3830.23.1.56
- Sundararajan, S., & Gopichandran, V. (2018). Emotional intelligence among medical students: A mixed methods study from Chennai, India. *BMC Medical Education*, *18*(1), Article 97. https://doi.org/10.1186/s12909-018-1213-3
- Tan, X. H., & Ramzan, U. B. M. (2017). Relationship of perceived stress and life satisfaction among medical students: A cross-sectional study. *Journal of Advances in Medicine* and Medical Research, 20(10), 1-7. https://doi.org/10.9734/BJMMR/2017/31693
- Thingujam, N. (2011). Emotional intelligence and life satisfaction: Re-examining the link and mediating role of affectivity and personality in India. *Journal of the Indian Academy of Applied Psychology*, *37*(1), 27-34.
- Thompson, M. A., Nicholls, A. R., Toner, J., Perry, J. L., & Burke, R. (2021). Pleasant emotions widen thought-action repertoires, develop long-term resources, and improve reaction time performance: A multistudy examination of the broaden-and-build theory among athletes. *Journal of Sport & Exercise Psychology*, 43(2), 155-170. https://doi.org/10.1123/jsep.2020-0192
- Towbes, L. C., & Cohen, L. H. (1996). Chronic stress in the lives of college students: Scale development and prospective prediction of distress. *Journal of Youth and Adolescence*, 25(2), 199-217. https://doi.org/10.1007/BF01537344

- Tracy, J. L., Cheng, J. T., Robins, R. W., & Trzesniewski, K. H. (2009). Authentic and hubristic pride: The affective core of self-esteem and narcissism. *Self and Identity*, 8(2-3), 196-213. https://doi.org/10.1080/15298860802505053
- Tripepi, G., Jager, K. J., Stel, V. S., Dekker, F. W., & Zoccali, C. (2011). How to deal with continuous and dichotomic outcomes in epidemiological research: Linear and logistic regression analyses. *Nephron Clinical Practice*, *118*(4), 399-406. https://doi.org/10.1159/000324049
- Tsitsas, G., Nanopoulos, P., & Paschali, A. (2019). Life satisfaction, and anxiety levels among university students. *Creative Education*, 10(05), 947-961. https://doi.org/10.4236/ce.2019.105071
- Tugade, M. M., & Fredrickson, B. L. (2004). Resilient individuals use positive emotions to bounce back from negative emotional experiences. *Journal of Personality and Social Psychology*, 86(2), 320-333. https://doi.org/10.1037/0022-3514.86.2.320
- Urquijo, I., Extremera, N., & Villa, A. (2016). Emotional intelligence, life satisfaction, and psychological well-being in graduates: The mediating effect of perceived stress. *Applied Research in Quality of Life, 11*(4), 1241-1252.
  https://doi.org/10.1007/s11482-015-9432-9
- Valois, R. F., Zullig, K. J., Huebner, E. S., & Drane, J. W. (2004). Life satisfaction and suicide among high school adolescents. *Social Indicators Research*, 66(1-2), 81-105. https://doi.org/10.1023/B:SOCI.0000007499.19430.2f
- van Heck, G. L., & den Oudsten, B. L. (2008). Emotional intelligence: Relationships to stress, health, and well-being. In A. Vingerhoets, I. Nyklíček, & J. Denollet (Eds.), *Emotion regulation: Conceptual and clinical issues* (pp. 97-121). Springer https://doi.org/10.1007/978-0-387-29986-0\_7

- Veenhoven, R. (1991). Is happiness relative?. *Social Indicators Research*, 24(1), 1-34. https://doi.org/10.1007/BF00292648
- Verma J.P., & Verma P. (2020) Use of G\*Power software. In: *Determining sample size and power in research studies* (pp. 55-60). Springer. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-15-5204-5\_5
- Verzeletti, C., Zammuner, V. L., Galli, C., & Agnoli, S. (2016). Emotion regulation strategies and psychosocial well-being in adolescence. *Cogent Psychology*, 3(1), Article 1199294. https://doi.org/10.1080/23311908.2016.1199294
- Wahab, S., Shah, N. E., Sivachandran, S., Shahruddin, I., Ismail, N., Mohan, L. D.,
  Kamaluddin, M. R., & Nawi, A. M. (2021). Attitude towards suicide and help-seeking
  behavior among medical undergraduates in a Malaysian university. *Academic Psychiatry*. https://doi.org/10.1007/s40596-021-01513-z
- Wang, X., & Cheng, Z. (2020). Cross-sectional studies: strengths, weaknesses, and recommendations. *Chest*, *158*(1), 65-71. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.chest.2020.03.012
- Wang, Y., Chen, X., Gong, J., & Yan, Y. (2016). Relationships between stress, negative emotions, resilience, and smoking: Testing a moderated mediation model. *Substance Use & Misuse*, 51(4), 427-438. https://doi.org/10.1126/sciadv.aax2615
- Wasserman, D., Cheng, Q. I., & Jiang, G. X. (2005). Global suicide rates among young people aged 15-19. World Psychiatry, 4(2), 114-120.
- Weier, M., & Lee, C. (2016). Stagnant or successful, carefree or anxious? Australian university students' goals and beliefs about adulthood and their current well-being. *Australian Psychologist*, 51(6), 422-430. https://doi.org/10.1111/ap.12169
- Weinstein, N., Ryan, R. M., & Deci, E. L. (2012). Motivation, meaning, and wellness: A selfdetermination perspective on the creation and internalization of personal meanings

and life goals. In P. T. P. Wong (Ed.), *The human quest for meaning: Theories, research, and applications* (pp. 81–106). Routledge

- Williams, M. N., Grajales, C. A. G., & Kurkiewicz, D. (2013). Assumptions of multiple regression: Correcting two misconceptions. *Practical Assessment, Research, and Evaluation, 18*(1), 1-14. https://doi.org/10.7275/55hn-wk47
- Wong, C. S., Wong, P. M., & Law, K. S. (2007). Evidence of the practical utility of Wong's emotional intelligence scale in Hong Kong and Mainland China. *Asia Pacific Journal* of Management, 24(1), 43-60. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10490-006-9024-1
- Wong, C.-S., & Law, K. S. (2002). Wong and Law Emotional Intelligence Scale (WLEIS) PsycTESTS. https://doi.org/10.1037/t07398-000
- Yaldizli, O., Kuhl, H. C., Graf, M., Wiesbeck, G. A., & Wurst, F. M. (2010). Risk factors for suicide attempts in patients with alcohol dependence or abuse and a history of depressive symptoms: A subgroup analysis from the WHO/ISBRA study. *Drug and Alcohol Review*, 29(1), 64-74. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1465-3362.2009.00089.x
- Ye, W., Ye, X., Liu, Y., Liu, Q., Vafaei, S., Gao, Y., Yu, H., Zhong, Y., & Zhan, C. (2020). Effect of the novel coronavirus pneumonia pandemic on medical students' psychological stress and its influencing factors. *Frontiers in Psychology*, 11, Article 548506. https://doi.org/10.3389/fpsyg.2020.548506
- Ye, Y., Hu, R., Ni, Z., Jiang, N., & Jiang, X. (2018). Effects of perceived stress and professional values on clinical performance in practice nursing students: A structural equation modeling approach. *Nurse Education Today*, *71*, 157-162. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.nedt.2018.09.036
- Yildirim, M., & Alanazi, Z. S. (2018). Gratitude and life satisfaction: Mediating role of perceived stress. *International Journal of Psychological Studies*, 10(3), 21-28. https://doi.org/10.5539/ijps.v10n3p21

- Yoo, S. H., Matsumoto, D., & LeRoux, J. A. (2006). The influence of emotion recognition and emotion regulation on intercultural adjustment. *International Journal of Intercultural Relations*, 30(3), 345-363. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ijintrel.2005.08.006
- Zamani, B., & Shirazi, M. (2020). Predictions social self-efficacy and life satisfaction in students through attachment to parents and peers. *Journal of Educational Psychology Studies*, 17(38), 67-84. https://doi.org/10.22111/jeps.2020.5278.
- Zangirolami-Raimundo, J., Echeimberg, J. D. O., & Leone, C. (2018). Research methodology topics: Cross-sectional studies. *Journal of Human Growth and Development*, 28(3), 356-360. http://dx.doi.org/10.7322/jhgd.152198
- Zeidner, M., Matthews, G., & Roberts, R. D. (2009). What we know about emotional intelligence: How it affects learning, work, relationships, and our mental health. MIT Press.
- Zeidner, M., Matthews, G., & Roberts, R. D. (2012). The emotional intelligence, health, and well-being nexus: What have we learned and what have we missed?. *Applied Psychology. Health and Well-Being*, 4(1), 1-30. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1758-0854.2011.01062.x
- Zeidner, M., Roberts, R. D., & Matthews, G. (2002). Can emotional intelligence be schooled?
  A critical review. *Educational Psychologist*, 37(4), 215-231.
  https://doi.org/10.1207/S15326985EP3704\_2
- Zhou, J., & George, J. M. (2003). Awakening employee creativity: The role of leader emotional intelligence. *The Leadership Quarterly*, 14(4-5), 545-568. https://doi.org/10.1016/S1048-9843(03)00051-1

#### Appendices

#### Appendix A

#### **G\*Power Calculation**

Correlation analysis between the dimensions of the WLEIS										
	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	Alpha	M (SD)
1.Self-Emotion Appraisal									.79	5.17 (1.10)
2. Other's Emotion Appraisal	.62	-							.81	5.16 (1.10)
3. Use of Emotion	.67	.56	-						.81	5.11 (1.16)
4. Regulation of Emotion	.62	.44	.62	-					.84	4.64 (1.24)
5. Global Emotional Intelligence	.87	.78	.86	.82	-				.91	5.02 (.96)
6. Subjective Happiness	.36	.27	.46	.37	.44	-			.76	4.89 (1.13)
7. Perceived Stress	34	22	40	37	40	56	_		.66	2.15 (.68)
8. Suicidal Behaviors	18	07	24	20	21	32	.26	-	.80	1.08 (.61)
9. Life Satisfaction	.33	.26	.41	.38	.41	.60	54	29	.83	4.28 (1.27)

Extremera Pacheco, N., Rey, L., & Sánchez-Álvarez, N. (2019). Validation of the Spanish

version of the Wong Law Emotional Intelligence Scale (WLEIS-S). Psicothema,

31(1), 94-100. https://doi.org/10.7334/psicothema2018.147

Table 1. Internal consistency, mean, standard deviation and Spearman's Rho correlation of the variables life satisfaction and emotional intelligence.

Dimension	α	ω	M(SD)	SV	SEA	OEA	UOE	ROE	ATT	CL	REP	INTER	ADAP	STR	INTRA
SWL	0.8	0.79	19.39 (±4.9)	- 26	0.50 **	0.11 *	0.56 **	0.48 **	0.12 *	0.45 **	0.44 **	0.14 **	0.17 **	-0.18 **	0.25 **
SEA	0.77	0.76	11.30 (±2.3)			0.40 **	0.67 **	0.66 **	0.43 **	0.84 **	0.57 **	0.33 **	0.37 **	-0.14 **	0.28 **
OEA	0.8	0.76	18.17 (±2.7)				0.22 **	0.33 **	0.39 **	0.40 **	0.24 **	0.61 **	0.38 **	-0.17 **	0.19 **
UOE	0.78	0.8	14.39 (±3.4)					0.62 **	0.30 **	0.56 **	0.76 **	0.22 **	0.32 **	-0.26 **	0.25 **
ROE	0.78	0.75	13.36 (±3.1)					17	0.41 **	0.61 **	0.62 **	0.25 **	0.40 **	-0.44 **	0.17 **
ATT	0.8	0.74	26.40 (±5.3)						8	0.53 **	0.36 **	0.41 **	0.25 **	-0.05	0.08
CL	0.77	0.84	30.31 (±6.0)							8 <b>•</b> 8	0.52 **	0.34 **	0.35 **	-0.13 *	0.24 **
REP	0.78	0.86	26.16 (±5.7)								ā	0.20 **	0.39 **	-0.25 **	0.09
INTER	0.76	0.65	29.33 (±3.2)									73	0.36 **	-0.03	0.26 **
ADAP	0.72	0.64	18.23 (±2.9)										1277	-0.11 *	0.22 **
STR	0.84	0.72	21.50 (±7.0)											1070	-0.14 *
INTRA	0.77	0.7	26.78 (±3.4)												

Note: (1) Mean = M; Standard deviation = SD; Life satisfaction = SWL; Self Emotion Assessment = SEA; Other's Emotions Assessment = OEA; Use of Emotions = UOE; Emotional regulation = ROE; Emotional Intelligence Attention = ATT; Clarity = CL; Repair = RE; Interpersonal Emotional Intelligence = INTER; Adaptability = ADAP; Stress management = STR; Intrapersonal Emotional Intelligence = INTER. (2) \* = p < 0.05; \*\* = p < 0.01.

Gav n-Chocano, Ó., Molero, D., Ubago-Jim enez, J. L., & Garc n-Mart nez, I. (2020).

Emotions as predictors of life satisfaction among university students. International

Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health, 17(24), 9462.

https://doi.org/10.3390/ijerph17249462

$$f^{2} perceived stress = \frac{(-0.54)^{2}}{1 - (-0.54)^{2}}$$
$$= 0.411$$
$$(0.41)^{2}$$

$$f^2$$
emotional intelligence =  $\frac{(0.41)^2}{1 - (0.41)^2}$ 

$$f^2 SEA = \frac{(0.50)^2}{1 - (0.50)^2}$$

$$= 0.333$$

$$f^2 OEA = \frac{(0.26)^2}{1 - (0.26)^2}$$

$$= 0.073$$

$$f^2 UOE = \frac{(0.56)^2}{1 - (0.56)^2}$$

$$= 0.457$$

$$f^2 ROE = \frac{(0.48)^2}{1 - (0.48)^2}$$

$$= 0.299$$

$$f^2 = \frac{0.411 + 0.202 + 0.333 + 0.073 + 0.457 + 0.299}{6}$$



#### Appendix **B**

#### **Ethical Approval Letter**



Re: U/SERC/299/2021

30 December 2021

Dr Pung Pit Wan Head, Department of Psychology and Counselling Faculty of Arts and Social Science Universiti Tunku Abdul Rahman Jalan Universiti, Bandar Baru Barat 31900 Kampar, Perak.

Dear Dr Pung,

#### Ethical Approval For Research Project/Protocol

We refer to the application for ethical approval for your students' research projects from Bachelor of Social Science (Hons) Psychology programme enrolled in course UAPZ3013/UAPZ3023. We are pleased to inform you that the application has been approved under Expedited Review.

The details of the research projects are as follows:

No	Research Title	Student's Name	Supervisor's Name	Approval Validity			
1. 2.	Social Loafing Behaviour in Collaborative Group Work Among University Students in Malaysia: Self-Efficacy, Group Cohesion and Task Interdependence Examining the Role of Materialism, Perceived	<ol> <li>Dheenosheeni a/p Maganthrin Kumar</li> <li>Khoo Jing Wen</li> <li>Kishuvan a/l Marimuthu</li> <li>Looi Ke Xin</li> </ol>	Dr Chia Qin Ting				
	Buying Behavior Among Young Adults in Malaysia	<ol> <li>Tan Kai Ni</li> <li>Tee Geok Hong</li> </ol>	Di Chie Qiù Thig				
3.	The Mediating role of Social Anxiety on Perceived Stress and Internet Addiction Among Undergraduate Students in Malaysia	<ol> <li>Chong Khai-Juen</li> <li>Lai Ming Han</li> <li>Len Wan Qi</li> </ol>					
4.	The Association of Psychological Distress and Burnout on Job Satisfaction Among Frontliners in The Healthcare Industry During the Pandemic COVID-19 in Malaysia	<ol> <li>Loochana a/p Krishna Rao</li> <li>Adrianna a/l P Silvarajah</li> <li>Visshan a/l Miyanthan</li> </ol>					
5.	Perceived Stress and Emotional Intelligence as Predictors of Life Satisfaction Among Undergraduates in Malaysia	<ol> <li>Ooi Yu Jie</li> <li>Lim Syi Wei</li> <li>Cham Han Tein</li> </ol>	Dr Nurul Iman binti Abdul Jalil	30 December 2021 - 29 December 2022			
6.	The Mediating Role of Money Desire in Death Anxiety Toward Materialism Among Young Adults in Malaysia	<ol> <li>Britney Bong Sue Fun</li> <li>Jemimah Choong Giet Hee</li> <li>Kwok Koh Yee</li> </ol>					
7.	Social Anxiety, Perceived Stress Level and Perceived Social Support as Predictors of Smartphone Addiction Among Undergraduate Students in Malaysia	<ol> <li>Chua Pei Yi</li> <li>Chuah Yi Ting</li> <li>See Jie Sheng</li> </ol>					
8.	The Relationship Between Intrinsic Motivation, Extrinsic Motivation on Job Performance and Job Satisfaction Among Academic Staff in Malaysia	<ol> <li>Chen Chi Shan</li> <li>Ishwinder Kaur a/p Jasper Singh</li> <li>Jessica Teoh Wan Jie</li> </ol>	Mr Tay Kok Wai				
9.	Cognitive Behavioral Therapy Informed Workshop on Sleep: A Preliminary Randomized Controlled Trial	<ol> <li>Joanna Eileen Chan</li> <li>Michele Chu Hiew Mun</li> <li>Sanjeetra a/p Ravindharan</li> </ol>					

 Kampar Campus : Jalan Universiti, Bandar Barat, 31900 Kampar, Perak Darul Ridzuan, Malaysia
 Tel: (605) 468 8888 Fax: (605) 466 1313
 Sungai Long Campus : Jalan Sungai Long, Bandar Sungai Long, Cheras, 43000 Kajang, Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia
 Tel: (603) 9086 0288 Fax: (603) 9019 8868 Website: www.utar.edu.my



No	Research Title	Student's Name	Supervisor's Name	Approval Validity	
10.	Cognitive Behavioral Therapy Informed Workshop on Procrastination: A Preliminary Randomized Controlled Trial	<ol> <li>Phuah Wai Hong</li> <li>Wong Weng Han</li> </ol>	Mr Tay Kok Wai		
11.	Relationship Between Self-Esteem, Fear of Covid-19 and Instagram Addiction Among Undergraduates in Malaysia The Relationship Between Perfectionism, Cognitive Flexibility and Suicide Ideation Among Malaysian Undergraduates	Lee Jia Jie     Loon Ling Lee     Thio Kai Qi     Zoe Chng Woon Chin     Liew Kee Yee     Tiong Wei Jie	Ms Evelyn Toh Kheng Lin		
13.	The Relationship Between Depression, Anxiety, Perceived Social Support and Suicidal Intention Among Gay and Lesbian Young Adults' Community	<ol> <li>Fo Han Sien</li> <li>Gabriel Chai Yeet Jher</li> <li>Beh Jin Ying</li> </ol>			
14.	Knowledge, Risk Perception and Protective Behaviour Among Malaysian Young Adults During COVID-19 Pandemic Online Social Support, Offline Social Support and Academic Readiness as Predictors of Academic Resilience Among Undergraduates in Malaysia	Gan Hui Min     Jeanette Elena Tan     Swi Zi Qing     Kenny Ng Kai Feng     Ng In Yan     Karthiyaini a/p	Dr Gan Su Wan	30 December 2021 - 29 December 2022	
16.	Big 5 Personality Traits as the Predictors of Psychological Well-being Among Adults Working from Home (WFH) in Malaysia During COVID-19 Pandemic	1. Liew Qian Qi 2. Lim Yee Wen	Ms Sanggari a/p		
17.	Impact of Psychological Distress, Fear, Changes in Lifestyle-Related Behavior and Life Satisfaction Among Working Adults During Movement Control Order (MCO) in Malaysia	<ol> <li>Chua Wan Yi</li> <li>Koo Yu Wen</li> <li>Ng Pui Ye</li> </ol>	Krishnan		

The conduct of this research is subject to the following:

- The participants' informed consent be obtained prior to the commencement of the research;
- (2) Confidentiality of participants' personal data must be maintained; and
- (3) Compliance with procedures set out in related policies of UTAR such as the UTAR Research Ethics and Code of Conduct, Code of Practice for Research Involving Humans and other related policies/guidelines.
- (4) Written consent be obtained from the institution(s)/company(ies) in which the physical or/and online survey will be carried out, prior to the commencement of the research.

Should the students collect personal data of participants in their studies, please have the participants sign the attached Personal Data Protection Statement for records.

Thank you.

Yours sincerely,

Professor Ts Dr Faidz bin Abd Rahman Chairman UTAR Scientific and Ethical Review Committee

c.c Dean, Faculty of Arts and Social Science Director, Institute of Postgraduate Studies and Research

Kampar Campus : Jalan Universiti, Bandar Barat, 31900 Kampar, Perak Darul Ridzuan, Malaysia
 Tel: (605) 468 8888 Fax: (605) 466 1313
 Sungai Long Campus : Jalan Sungai Long, Bandar Sungai Long, Cheras, 43000 Kajang, Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia
 Tel: (603) 9086 0288 Fax: (603) 9019 8868
 Website: www.utar.edu.my



#### Appendix C

#### Questionnaire



UNIVERSITI TUNKU ABDUL RAHMAN DEPARTMENT OF PSYCHOLOGY AND COUNSELLING FACULTY OF ARTS AND SOCIAL SCIENCE

A Study of Perceived Stress and Emotional Intelligence as Predictors of Life Satisfaction among Undergraduates in Malaysia.

## Introduction

We are Year 3 Sem 3 Bachelor of Social Science (Hons) Psychology students from University Tunku Abdul Rahman. This research study is conducted for UAPZ 3013 Final Year Project I and UAPZ 3023 Final Year Project II requirements.

## Procedures

The following questionnaire will require approximately 10 minutes to complete. This questionnaire is divided into 4 sections which are demographic data, Perceived Stress Scale (PSS-10), Wong and Law Emotional Intelligence Scale (WLEIS) and Satisfaction with Life Scale (SWLS).

## Confidentiality

All information provided will remain as private and confidential. The information given will only be reported as group data with no identifying information and only used for academic purpose.

## Participation

All the information gathered will remain anonymous and confidential. Your information will not be disclosed to any unauthorized person and would be accessible only by group members. Participant in this study is voluntary, you are free to withdraw with consent and discontinue participation in anytime without

prejudice. Your responses will be coded numerically in the research assignment for the research interpretation. Your cooperation would be greatly appreciated. Please feel free to contact the researchers via hanteinnn@1utar.my (Cham Han Tein), syiwei0606@1utar.my (Lim Syi Wei), ooiyujie12@1utar.my (Ooi Yu Jie) if you have any inquires. If you choose to participate in this study, please answer the questions as honestly as possible and return the completed questionnaire promptly.

#### Risk

Throughout this survey, you will be asked questions about religiosity, educational level and personal events. We acknowledge that the topics might be sensitive, but the questionnaire was checked that without any offensive words.

## Personal Data Protection Statement

In accordance with Personal Data Protection Act 2010 ("PDPA") which came into force on 15 November 2013, Universiti Tunku Abdul Rahman ("UTAR") is hereby bound to make notice and require consent in relation to collection, recording, storage, usage and retention of personal information.

#### Notice:

1. The purposes for which your personal data may be used are inclusive but not limited to:-

- · For assessment of any application to UTAR
- · For processing any benefits and services
- · For communication purposes
- · For advertorial and news
- · For general administration and record purposes
- · For enhancing the value of education
- · For educational and related purposes consequential to UTAR
- · For the purpose of our corporate governance
- · For consideration as a guarantor for UTAR staff/ student applying for his/her scholarship/ study loan

2. Your personal data may be transferred and/or disclosed to third party and/or UTAR collaborative partners including but not limited to the respective and appointed outsourcing agents for purpose of fulfilling our obligations to you in respect of the purposes and all such other purposes that are related to the purposes and also in providing integrated services, maintaining and storing records. Your data may be shared when required by laws and when disclosure is necessary to comply with applicable laws.

3. Any personal information retained by UTAR shall be destroyed and/or deleted in accordance with our retention policy applicable for us in the event such information is no longer required.

4. UTAR is committed in ensuring the confidentiality, protection, security and accuracy of your personal information made available to us and it has been our ongoing strict policy to ensure that your personal information is accurate, complete, not misleading and updated. UTAR would also ensure that your personal data shall not be used for political and commercial purposes.

Acknowledgment of Personal Data Protection Notice

- I have been notified by you and that I hereby understood, consented and agreed per UTAR above notice
- o I disagree, my personal data will not be processed.

## PART A

Demographic Data

Please fill in your personal details or select ONE option.

Age

## Gender

- o Male
- o Female
- o Others:

## Ethnicity

- o Chinese
- o Malay
- o Indian
- o Others:

## Religion

o Buddha

- IslamChristian
- Others:

#### **Current Education Level**

- Foundation/ A-level/ Diploma
- Undergraduate
- Postgraduate

Educational Institution (Full name eg: Universiti Tunku Abdul Rahman)

#### PART B

#### Perceived Stress Scale (PSS-10)

The questions in this scale ask about your feelings and thoughts during the last month. In each case, you will be asked to indicate how often you felt or thought a certain way.

Instructions: Please read the following statements and for each, click the number that best corresponds with your experience during the last month. The rating scale is as follows:

	0 (Never)	1 (Almost Never)	2 (Some times)	3 (Fairly Often)	4 (Very Often)
I. In the last month, how often have you been upset because of something that happened unexpectedly?					
2. In the last month, how often have you felt that you were unable to control the important things in your life?					
3. In the last month, how often have you felt nervous and stressed?					
4. In the last month, how often have you felt confident about your ability to handle your personal problems?					
5. In the last month, how often have you felt that things were going your way?					
6. In the last month, how often have you found that you could not cope with all the things that you had to do?					
7. In the last month, how often have you been able to					

control irritations in your life?			
8. In the last month, how often have you felt that you were on top of things?			
9. In the last month, how often have you been angered because of things that happened that were outside of your control?			
10. In the last month, how often have you felt difficulties were piling up so high that you could not overcome them?			

## PART C

#### Wong and Law Emotional Intelligence Scale (WLEIS)

The items on the Wong and Law Emotional Intelligence Scale (WLEIS) is based on the ability model of emotional intelligence. A list of statements are provided below, and to complete this questionnaire, mark the extent to which you agree or disagree to each of the statements.

Instructions: Please read the following statements and for each, mark the extent to which you agree or disagree to each of the statements. The rating scale is as follows:

	1 (Strongly Disagree)	2 (Disagree)	3 (Slightly Disagree)	4 (Neither Agree or Disagree)	5 (Slightly Agree)	6 (Agree)	7 (Strongly Agree)
1. I have a good sense of why I feel certain feelings most of the time.							
2. I have a good understanding of my own emotions.							
3. I really understand what I feel.							
4. I always know whether I am happy or not.							

5. I always know my friends' emotions from their behaviour.				
6. I am a good observer of others' emotions.				
7. I am sensitive to the feelings and emotions of others.				
8. I have a good understanding of the emotions of people around me.				
9. I always set goals for myself and then try my best to achieve them				
10. I always tell myself I am a competent person.				
11. I am a self- motivating person.				
12. I would always encourage myself to try my best.				
13. I am able to control my temper so that I can handle difficulties rationally.				
14. I am quite capable of controlling my own emotions.				
15. I can always calm down quickly when I am very angry.				
16. I have good control of my emotions.				

## PART D

Satisfaction with Life Scale (SWLS)

The SWLS is a short 5-item instrument designed to measure global cognitive judgments of satisfaction with one's life.

Instructions: Below are five statements that you may agree or disagree with. Indicate your agreement with each item by tapping the appropriate box, from strongly agree, to strongly disagree. Please be open and honest in your responding.

	1 (Strongly Disagree)	2 (Disagree)	3 (Slightly Disagree)	4 (Neither Agree or Disagree)	5 (Slightly Agree)	6 (Agree)	7 (Strongly Agree)
1. In most ways my life is close to my ideal.							
2. The conditions of my life are excellent.							
3. I am satisfied with my life.							
4. So far I have gotten the important things I want in life.							
5. If I could live my life over, I would change almost nothing.							

#### Appendix D

# SPSS Output: Current Education Level

Education\_level

					Cumulative
		Frequency	Percent	Valid Percent	Percent
Valid	Undergraduate	110	100.0	100.0	100.0

## **SPSS Output: Educational Institution**

-					Cumulative
		Frequency	Percent	Valid Percent	Percent
Valid	Aimst University	5	4.5	4.5	4.5
	HELP University	1	.9	.9	5.5
	International Medical University	6	5.5	5.5	10.9
	INTI International College Subang	1	.9	.9	11.8
	Monash university malaysia	1	.9	.9	12.7
	Multimedia University	1	.9	.9	13.6
	Sunway university	3	2.7	2.7	16.4
	Taylor's University Lakeside Campus	3	2.7	2.7	19.1
	Tunku Abdul Rahman Universiti College	4	3.6	3.6	22.7
	UCSI University	1	.9	.9	23.6
	Universiti Kebangsaan Malaysia	1	.9	.9	24.5
	Universiti Malaya	7	6.4	6.4	30.9
	Universiti Putra Malaysia	1	.9	.9	31.8
	Universiti Sains Malaysia	2	1.8	1.8	33.6
	Universiti Tunku Abdul Rahman	60	54.5	54.5	88.2
	Universiti Utara Malaysia	2	1.8	1.8	90.0
	University Malaysia Kelantan (UMK)	1	.9	.9	90.9
	University Malaysia Perlis	1	.9	.9	91.8

#### Educational\_institution

University Malaysia Terengganu	1	.9	.9	92.7
University of Nottingham Malaysia	1	.9	.9	93.6
University Teknologi Malaysia	1	.9	.9	94.5
Wawasan Open University	2	1.8	1.8	96.4
Xiamen University Malaysia	4	3.6	3.6	100.0
Total	110	100.0	100.0	

# SPSS Output: Course Name

		Course_n	ame		
					Cumulative
	_	Frequency	Percent	Valid Percent	Percent
Valid	Accounting	5	4.5	4.5	4.5
	Accounting and Finance	1	.9	.9	5.5
	Biochemistry	1	.9	.9	6.4
	Biotechnology	2	1.8	1.8	8.2
	Buidling Surveying	1	.9	.9	9.1
	Business	1	.9	.9	10.0
	Business Administration	5	4.5	4.5	14.5
	Business Information	1	Q	٩	15 5
	System	'	.9	.9	10.0
	Business Psychology	1	.9	.9	16.4
	Chiropractic	1	.9	.9	17.3
	Commerce Accounting	1	.9	.9	18.2
	Computer Science	2	1.8	1.8	20.0
	Construction Management	5	4.5	4.5	24.5
	Dentistry	1	.9	.9	25.5
	Dietetics	9	8.2	8.2	33.6
	Economics	1	.9	.9	34.5
	Engineering	1	.9	.9	35.5
	Engineering	1	٩	٩	36.4
	Entrepreneurship	, '			JU. <del>1</del>
	English Language	1	.9	.9	37.3
	Finance	6	5.5	5.5	42.7
	Food Science with Nutrition	1	.9	.9	43.6
	Global Economies	1	.9	.9	44.5

Course name

Hospital Management	1	.9	.9	45.5
Information Systems	1	9	9	46.4
Engineering		.0	.0	
International Business	3	2.7	2.7	49.1
Law	2	1.8	1.8	50.9
Logistics and International	1	0	0	51.9
Shippings	1	.9	.9	51.0
Marketing	2	1.8	1.8	53.6
Material Engineering	1	.9	.9	54.5
MBBS	4	3.6	3.6	58.2
Mechanical Engineering	1	.9	.9	59.1
Mechatronic	1	.9	.9	60.0
Petrochemical Engineering	1	.9	.9	60.9
Pharmacy	2	1.8	1.8	62.7
Physiotherapy	2	1.8	1.8	64.5
Property Management	1	.9	.9	65.5
Psychology	27	24.5	24.5	90.0
Public Relations	7	6.4	6.4	96.4
Software Engineering	1	.9	.9	97.3
Technology Management	1	.9	.9	98.2
Translation and	4	0	0	00.4
Interpretation	1	.9	.9	99.1
Veterinary Medicine	1	.9	.9	100.0
Total	110	100.0	100.0	

# SPSS Output: Current Year and Semester

Current_year_and_semester					
		Frequency	Percent	Valid Percent	Cumulative
	-	пециенсу	I EICEIII	Vallu i elcent	reicent
Valid	Y1S1	2	1.8	1.8	1.8
	Y1S2	5	4.5	4.5	6.4
	Y1S3	3	2.7	2.7	9.1
	Y2S1	16	14.5	14.5	23.6
	Y2S2	2	1.8	1.8	25.5
	Y2S3	2	1.8	1.8	27.3
	Y3S1	10	9.1	9.1	36.4
	Y3S2	22	20.0	20.0	56.4
	Y3S3	44	40.0	40.0	96.4

		-		
urrent	vear	and	semester	

<b></b>			1	
Y3S5	3	2.7	2.7	99.1
Y4S1	1	.9	.9	100.0
Total	110	100.0	100.0	

# Appendix E





TOTAL\_SEA











#### Histogram











# Appendix G

## Q-Q Plot





Normal Q-Q Plot of TOTAL\_UOE







# Appendix H

# **Turnitin Originality Report**

fyp2 origin/			
1 SIMILA	6% 13%	8% PUBLICATIONS	6% STUDENT PAPERS
PRIMAR	Y SOURCES		
1	eprints.utar.edu.my		3%
2	link.springer.com		1 %
3	Submitted to Northcentr Student Paper	al	<1%
4	Ângelo Miguel Rodrigues Manuel Pereira de Olivei "Emotional Intelligence a Organizations", Open Jou Management, 2014 Publication	s Cabral, Fernar ra Carvalho. and Ethics on arnal of Busines	ndo <1%
5	www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov		<1%
6	Submitted to HELP UNIV	ERSITY	<1%
7	files.eric.ed.gov		<1%
8	humanfactors.jmir.org		

Internet Source
		<1%
9	prc.springeropen.com	<1%
10	pt.scribd.com Internet Source	<1%
11	Nicole E. Rossi, Toni L. Bisconti, C. S. Bergeman. "The Role of Dispositional Resilience in Regaining Life Satisfaction after the Loss of a Spouse", Death Studies, 2007 Publication	<1%
12	Submitted to Universiti Tunku Abdul Rahman	<1%
13	Malinauskas, Romualdas. "The Associations Among Social Support, Stress, and Life Satisfaction as Perceived by Injured College Athletes", Social Behavior and Personality An International Journal, 2010. Publication	<1%
14	etd.uum.edu.my Internet Source	<1%
15	Submitted to Higher Education Commission Pakistan Student Paper	<1%
16	Hyo Sun Jung, Hye Hyun Yoon. "Why is employees' emotional intelligence	<1%

	Important?", International Journal of Contemporary Hospitality Management, 2016 Publication	
17	cdr.lib.unc.edu Internet Source	<1%
18	kar.kent.ac.uk	<1%
19	Evans Asante Boadi, Zheng He, Eric Kofi Boadi, Samuel Antwi, Joy Say. "Customer value co-creation and employee silence: Emotional intelligence as explanatory mechanism", International Journal of Hospitality Management, 2020 Publication	<1%
20	www.scielo.org.za	<1%
21	Submitted to The Chicago School of Professional Psychology Student Paper	<1%
22	Submitted to Universiti Selangor Student Paper	<1%
23	sajhrm.co.za Internet Source	<1%
24	scholarworks.waldenu.edu	<1%

important?" International Journal of

www.take-conference2019.com

25	Internet Source	<1%
26	Submitted to Royal Holloway and Bedford New College Student Paper	<1%
27	Xiaofei Yan, Kejian Yang, Jingkuan Su, Zhengxue Luo, Zhihong Wen. "Mediating Role of Emotional Intelligence on the Associations between Core Self-Evaluations and Job Satisfaction, Work Engagement as Indices of Work-Related Well-Being", Current Psychology, 2016 Publication	<1%
28	journals.calstate.edu	<1%
28 29	journals.calstate.edu Internet Source www.sbp-journal.com Internet Source	<1 <sub>%</sub>
28 29 30	journals.calstate.edu Internet Source www.sbp-journal.com Internet Source Gloria Nakie Apore, Emmanuel Selase Asamoah. "Emotional intelligence, gender and transformational leadership among nurses in emerging economies", Leadership in Health Services, 2019 Publication	<1% <1% <1%

<1%
<1%
<1%
<1%
<1%

frontend.lidsen.com

38	Internet Source	<1%
<mark>39</mark>	www.sciencegate.app	<1%
40	Md. Aftab Anwar, AAhad M. Osman Gani, Muhammad Sabbir Rahman. "Effects of spiritual intelligence from Islamic perspective on emotional intelligence", Journal of Islamic Accounting and Business Research, 2020 Publication	<1%
41	Natasha R. Magson, Rhonda G. Craven, Richard M. Ryan, Anthony Dillon et al. "A Cross-Cultural Investigation of Basic Psychological Need Satisfaction at Work in an Indigenous and Non-Indigenous Australian Sample Across Occupation Types", Journal of Cross-Cultural Psychology, 2022 Publication	<1%
42	d-nb.info Internet Source	<1%
43	drum.lib.umd.edu Internet Source	<1%
44	iosrjournals.org	<1%
45	m.scirp.org	<1%

46	trace.tennessee.edu	<1%
47	www.biogeosciences.net	<1%
48	Boniwell, Ilona, Tunariu, Aneta D "Positive Psychology: Theory, Research and Applications", Positive Psychology: Theory, Research and Applications, 2019 Publication	<1%
49	Noorazzila Shamsuddin, Ramlee Abdul Rahman. "The Relationship between Emotional Intelligence and Job Performance of Call Centre Agents", Procedia - Social and Behavioral Sciences, 2014 Publication	<1%
50	Submitted to University Der Es Salaam	<1%
51	discovery.dundee.ac.uk Internet Source	<1%
52	etd.lib.metu.edu.tr	<1%
53	rucore.libraries.rutgers.edu	<1%
54	www.tandfonline.com	<1%

55	Siu-man Ng, King Wo Chow, Hi Po Lau, Qi Wang. "Awareness Versus Un-Clinging: Which Matters in Mindfulness?", Contemporary Buddhism, 2017 Publication	<1%
56	doc.utwente.nl Internet Source	<1%
57	docksci.com Internet Source	<1%
58	egrove.olemiss.edu	<1%
59	epdf.tips Internet Source	<1%
60	hdl.handle.net Internet Source	<1%
61	journals.ametsoc.org	<1%
62	pdfs.semanticscholar.org	<1%
63	phd.lib.uni-corvinus.hu Internet Source	<1%
64	researchleap.com	<1%
65	worldwidescience.org	<1%

66	www.coursehero.com	<1%
67	www.i-scholar.in	<1%
68	www.pjprnip.edu.pk	<1%
69	www.science.gov	<1%
70	Chin, T., and N. S. Rickard. "Emotion regulation strategy mediates both positive and negative relationships between music uses and well-being", Psychology of Music, 2013. Publication	<1%
71	Rocio Guil, Rocio Gómez-Molinero, Ana Merchán-Clavellino, Paloma Gil-Olarte. "Lights and Shadows of Trait Emotional Intelligence: Its Mediating Role in the Relationship Between Negative Affect and State Anxiety in University Students", Frontiers in Psychology, 2021 Publication	<1%
72	Estela Núñez-Barriopedro, Rafael Ravina- Ripoll, Eduardo Ahumada-Tello. "Happiness perception in Spain, a SEM approach to	<1%

evidence from the sociological research center", Quality & Quantity, 2019 Publication

Minqi Yang, Hanxiao Guo, Chen Jie, Xicheng Guo, Kexin Tian, Chunyu Qu. "The Relationship between Perceived Stress and Overall Well-being during the COVID-19 epidemic: A moderated mediation model", Research Square Platform LLC, 2022 Publication

<1%

# Appendix I

# **Evaluation Form**

# UNIVERSITI TUNKU ABDUL RAHMAN FACULTY OF ARTS AND SOCIAL SCIENCE DEPARTMENT OF PSYCHOLOGY AND COUNSELLING

# UAPZ 3023 Final Year Project II

# **Quantitative Research Project Evaluation Form**

**<u>TURNITIN</u>**: 'In assessing this work you are agreeing that it has been submitted to the University-recognised originality checking service which is Turnitin. The report generated by Turnitin is used as evidence to show that the students' final report contains the similarity level below 20%.'

Project Title:				
Perceived Stress and Emotional Intelligence as Predictors of Life Satisfaction among				
Undergraduates in Malaysia				
Supervisor:				
Dr. Nurul Iman Binti Abdul Jalil				
Student's Name: Student's ID				
1. Cham Han Tein1. 18AAB02284				
2. Lim Syi Wei 2. 18AAB02283				
3. Ooi Yu Jie	3. Ooi Yu Jie 3. 18AAB05045			

## **INSTRUCTIONS:**

Please score each descriptor based on the scale provided below:

**1.** Please award 0 mark for no attempt.

2. For criteria 7:

Please retrieve the marks from "Oral Presentation Evaluation Form".

1. ABSTRACT (5%)	Max Score	Score
a. State the main hypotheses/research objectives.	5%	
b. Describe the methodology:	5%	
Research design		
• Sampling method		
• Sample size		
Location of study		
• Instruments/apparatus/outcome measures		
Data gathering procedures		
c. Describe the characteristics of participants.	5%	
d. Highlight the outcomes of the study.	5%	
e. Conclusions, implications, and applications.	5%	
Sum	25%	/25%
Subtotal (Sum/5)	5%	/5%

Remark:

2 METHODOLOCY $(25\%)$	Max	Score
2. METHODOLOGI (2576)		Score
a. Research design/framework:	5%	
• For experiment, report experimental	- / -	
manipulation, participant flow, treatment fidelity.		
baseline data, adverse events and side effects,		
assignment method and implementation, masking	<b>5.</b>	
(*if applicable with the study design)		
• For non-experiment, describe the design of the		
study and data used.		
b. Sampling procedures:	5%	
• Justification of sampling method/technique used.		
• Description of location of study.		
• Procedures of ethical clearance approval.		
(Provide reference number of approval letter)		
c. Sample size, power, and precision:	5%	
• Justification of sample size.		
• Achieved actual sample size and response rate.		
• Power analysis or other methods (if applicable).		
d. Clear explanation of data collection procedures:	5%	
<ul> <li>Inclusion and exclusion criteria</li> </ul>		
<ul> <li>Procedures of obtaining consent</li> </ul>		
<ul> <li>Description of data collection procedures</li> </ul>		
<ul> <li>Provide dates/duration of recruitment repeated</li> </ul>		
measures or follow-up.		
• Agreement and payment (if any)		
e. Explanation of instruments/questionnaire used:	5%	
• Description of instruments		
• Scoring system		
<ul> <li>Meaning of scores</li> </ul>		

Reliability and validity		
Subtotal	25%	/25%
Remark:		
		9
3. <b>RESULTS</b> (20%)	Max	Score
a Descriptive statistics	50/	
a. Descriptive statistics.	5%	
Topic specific characteristics		
<ul> <li>h Data diagnostic and missing data:</li> </ul>	5%	
• Frequency and percentages of missing data (if	570	
applicable)		
<ul> <li>Methods employed for addressing missing data</li> </ul>		
(if applicable)		
• Criteria for post data-collection exclusion of		
participants.		
• Criteria for imputation of missing data.		
• Defining and processing of statistical outliers.		
• Analyses of data distributions.		
• Data transformation (if applicable).		
c. Appropriate data analysis for each hypothesis or	5%	
research objective.		
d. Accurate interpretation of statistical analyses:	5%	
<ul> <li>Accurate report and interpretation of confidence</li> </ul>		
intervals or statistical significance.		
• Report of <i>p</i> values and minimally sufficient sets		
of statistics (e.g., dfs, MS, MS error).		
• Accurate report and interpretation of effect sizes.		
• Report any problems with statistical assumptions.		
Subtotal	20%	/20%
Remark:		
A DISCUSSION AND CONCLUSION (20%)	Moy	Score
4. DISCUSSION AND CONCLUSION (2070)	Score	Score
a Constructive discussion of findings:	8%	
Provide statement of support or nonsupport for all	070	
hypotheses.		
• Analyze similar and/or dissimilar results		
Rational justifications for statistical results		
b. Implication of the study:	4%	
Theoretical implication for future research	.,.	
Practical implication for programs and policies		
c. Relevant limitations of the study	4%	
	.,.	

d. Recommendations for future research.	4%			
Subtotal	20%			/20%
Remark:				
5. LANGUAGE AND OKGANIZATION (5%)	Max		S	core
a Languaga proficionay	<b>Score</b>			
a. Language pronciency b. Content organization	10/			
b. Content organization	1 70			
c. Complete documentation (e.g., action plan,	1 %0			
Subtotal	5%			/5%
Remark:	570			7570
Kellark.				
6. APA STYLE AND REFERENCING (5%)	Max		S	core
	Score			
a. 7 <sup>th</sup> Edition APA Style	5%			/5%
Remark:				, , , , ,
*ORAL PRESENTATION (20%)		S	core	
*ORAL PRESENTATION (20%)	Student	St.	core udent	Student
*ORAL PRESENTATION (20%)	Student 1	St.	core udent 2	Student 3
*ORAL PRESENTATION (20%) Subtotal	Student 1	St.	core udent 2	Student 3
*ORAL PRESENTATION (20%) Subtotal	Student 1 /20%	St.	core udent 2 /20%	Student 3
*ORAL PRESENTATION (20%) Subtotal Remark:	Student 1 /20%	Str.	core udent 2 /20%	Student 3 /20%
*ORAL PRESENTATION (20%) Subtotal Remark:	Student 1 /20%	St.	core udent 2 /20%	Student 3 /20%
*ORAL PRESENTATION (20%) Subtotal Remark:	Student 1 /20%	St	core udent 2 /20%	Student 3 /20%
*ORAL PRESENTATION (20%) Subtotal Remark: PENALTY	Student 1 /20%	St	core udent 2 /20%	Student 3 /20%
*ORAL PRESENTATION (20%) Subtotal Remark: PENALTY	Student 1 /20%	St	core udent 2 /20%	Student 3 /20%
*ORAL PRESENTATION (20%) Subtotal Remark: PENALTY Maximum of 10 marks for LATE SUBMISSION (within	Student           1           /20%           Max           Score           10%	St	core udent 2 /20%	Student 3 /20%
*ORAL PRESENTATION (20%)  Subtotal Remark:  PENALTY Maximum of 10 marks for LATE SUBMISSION (within 24hours), or POOR CONSULTATION ATTENDANCE	Student           1           /20%           Max           Score           10%	St	core udent 2 /20%	Student 3 /20%
*ORAL PRESENTATION (20%)  Subtotal Remark:  PENALTY  Maximum of 10 marks for LATE SUBMISSION (within 24hours), or POOR CONSULTATION ATTENDANCE with supervisor.	Student           1           /20%           Max           Score           10%	S Str	core udent 2 /20%	Student 3 /20%
*ORAL PRESENTATION (20%) Subtotal Remark: PENALTY Maximum of 10 marks for LATE SUBMISSION (within 24hours), or POOR CONSULTATION ATTENDANCE with supervisor.	Student 1 /20% Max Score 10%	St	core udent 2 /20%	Student 3 /20%
*ORAL PRESENTATION (20%) Subtotal Remark: PENALTY Maximum of 10 marks for LATE SUBMISSION (within 24hours), or POOR CONSULTATION ATTENDANCE with supervisor. *Late submission after 24hours will not be graded	Student           1           /20%           Max           Score           10%	St	core udent 2 /20%	Student 3 /20%
*ORAL PRESENTATION (20%) Subtotal Remark: PENALTY Maximum of 10 marks for LATE SUBMISSION (within 24hours), or POOR CONSULTATION ATTENDANCE with supervisor. *Late submission after 24hours will not be graded	Student 1 /20% Max Score 10%	S Stu	core udent 2 /20% S	Student 3 /20%
*ORAL PRESENTATION (20%)         Subtotal         Remark:         PENALTY         Maximum of 10 marks for LATE SUBMISSION (within 24hours), or POOR CONSULTATION ATTENDANCE with supervisor.         *Late submission after 24hours will not be graded	Student 1 /20% Max Score 10% Student 1	S Str	core udent 2 /20% S S udent 2	Student 3 /20%
*ORAL PRESENTATION (20%) Subtotal Remark: PENALTY Maximum of 10 marks for LATE SUBMISSION (within 24hours), or POOR CONSULTATION ATTENDANCE with supervisor. *Late submission after 24hours will not be graded **FINAL MARK/TOTAL	Student 1 /20% Max Score 10% Student 1	S Sti	core udent 2 /20% S udent 2 udent 2	Student 3 /20% core Student 3

### **\*\*\*Overall Comments:**

some part need improvement

Signat	ture:	Date	e: 22 April 2022
Notes:			
1.	Subtotal: FINAL MARK/TOTAL ·	The sum of scores for each assessment The summation of all subtotal score	t criterion
2. 3.	Plagiarism is <b>NOT ACCEPTA</b>	<b>BLE</b> . Parameters of originality required ar	nd limits approved by UTAR
	are as follows:		11 5
	(i) <b>Overall similarity ind</b>	lex is 20% or below, and	

- (ii) Matching of individual sources listed must be less than 3% each, and
- (iii) Matching texts in continuous block must not exceed 8 words

Note: Parameters (i) – (ii) shall exclude quotes, references and text matches which are less than 8 words.

Any works violate the above originality requirements will NOT be accepted. Students have to redo the report and meet the requirements in **SEVEN** (7) days.

\*The marks of "Oral Presentation" are to be retrieved from "**Oral Presentation Evaluation Form**". \*\*It is compulsory for the supervisor/examiner to give the overall comments for the research projects with Aand above or F grading.

# Appendix J

# **Action Plan Form**

Action F	Plan of UAPZ 3023 (group-based)	Final Year Pr	oject II for .	Jan & May trimes	ter			
Supervise	e's Name:	Cham Han Tein, Lim Syi Wei, Ooi Yu Jie						
Superviso	r's Name:	Dr. Nurul Im	man Binti Abdul Jalil					
	Task Description	Duration	Date/Time	Supervisee's Sig	nature	Supervisor's Signature	Supervisor's Remarks	Next Appointment Date/Time
Methodo Analysis	ology, Data Collection & Data	W1-W2	29/1/2022 3pm	A Syns	Martin -	nurulíman	Ongoing data collection	
Finding &	Analysis	W3-W6		¥1			Done with data collection and proceed with data	
	Discuss Findings & Analysis with Supervisor		24/2/2022 3pm	Syn	Mars-	nurulíman	analysis	
	Amending Findings & Analysis		1/3/2022 3pm	K Syn	Marz-			
Discussior	n & Conclusion	W7-W9						
	Discuss Discussion & Conclusion with Supervisor		9/3/2022 3pm	A Synd	Sere-	nuruliman	Done with data analysis, continue writing	
	Amending Discussion & Conclusion		3pm	W/ Syris	MAGE-		chapter 4 and 5 and combining an chapters	
Submissio	n of first draft*	Monday of Week 10	submit the first draft to Turnitin.com to check similarity rate					
Amendme	nt	W10						
Submissio	n of final FYP (FYP I + FYP II)*	Monday of W11	final submission to supervisor					
Oral Prese	entation		Oral Presenta	ition Schedule will be i	released and	your supervisor will ir	form you	
Notes:	1. The listed duration is for reference	e only, supervis	ors can adjust	the period according	to the topi	s and content of the	projects.	
	2. *Deadline for submission can not l	e changed, on	e mark will be	deducted per day fo	r late submi	ssion.		
	3. Supervisees are to take the active	role to make ap	pointments w	vith their supervisors.	<b></b>	to goth or with the such	mission of the FVD II	
	4. Both supervisors and supervisees should keep a copy of this record is to be submitted together with the submission of the FYP II.							

### Appendix K

### **Consent Form**

Universiti Tunku Abdul Rahman				
Form Title : Sample of Submission Sheet for FYP/Dissertation/Thesis				
Form Number : FM-IAD-004	Rev No: 0	Effective Date: 21 June 2011	Page No: 1 of 1	

#### FACULTY/INSTITUTE\* OF <u>ARTS AND SOCIAL SCIENCE</u> UNIVERSITI TUNKU ABDUL RAHMAN

Date: 4th April 2022

#### SUBMISSION OF FINAL YEAR PROJECT /DISSERTATION/THESIS

It is hereby certified that \_\_\_\_\_ Cham Han Tein \_\_\_\_\_ (ID No: 1802284

has completed this final year project entitled "Perceived Stress and Emotional Intelligence as Predictors of Life Satisfaction among Undergraduates in Malaysia

under the supervision of Dr. Nurul Iman binti Abdul Jalil (Supervisor) from the Department of <u>Psychology and Counselling</u>, Faculty/Institute\* of Arts and Social Science

I understand that University will upload softcopy of my final year project / dissertation/ thesis\* in pdf format into UTAR Institutional Repository, which may be made accessible to UTAR community and public.

Yours truly,

Name: Cham Han Tein

\*Delete whichever not applicable

)

Form Title : S	Universiti Tunku Sample of Submission	Abdul Rahman Sheet for FYP/Disser	ation/Thesis		
Form Number : FM-IAD-004	Rev No: 0	Effective Date:	21 June 2011	Page N	o: <b>1 o</b>
FACULTV/INSTIT	TTE* OF ARTS A	ND SOCIAL SCU	FNCE		
UN	IVERSITI TUNKU	J ABDUL RAHM	AN		
Date: 4 <sup>th</sup> April 2022					
SUBMISSION OF	FINAL YEAR PR	OJECT /DISSER	TATION/1	HESIS	
It is hereby certified	that Lim Sy	vi Wei (I	D No: 180	2283 )	
has completed thi "Perceived Stress and E Undergraduates in Mal	s final year p motional Intelligence a aysia	roject entitled s Predictors of Life S	atisfaction an	nong,	
under the supervisi Department of Psyc	on of D <u>r. Nurul Ima</u> hology and Counsellin	<u>n binti Abdul Ja</u> lil (S g	upervisor) , Faculty/Ir	from the <u>istitute* of</u>	

I understand that University will upload softcopy of my final year project / dissertation/ thesis\* in pdf format into UTAR Institutional Repository, which may be made accessible to UTAR community and public.

Yours truly, San

Name: Lim Syi Wei

\*Delete whichever not applicable

	Universiti Tunku A	bdul Rahman		
Form Title :	Sample of Submission Sh	eet for FYP/Disser	tation/Thesis	
Form Number : FM-IAD-004	Rev No: 0	Effective Date:	21 June 2011	Page
FACULTY/INSTIT	UTE* OF <u>ARTS AN</u>	D SOCIAL SCI	ENCE	
UI	NIVERSITI TUNKU	ABDUL RAHM	IAN	
Deter 4th April 2022				
Date: <u>4<sup>m</sup> April 2022</u>				
SUBMISSION O	F FINAL YEAR PRO	JECT /DISSER	TATION/THES	IS
			1905045	
It is hereby certified	that <u>001 ru</u> .	<u>ie</u> (1	D No: 1803043	)
has completed th	is final year pro	ject entitled		
"Perceived Stress and E Undergraduates in Ma	Emotional Intelligence as l lavsia	Predictors of Life S	atisfaction among	,,
under the supervis	sion of Dr. Nurul Iman	binti Abdul Jalil (S	Supervisor) from	the
Department of Psy	chology and Counselling		, Faculty/Institut	<u>e*_of</u>
Arts and Social Scier	ice			

I understand that University will upload softcopy of my final year project / dissertation/ thesis\* in pdf format into UTAR Institutional Repository, which may be made accessible to UTAR community and public.

Yours truly,

Name: Ooi Yu Jie

\*Delete whichever not applicable

### Appendix L

Universiti Tunku Abdul Rahman				
Form Title : Supervisor's Comments on Originality Report Generated by Turnitin				
for Submission of Final Year Project Report (for Undergraduate Programmes)				
Form Number: FM-IAD-005	Rev No.: 0	Effective Date: 01/10/2013	Page No.: 1of 1	



# FACULTY OF ARTS AND SOCIAL SCIENCE

Full Name(s) of Candidate(s)	Cham Han Tein, Lim Syi Wei, Ooi Yu Jie
ID Number(s)	18AAB02284, 18AAB02283, 18AAB05045
Programme / Course	Bachelor of Social Science (Hons) Psychology
Title of Final Year Project	Perceived Stress and Emotional Intelligence as Predictors of Life Satisfaction among Undergraduates in Malaysia

Similarity	Supervisor's Comments (Compulsory if parameters of originality exceeds the limits approved by UTAR)		
Overall similarity index:16%			
Similarity by sourceInternet Sources:13%Publications:8%Student Papers:6%			
<b>Number of individual sources listed</b> of more than 3% similarity: <u>0</u>			
<ul> <li>Parameters of originality required and limits approved by UTAR are as follows:</li> <li>(i) Overall similarity index is 20% and below, and</li> <li>(ii) Matching of individual sources listed must be less than 3% each, and</li> <li>(iii) Matching texts in continuous block must not exceed 8 words</li> <li>Note: Parameters (i) – (ii) shall exclude quotes, bibliography and text matches which are less than 8 words.</li> </ul>			

Note Supervisor/Candidate(s) is/are required to provide softcopy of full set of the originality report to

Faculty/Institute Based on the above results, I hereby declare that I am satisfied with the originality of the Final

nurulíman

Signature of Supervisor

Signature of Co-Supervisor

Name: \_\_\_\_\_

Name: Dr. Nurul Iman binti Abdul Jalil\_

Date:28 March 2022\_\_\_\_\_

Year Project Report submitted by my student(s) as named above.

\_\_\_\_\_

Date: \_\_\_\_\_